

# AGREEMENT

between

RIVERSIDE COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT

and

RIVERSIDE COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT
FACULTY ASSOCIATION
CCA/CTA/NEA

2021-2024

# **TABLE OF CONTENTS**

	Pa	ge
Agreement	2	,
Signature Page	3	,
Article I	Recognition and Definitions Clause4	
Article II	Notice6	;
Article III	Management Rights7	,
Article IV	Association Rights	;
Article V	Association Membership and Payroll Deduction10	)
Article VI	Non-Discrimination	,
Article VII	Salaries	
Article VIII	Fringe Benefits	,
Article IX	Calendar19	,
Article X	Hours of Work and Faculty Load21	
Article XI	Improvement of Instruction and Tenure Review45	;
Article XII	Personnel Files	,
Article XIII	Leaves61	
Article XIV	Safety Conditions of Employment75	
Article XV	Reduced Teaching Service Program77	,
Article XVI	Transfers	,
Article XVII	Contractual and Non-Contractual Grievance Procedure81	
Article XVIII	Effect of Agreement88	;
Article XIX	No Strike/No Lockout89	,
Article XX	Miscellaneous90	)
Article XXI	Intersessions95	
Article XXII	Load Banking100	)
Article XXIII	Duration and Termination101	

# **APPENDICES**

Appendix A	RCCD 2021 – 2022 Faculty Salary Schedule	102
	RCCD 2021 – 2022 Culinary Faculty Salary Schedule	103
	RCCD Occupational Faculty Salary Schedule	104
Appendix B	RCCD 2021 – 2022 Faculty Hourly Schedule	105
Appendix C	RCCD 2021 – 2022 Intersession Salary Schedule	106
Appendix D	RCCD Extra Pay for Extra Curricular Activities	107
Appendix E	RCCD Participatory Governance and Planning	109
Appendix F	RCCD Coordinator Schedule	110
Appendix G	RCCD Salary Schedule for Early Childhood Development	
	Center Employees	111
Appendix H	Pay-Per-Course Program for Associate Faculty	112
Appendix I	RCCD Academic Calendars	114

## **AGREEMENT**

This Agreement is made and entered into this first day of July, Two Thousand and twenty-one by and between Riverside Community College District (hereinafter called the "District") and the Riverside Community College District Faculty Association CCA/CTA/NEA (hereinafter called the "Association").

# SIGNATURE PAGE

This edition of the Agreement between the Riverside Community College District and the Riverside Community College District Faculty Association CCA/CTA/NEA is the Agreement dated July 1, 2021.

07/21/21	07/21/21		
Date:	Date:		
FOR THE DISTRICT	FOR THE ASSOCIATION		
World France	Rlunde Jule		
Wolde-Ab Isaac, Ph.D.	Rhonda Taube, Ph.D.		
Chancellor	President		
	RCCDFA/CCA/CTA/NEA		

## ARTICLE I – RECOGNITION AND DEFINITIONS CLAUSE

A. The Riverside Community College District hereby recognizes the Association as the exclusive, collective- bargaining representative for the employees in the unit described below and in accordance with the certification issued on October 25, 1981, from the Public Employment Relations Board cases numbered A-R-485, UM-199, and LA-D-83:

All currently employed full-time instructors, counselors, librarians, student activity coordinators, school nurses, athletic coaches; childcare assistants; and associate faculty, including those who have taught the equivalent of three or more semesters of the most recent six semesters

The unit shall exclude academic and classified administrators, classified and confidential employees; those instructors who are teaching less than a full semester and/or less than a full course (except those covered in Article XIII); instructors not employed by the District; and those associate instructors who are not currently employed or have not taught at least three semesters of the last six semesters inclusive. A current list of excluded employees will be provided to the Association at the beginning of each academic year and upon the Association's request.

- B. The District and the Association agree that the unit as described in the foregoing paragraphs is appropriate and that neither will seek Public Employment Relations Board (PERB) clarification or amendment of the unit, either as to the enumerated exclusions or as to the enumerated inclusions.
- C. Disputes concerning the interpretation and application of this Article are not subject to the grievance procedure in this Agreement. The inclusion or exclusion of new classifications created or added shall be subject to negotiation between the District and the Association, and any disputes shall be submitted to the PERB.
- D. For the purpose of this Agreement, the following definitions apply:
  - Contract Faculty Member: An academic employee who is appointed to a teaching or non-teaching position requiring more than 67% of a full-time load and who has served the District less than four full years.
  - 2. Regular Faculty Member: An academic employee who is appointed to a teaching or non-teaching position requiring more than 67% of a full-time load and who has served the District four or more full years.
  - Associate Faculty: An academic employee who is appointed to a teaching or non-teaching
    position requiring 67% or less of a full-time load and whose salary shall be paid on an
    hourly or pay-per-course basis.
  - 4. Full-time Faculty: Except in Article XI where the distinction is important, all Contract Faculty and Regular Faculty are referred to in the Agreement as Full-time Faculty.
- E. Faculty in Good Standing: Any faculty member who completes annual flex obligation, fulfills

institutional service requirements, and maintains satisfactory evaluation in the Improvement of Instruction process. In addition, a faculty member under a 90-day notice of unprofessional conduct is not in good standing.

- F. Qualified Full-time Faculty Member: A faculty member who satisfies all areas of expertise, or its equivalent, under a job announcement or has an approved Faculty Service Area (FSA).
- G. Bumping: The replacement of a faculty member's course assignment by another faculty member for reasons defined in the Agreement.
- H. Special Assignments: Temporary non-instructional, non-contractual assignment such as election to statewide Academic Senate for California Community Colleges or on special assignment to the California Community College Chancellor's Office.

## ARTICLE II – NOTICE

Notices required to be sent in this Agreement shall be in writing, and if to the Association, shall be delivered to the President, Riverside Community College District Faculty Association CCA/CTA/NEA, 4800 Magnolia Avenue, Riverside, CA 92506, and if to the District, shall be mailed to the Chancellor, Riverside Community College District, 3801 Market St., Riverside, CA 92501. Such addresses may be changed by either party giving written notice to the other party.

#### ARTICLE III – MANAGEMENT RIGHTS

- A. All matters not specifically enumerated as within the scope of representation in Government Code 3543.2 or not limited by the express terms of other Articles of this Agreement are reserved to the District. In alignment with District Board Policies and the tenets of participatory governance, it is agreed that such reserved rights include, but are not limited to, the Board's sole right to manage the District and direct the work of its employees; to determine the level, means, and kinds of services provided; to determine the staffing patterns and the number and kinds of personnel required; to determine its organization; to determine assignment and location thereof; to determine performance standards; to decide on the building, location, or modification of a facility; to determine the budget and methods of raising revenue; to determine educational objectives and policies; to determine the time and hours of operation of District facilities; to sub-contract work or operations except where expressly forbidden by law; to maintain order and efficiency; to determine rules applicable to employees; and to hire, assign, evaluate, promote, discipline, lay off, and transfer employees. All other rights of management not expressly limited by the clear and explicit language of this Agreement are also expressly reserved to the District even though not enumerated above. The exercise of any right reserved to the District herein in a particular manner or the non-exercise of any such right shall not be deemed a waiver of the District's right or preclude the District from exercising the right in a different manner. The right to determine or decide any of the foregoing shall also include the right to implement, supplement, change, modify, or discontinue, in whole or in part, temporarily or permanently in any of such areas.
- B. It is not the intention of the parties, in setting forth the above-mentioned rights of management, to detract or diminish in any way the consultation rights of the Association as set forth in Government Code Section 3543.2. However, such rights are not part of this contract, and it is the parties' intention that the provisions of the other Articles of this Agreement constitute the only contractual limitation upon the District's rights.
- C. Any dispute arising out of or in any way connected with either the existence of or the exercise of any of the rights of the District set forth above, or any other rights of the District not expressly limited by the language of this Agreement, is not subject to the Grievance Procedure contained in this Agreement.
- D. The District retains the right to amend, modify, or rescind policies and practices set forth in the Agreement in cases of emergency. An emergency is a sudden, generally unexpected occurrence or occasion requiring immediate action that affects District facilities or equipment or otherwise involves a force majeure or specific governmental order requiring the District to take certain action or refrain from taking certain action.

## ARTICLE IV – ASSOCIATION RIGHTS

- A. The Association may use, without charge, available District facilities at reasonable times for the purpose of meetings concerned with its representation rights at this District and may use currently available technological resources, provided that arrangement for such use shall be made in accordance with established District procedures. Copy machines may be used by the Association at the same cost charged to District programs.
- B. The Association shall have the right to use District and College listservs for communication with chapter members. The Association has the right to post its official communication on RCCD-ALL. The Association shall have the right to use faculty bulletin boards for posting notices of activities and shall have the right to use faculty mailboxes for communications with faculty members. The exercise of these rights is subject to generally applicable District regulations. Any notice posted pursuant to this section shall be clearly identified and dated, and a copy shall be filed with the college Vice President, Academic Affairs. Any Association material distributed through the intra-campus mail system shall clearly indicate the Association as the distributor of the material.
- C. The District will reproduce and provide copies of this Agreement to the Association and its membership. The Association will be responsible for the distribution of such copies to unit members, except in the case of new hires covered by this Agreement. With respect to new hires, the District will provide a copy of the Agreement at the time of hire and have the new faculty member acknowledge such receipt in writing. The District will maintain at least one electronic version of the contract language on the District website.
- D. Duly authorized Association representatives shall be permitted to transact official Association business on the District premises, including grievance processing as provided in Article XVII, so long as the transaction of such business does not interfere with the performance of faculty member duties to the District. At the beginning of each school year, the Association shall provide written notification to the District as to its authorized Association representatives. Any changes thereto shall be promptly communicated to the District in writing. A staff parking identification sticker shall be provided, upon request, to the Association's designated staff representative.
- E. The Association President shall not be required during their term in office to participate in academic committee assignments, to supervise extra-curricular activities, to serve on evaluation or selection committees, or otherwise to perform duties in areas not related to their instructional or service assignments. The Association shall be provided a separate office with appropriate furniture and space to maintain confidential materials and to hold meetings. The District shall be reimbursed for any telephone expenses incurred by the Association.

The District shall provide 2.9 reassigned time for the Faculty Association Representatives

each semester to be distributed as determined by the Association. The District further agrees to allow a maximum of four (4) days of paid leave of absence per year to the Association President or their designee to perform Association business. The District shall be notified at least five (5) days in advance of when such leave is to be utilized.

The District shall provide 1.2 FTE reassign time annually for the Associate Faculty Association Representatives. Associate Faculty Representatives shall receive .2 FTE per term for the fall and spring semesters. The .2 FTE will be calculated from Group 1 at the Associate Faculty Representative's current step on the Faculty Hourly Salary Schedule. The Association agrees to reimburse the District from the Association Treasury, an amount equal to .1 FTE paid to the Associate Faculty Representative per term for fall and spring semesters, for a total of .6 FTE.

In addition, the District shall provide a maximum of seventy (70) hours at the faculty hourly rate (Appendix B) for the Association during the winter and/or summer intersession. These seventy (70) hours will be distributed at the discretion of the Association President, with a maximum of fifty (50) hours for use by the Association President. This compensation is provided for necessary contractual, legitimate, or agreed upon college business. The Association President and others selected by the Association President will provide a timesheet specifying the hours worked and duties performed by the last day of the winter and/or summer intersession.

The Association will notify appropriate college Vice President of Academic Affairs, along with the Vice Chancellor, Educational Services and Strategic Planning, of Faculty and Associate Faculty Representative reassigned time, leaves, and additional hours every term.

- F. The Association shall have representation on all college committees which deal in any area which may affect working conditions as defined by the Educational Employees Relations Act.
- G. Service on the Association Executive Board shall be credited towards District committee assignment responsibility.

# ARTICLE V – ASSOCIATION MEMBERSHIP AND PAYROLL DEDUCTION

- A. The District will make payroll deductions of Association membership dues and fees for faculty employees upon notice by the Association. Such authorization shall continue until revoked in writing by the Association. Any revocation will become effective no later than two (2) weeks after the District is notified by the Association. No increase in the dues or fees to be deducted shall be made unless the Association provides thirty (30) calendar days advance notice in writing, and the authorization form permits such increase.
- B. Upon written authorization from the employee, the District shall deduct from the salary of such employee and make appropriate remittance to credit unions, annuity plans, the United Way, or any other plans or programs jointly approved by the Association and the District.
- C. The District shall not be liable to the employee or the Association or have any responsibility for these funds beyond transmittal in accordance with this Article. The employee must give not fewer than ten (10) business days written notice to commence or terminate the deductions covered in Section B of this Article.
- D. The District shall provide the Association with notice of any newly hired employee whose position falls under the Association's representation, on the last business day of the month, via electronic mail to the Association President.
  - 1. The notice shall include:
    - a. First Name;
    - b. Middle initial:
    - c. Last name:
    - d. Suffix (e.g. Jr., III);
    - e. Job Title;
    - f. Department;
    - g. Work Location
    - h. Work telephone number;
    - i. Home Street address (incl. apartment #);
    - j. City;
    - k. State:
    - 1. ZIP Code (5 or 9 digits);
    - m. Home telephone number (10 digits);
    - n. Personal cellular telephone number (10 digits);
    - o. Personal email address of the employee;
    - p. District email address;
    - q. Employee ID;
    - r. Hire date.

"Newly hired employee" or "new hire" means any faculty employee, hired by the District, and who is still employed. It also includes all employees who are or have been previously employed by the District and whose current position has placed them in the bargaining unit represented by the Association. For those latter employees, for purposes of this Article only,

the "date of hire" is the date upon which the employee's employee status changed such that the employee was placed in the Association's unit.

- Periodic Update of Information: The District shall provide the Association with a list of all bargaining unit members' information as listed in section E.1. above, on the last business day of September, January, and May via electronic mail to the Association President or upon request.
- E. Definition of New Employee Orientation: "New employee orientation" means the onboarding process of a newly hired public employee, whether in person, online, or through other means or mediums, in which employees are advised of their employment status, rights, benefits, duties and responsibilities, or any other employment-related matters.
  - 1. Each College shall provide the Association with Access to New Faculty Employee Orientations. Such access shall be 30 to 60 minutes of the orientation process. The Association shall receive not less than ten (10) business days' notice in advance of an orientation, except that a shorter notice may be provided as agreed upon and in specific instances where there is an urgent need critical to the College operations that was not reasonably foreseeable. Orientation sessions may include individual (one-on-one) new hire meetings with a site administrator, and/or group orientation sessions.
  - 2. Onboarding orientations may occur at any time subject to College needs, but will typically occur during fall and spring flex at each College. Orientations will not be delayed or cancelled due to inability or failure of the Association's representatives to attend. New employees are not compelled to attend the portion of the orientation accessed or conducted by the Association.
  - Each College agrees to hold a minimum of two (2) orientation sessions during the
    academic year. The Association's Labor Relations Representative may also attend the
    orientation.
  - 4. The orientation sessions shall be held on District property.
  - Upon request of the Association, during the Association's portion of the orientation session, no District manager or supervisor, or non-unit employee shall be present.
  - 6. New Hire Processing: The District shall include the Association membership application (and an Association provided link for an electronic application where applicable) in any new hire processing packet of District materials that is provided to any newly hired faculty employee. The Association shall provide the copies of any Association literature/membership applications to the District for distribution. The District will inform the Association if additional printed materials are needed at least five (5) working days before any scheduled new hire processing appointment.
  - 7. New Faculty Orientation Packets: Each College shall include Association membership application (and an Association provided link for an electronic application where applicable) in any new faculty orientation packet of District and College materials that is provided to any newly hired faculty employee. The Association shall provide the

copies of any Association literature/membership applications to the Colleges for distribution. The Colleges will information the Association if additional printed materials are needed at least five (5) working days before the orientation.

#### ARTICLE VI – NON-DISCRIMINATION

- A. The District and the Association acknowledge and agree that there is a mutual obligation to adhere to the District's Board Policy 6410 Non-Discrimination to comply with all pertinent provisions of federal and state non-discrimination laws. Neither the District nor the Association shall, in violation of the law, discriminate against any employee on the basis of race, color, creed, age, sex, sexual orientation, national origin, mental or physical disability, political affiliation, lawful political activity, marital status, relationship to a present employee (except where such would lead to one family member being in a potential conflict of interest with another family member), membership or lack thereof in an employee organization, or participation or lack thereof in the activities of any employee organization.
- B. The Association recognizes the structural, physical, and symbolic violence caused by institutional racism and stands in solidarity with everyone working to realize racial justice. We acknowledge that RCCD faculty must play a critical role in disrupting racism. Teaching for racial justice includes antiracist curriculum and pedagogy as well as advocating for district-wide antiracist practices that listen to, value, and advance the hopes and needs of our students, faculty, staff, and community. We believe teaching is an ethical and political act and commit to working toward ending systemic racism, including listening, learning, changing, and disrupting all the ways racism shows up in our lives, communities, and the Riverside Community College District.
- C. Violations of this Article shall be subject to Administrative Procedure 6435-Discrimination and Harassment Complaints and Investigations except as they relate to violations of other specific provisions of this Agreement or except where no other statutory or administrative remedy exists.

#### ARTICLE VII - SALARIES

- A. The salary schedules for all employees covered by this Agreement will be as shown in Appendices A, B, C, D, E, F, G, and H and are effective as of the date indicated on the applicable appendix.
- B. Stipends delineated in Appendix D, E and F of the Agreement will be added to the faculty member's base salary. The specific stipends and reassigned time listed in Appendix D, E, and F of the Agreement will be annually reviewed by the District and the Association.
- C. Pay periods for full-time faculty will commence with the month of August.
- D. All certificated salary schedules will be annually negotiated by the District and the Association.
- E. Due to the uncertainly of the District's budgeting during the ongoing COVID pandemic, the RCCD Faculty Association and District agree to increase all certified salary schedules as follows:
  - By COLA, effective July 1, 2021, to the extent funded by the State + the right to negotiate a percentage of any increased State (General Fund) funding received by the District commensurate with the central role of faculty in delivering educational and other services to students.
  - By COLA, effective July 1, 2022, to the extent funded by the State + the right to
    negotiate a percentage of any increased State (General Fund) funding received by
    the District commensurate with the central role of faculty in delivering educational
    and other services to students.
  - By COLA, effective July 1, 2023, to the extent funded by the State + the right to
    negotiate a percentage of any increased State (General Fund) funding received by
    the District commensurate with the central role of faculty in delivering educational
    and other services to students.
- F. Credit for occupational experience for initial salary placement This clause addresses the need to grant credit for occupational experience (non-teaching) for initial salary placement purposes for faculty hired into an occupational discipline that the District has determined requires a Master's degree and has not been designated by the California Community Colleges Chancellor's Office Minimum Qualifications for Faculty Handbook.
  - 1. Initial Salary Placement

The parties agree that credit will be granted for allowable occupational experience for initial salary placement purposes for faculty hired into an occupational discipline in which the District has determined requires a Master's degree. The experience must be at the minimum educational level required by the discipline.

- a. Column placement shall be in accordance with the columns identified on the Faculty Salary Schedule.
- b. Step Placement shall be in accordance with the process outlined under the Occupational Faculty Salary Schedule, Placement on the Schedule.
- 2. Review of Prior Initial Salary Placements of Faculty in Human Services

The District will only review the initial salary placement of faculty currently employed in the Human Services Discipline. The District will ensure that one step will be granted for each two (2) yeas of allowable occupational experience for each faculty member. Faculty members that have allowable (occupational) experience will have their salary placement adjusted to reflect credit given for their years of experience not to exceed placement on Step 6.

## ARTICLE VIII – FRINGE BENEFITS

A. The District shall provide the following fringe benefits to all full-time faculty members.

While retirees are not members of the bargaining unit and do not participate in bargaining, active members of the Association are not prohibited from negotiating on behalf of their members and their retirement benefits (CA Gov't. Code § 3540.1., § 3544).

Retiree fringe benefits cannot be unilaterally changed by the District and will be negotiated with the Association.

- 1. Changes, modifications, or improvements of the following coverage shall be negotiated and mutually agreed by the District and the Association.
  - a. Health insurance coverage for employees and dependents through Kaiser Permanente, Health Net, or the RCCD PPO Plan. In order for an employee to elect not to purchase Kaiser Permanente, Health Net, or the RCCD PPO Plan coverage, such employee must provide evidence of alternative health insurance coverage. The employee may elect Kaiser Permanente, Health Net, or the RCCD PPO Plan coverage only once each year and normally such election shall be effective on October 1 of each year.
  - b. The District agrees to provide dental insurance coverage for employees and dependents in the Delta Dental Plan of California or some other mutually agreed upon program. All employees shall participate in the program. The District shall maintain benefits equivalent to those provided on the effective date of this Agreement and shall pay for any increased premiums during the term of this Agreement.
  - c. A Voluntary Vision Plan is available for qualified full-time faculty.
  - d. A Hearing Aid Plan is available for qualified full-time faculty.
  - A Voluntary Long Term Care Insurance Plan is available for qualified full-time faculty.
- 2. The District shall provide Group Life Insurance coverage in the amount of \$50,000.
- 3. The District will not pay the following on behalf of employees: TSA contributions; accident insurance premiums; salary continuation insurance premiums; or any fringe benefit premiums not specifically listed in this Article.

However, employees may participate in such plans through payroll deduction at the employee's expense. Any plans or insurances not previously the subject of contributions or deductions shall be added only with the mutual consent of the District and the employee.

- 4. In consultation with and approval by the Association, the District agrees to the following regarding Health Care:
  - a. The District shall contract the services of a health care consultant. The District with the consultation of the Association will approve any new agreement, extension, or renewal of the consultant's services.
  - b. The District shall eliminate all previous RCCD PPO plan documents.
  - c. The District shall update the RCCD PPO and the Health Net and Kaiser HMO Health Care coverage to bring those into compliance with the current health care law and with state and federal guidelines.
  - d. The District shall adopt a voluntary VSP Vision plan for qualified employees.
  - e. Any new RCCD PPO Health Care Plan Document(s) as well as any new agreement for the Health Net and Kaiser HMO plans and the VSP Vision plan provided by the health care consultant will be submitted to the District and the Association for their review and approval before being placed on the Board agenda for its consideration and approval.
  - f. The District and the Association President (or a single Association Executive Board designee) may work directly with the Third-Party Administrator for specific information related to member fringe benefits. Third-Party Administrator correspondence related to member fringe benefits, excluding confidential matters, shall include both the District and Association President (or a single Association Executive Board designee).
- 5. In consultation with and approval by the Association, the District agrees to the following regarding Fringe Benefits:
  - a. The District shall contract the services of SchoolsFirst as the Third-Party administrator for RCCD retirement savings program (403b/457).
  - b. The District shall approve any new agreement, extension, or renewal of the Third-Party Administrator for RCCD retirement savings program (403b/457).
  - c. The District, prior to approval, shall submit to the Association for its review, consideration, and approval, any revision or renewal of any agreement or contract to the fringe benefits of RCCD faculty including, but not limited to, the Catastrophic Leave program and the Employee Assistance program.

## B. Associate Faculty Health Benefits

 The District agrees to provide associate faculty the option of participating in medical insurance with one of our two HMO plans. Enrollment in the Health Net or Kaiser plans is available bi-annually during the months of September and February with effective dates of October 1 or March 1. Enrollment is contingent upon the participant's fall and spring teaching assignment(s). The District will cost share with the employee and will pay 50% of the monthly premium to insure the employee only. An additional subsidy provided by the District will be applied to each participant, and the subsidy amount per participant may change based on the number of participants enrolled each semester. The maximum amount of the subsidy is \$150,000 allocated annually. The employee has the option of enrolling eligible dependents; however, the employee assumes the full cost to insure their dependents.

- 2. An Associate Faculty shall not receive more than the cost of their insurance coverage.
- The District agrees to participate in the AB420 associate faculty health benefit plan by offering single employee coverage HMO plan of the District to those associate faculty who request it.
- 4. The District agrees to provide a Voluntary Vision Plan for qualified associate faculty.
- 5. A Hearing Aid Plan is available for qualified associate faculty.
- 6. A Voluntary Long Term Care Insurance Plan is available for qualified associate faculty.

#### ARTICLE IX - CALENDAR

- A. The Association and District will follow Board Policy and Administrative Procedure 2010 to ensure that all academic years are consistently planned from the current year through four academic years. The Association will consult and confer with the Academic Senate in developing the Association's proposed calendar(s). The final adopted calendar(s) shall be subject to the approval of the Association and the District. The parties shall make every reasonable effort to complete this process by the first Monday in December. "Academic year" is defined as that period between the first day of a summer term and the last day of the following spring term.
- B. The District operates under a compressed calendar with a 16.4 Term Length Multiplier, wherein students have more contact with instructors per day, for fewer days or weeks, with no loss of instructional time over the course of a primary term. The academic year begins with the summer intersession followed by the fall semester, winter intersession, and spring semester.
- C. In accordance with Article X, Hours of Work and Faculty Load, full-time faculty members must complete their annual faculty assignment within the semesters or intersessions of the academic year. If the District offers a summer intersession, full-time faculty may complete part of their annual teaching assignment during the summer intersession. This does not obligate the Board to offer a summer intersession; therefore, unfulfilled load will be assigned during the next term.
- D. Unless otherwise agreed upon, full-time faculty will complete 24 hours per academic year of professional development (FLEX). The staff development days may be taken at any time during the year (July 1 through June 30) when not in conflict with contractual obligations. Eight (8) hours of these 24 hours shall be dedicated to equity-related training and education for the improvement of instruction. Guidance and definitions of training/education in equity and social justice issues shall be recommended through collaboration among Faculty Development Committees, as standing committees of the Academic Senate, and the District Compliance Officer and Title IX Coordinator. In addition to the teaching days, each continuing faculty member shall have one service day for staff meetings, and/or in-service training. New faculty members shall have two service days, over and above the teaching days, for the purposes of orientation.
- E. The District reserves the right to extend the semester and intersession calendars to meet the needs and/or requirements of special programs (e.g., Cosmetology, Administration of Justice, Nursing, Weekend College, etc.).
- F. The responsibilities of all faculty members shall continue until all final grades and attendance reports are submitted and the District checkout procedures are completed. There shall be no additional pay for completing these responsibilities after the end of the semester or intersession.
- G. All holidays which fall within any paid leave period shall not be counted as paid leave

days as set forth in Article XIII unless the	applicable leave	policy measures	s the leave in
terms of calendar days or months.			

H. Any date within the calendar declared by the State to be a mandatory legal holiday shall be observed as such.

#### ARTICLE X - HOURS OF WORK AND FACULTY LOAD

- A. The work week for all full-time faculty, counseling faculty, library faculty, and student activity coordinators shall include availability five (5) days, with a minimum of three (3) days on campus, producing an average weekly workload of 40 hours. In the compressed calendar, all faculty work about a 42.5-hour work week. In cases where the regularly scheduled instructional duties fall on less than five (5) days, faculty are not excused from institutional service. The presumption is that faculty are available and accessible throughout the work week. However, full-time faculty cannot be required to work before 8 a.m. or after 5:00 p.m. nor more than an 8-hour day, unless the faculty member's job description expressly requires duties beyond these hours.
- B. Full-time faculty with a partial contract shall be available and accessible for these same duties for periods of time proportionate to the contract held.
- C. Full-time and associate faculty, counseling faculty, library faculty, and student activity coordinators as part of their regularly scheduled contracts may be given assignments throughout the hours in which the College is in operation. Assignments of classes and teaching schedules shall be determined through coordination between the faculty members concerned and the Department Chairs, subject to the approval of the Dean of Instruction and/or the Vice President Academic Affairs. The District agrees there shall be a minimum of eleven (11) hours between the end of the last assigned class on one day and the first assigned class the next day unless the faculty member otherwise consents. The District also agrees that it will not for arbitrary or capricious reasons assign someone to a schedule that has such employee teaching both at the beginning and end of the District's operational day.
- D. Normal teaching load for full-time faculty shall be 2.0 Full-Time Equivalent (FTE) per year and 1.0 FTE per primary term. For full-time faculty whose combination of assignments do not add up to 1.0 FTE per primary term, the following equivalencies for determining load apply. One (1) annual faculty Full-Time Equivalent (FTE) shall be equal to a faculty assignment falling within a range of 1.9333 to 2.0666. A Full-Time Equivalent primary term contract load is 0.9667 to 1.0333 unless load balancing is approved by the Vice President Academic Affairs or designee. Overload begins to accrue when primary term contract load is exceeded. Each full-time faculty member shall be assigned up to one (1) annual FTE per year. With the consent of the faculty member involved, the range may go beyond 2.0666 FTE per year without the additional assignment being considered overload. The District may assign a reduced workload without a commensurate reduction of pay where, in its judgment, a faculty member's workload, though technically within one (1) annual FTE, becomes excessive due to unusual circumstances.
- E. Departments must submit yearly teaching assignments for each full-time faculty member during the spring semester for the following summer, fall, winter, and spring terms. No full-time faculty members shall be required to teach during the winter or summer intersessions, as long as they satisfy their annual teaching assignment during other terms of the academic year.
- F. Full-time faculty may choose either the winter or the summer intersession for compensation on Appendix C. Only one intersession, if above and beyond the obligation

for the academic year, will be paid based on Appendix C.

- G. Full-time faculty who choose to use the winter or summer intersession in order to complete their annual teaching load will be given priority for the intersession teaching assignments. If the District offers a summer intersession, full-time faculty members may complete part of their annual teaching assignment during the summer intersession. This does not obligate the Board to offer a summer intersession; therefore, unfulfilled load will be assigned during the next term.
- H. Full-time faculty who are required to be on College premises during periods that are not part of their annual teaching assignment will be compensated at their hourly rate of pay (Appendix B).
- I. Distance Education is recognized as a mode of delivery that meets the needs of a diverse student population. The limitation on contract load that can be taught fully online is 0.6000. For the purposes of full-time faculty contractual load, a hybrid class with at least 50% of the lecture delivered face-to-face or, for extensive preparation labs where the lab component and lecture component have equal contact hours, with at least 50% of the total contact time delivered face-to-face, shall not be counted toward the .6 limitation on online teaching for contractual load.
- J. The following principles shall be used when making assignments:
  - 1. Lecture and Theory course 18 hrs. (contact hour) = 0.0666 FTE

```
(each hour = .0037 FTE)
(54 hours = .2000 FTE)
```

 Laboratory Classes Requiring Extensive Preparation and Student Evaluation 18 hrs. (contact hour) = 0.0666 FTE

```
(each hour = .0037 FTE)
(54 hours = .2000 FTE)
```

- a. Such classes, in addition to requiring planning and more than general preparation on the part of the instructor, also require that the student learn basic skills in order to be an effective participant in the class.
- b. Typically such classes have as a primary function the teaching of new and additional concepts which are more than reinforcement of principles taught in the lecture component of the course. An extensive lab class may be thought of as a stand-alone course, requiring extensive homework assignments and exams.
- c. Criteria for determining an extensive preparation laboratory are as follows:
  - 1) The laboratory class requires the active continuing presence of the instructor with ongoing involvement in lecturing, demonstrating, or assisting the students;
  - The laboratory class requires extensive student preparation from text and lecture material prior to and after each laboratory session;

- 3) The laboratory class requires evaluation of student performance on a regular basis in the same manner as in non-laboratory classes;
- 4) The laboratory class requires the instructor to see that it is related to and correlated with an extensive classroom lecture program and is supplemented with assigned readings in texts;
- 5) The laboratory class requires that instructors are involved with professional development, equivalent to that in lecture courses, in order to maintain proficiency in the areas covered by the laboratory work;
- 6) The laboratory class is described in the course outline of record which clearly identifies compliance with the criteria above;
- 7) The laboratory class is comparable to similar labs in at least some community colleges and four-year institutions in the state of California, by one-to-one equivalency or by use of laboratory or teaching assistants.
- d. For the purposes of this Agreement, all current designated extensive preparation laboratories will retain their status unless changes occur via the curriculum approval process. During the normal program review process, the discipline faculty will examine the laboratory classes to see that they meet the express definitions in Article X, Section J, 2, a and b, and the specific criteria of Article X, J, 2, c, (1) through (7) above. Any decision to change the status will be made by majority vote of the members of the affected discipline and forwarded for consultation to the Vice President of Academic Affairs at each college where the course is offered, and next to the appropriate curriculum committees for approval. A proposed change in designation will be forwarded to the Vice Chancellor, Educational Services and Strategic Planning for endorsement prior to going to the Board for final approval. The Vice Chancellor, Educational Services and Strategic Planning will maintain a master list of extensive preparation laboratories.
- e. Clinical laboratories in the Nursing Education Department are designated extensive preparation for full-time faculty and are designated regular laboratory for associate faculty because of the different nature of the duties as outlined in their department operations manual.
- Laboratory, Activity, and Performance Classes: 18 contact hrs. = 0.0500 FTE (each hour = .0028 FTE)

(54 hours = .1500 FTE)

Laboratory and activity courses are those having as their primary function the development and practice of skills, or the participation in some activity, or preparation for public performance or varsity athletic contest. In addition, defensive tactics, physical training, and all practical exercises in the Administration of Justice and Fire Science basic schools shall be included in this section.

4. Counseling Faculty, Library Faculty, and Student Activity Coordinators: 18 contact hrs. = 0.0333 FTE.

(each hour = .00185 FTE) (54 hours = .1000 FTE)

- a. Counseling faculty shall be assigned an average full-time counseling assignment that results in thirty (30) hours of duties per week. Thirty (30) assigned hours shall include, but not be limited to, student appointments, walk-in counseling, student orientation and testing, special assignments, department meetings, and 2.5 hours of office preparation (prorated for counseling assignments less than 1.0000 FTE per semester). Library faculty and student activity coordinators shall be assigned an average full-time assignment which results in thirty (30) hours of duties per week. The duties described in Section H are in addition to such 30 hours.
- b. Counseling faculty, library faculty, student activity coordinators, and specific coordinators and directors who have responsibilities outside the normal fall and spring semesters will have 186 service days (10 additional six (6) hour service days beyond the standard faculty calendar). These ten (10) additional service days will be compensated prorate and be included in the faculty member's base pay for STRS purposes. Except by mutual agreement, these faculty members shall be guaranteed a period of six (6) consecutive weeks free of duty either between the spring and fall semesters or between the fall and spring semesters.

In the compressed calendar, in general, counseling faculty, library faculty and student activity coordinators work about a 42.5-hour work week (just as do all faculty under the compression). The scheduled contact time is calculated as follows with a 2:1 ratio: 30 contact hours x 18 (weeks) = 540-24 (typically four 6-hour days when regular faculty are not scheduled to work, such as on graduation, holidays, the Friday after Thanksgiving) = 516 divided by 16 (weeks) = 32.5 hours that must be scheduled per week. Although office hours are not regularly scheduled for this class of employees because of the unique nature of their duties, they do also have approximately a 42.5-hour work week as do all faculty under the compressed calendar. (And for all faculty, institutional service is not regularly scheduled, but is an ongoing, expected commitment.) If a counselor or librarian is teaching a course, the prep time associated for that course should be subtracted from their scheduled hours. For example, for a 3-unit course, there are three (3) hours of contact and three (3) hours of preparation. The preparation time should be subtracted out of the scheduled contact hours.

- c. The College will determine the dates and level of need for additional service outside of the normal fall and spring semesters; and then the faculty will indicate their ten (10) additional service days by College on the basis of seniority, except in areas where faculty have special assignments. These ten (10) additional service days will be indicated in the development of the Annual Teaching Assignment.
- d. If the college determines need for additional service, it will staff such positions (1) by requesting full-time faculty to volunteer service at the appropriate rate from the summer or hourly schedule or as replacement for days otherwise assigned during the regular school year, at the faculty member's request submitted to the department

chair and approved by the supervisor, or (2) by recruiting associate faculty at the appropriate hourly rate.

## 5. Large Group Instruction

In those areas where large group instruction is effective and mutually agreed upon by discipline, the affected faculty member, department chair, division dean and college Vice President of Academic Affairs, compensation will be paid based on enrollment at census as follows:

55 - 69 = .025 FTE compensation in the form of additional salary 70 - 89 = .050 FTE compensation in the form of additional salary 90 - 120 = .1000 FTE compensation in the form of load

For classes 90 - 120 for associate faculty, one (1) lecture hour will equal one and one-half (1.5) hours for the purposes of hourly compensation. This formula may be applied to distance education provided the faculty receive approval from the area dean, districtwide discipline, and the Association on a case-by-case basis each semester.

#### 6. Course Caps

The District agrees to maintain, for all locations and in all delivery modes, current course caps in all lecture, activity, and laboratory courses—unless the members of the affected district-wide discipline, the Vice President of Academic Affairs and President at each college where the course is offered, and the District Vice Chancellor, Educational Services and Strategic Planning agree to change current practice.

## 7. Additional or Revised Courses

Subsequent to the adoption of this article, all courses introduced into the curriculum or revised through the program review process shall be assigned one of three designations: Lecture and Theory Course; Extensive Preparation Laboratory; or Laboratory, Activity or Performance Class. This designation will be approved by the College and/or District Curriculum Committee prior to the time the course is presented to the Chancellor for action by the Board of Trustees.

## 8. Work Experience

- a. A contract assignment involving the instruction and supervision of work experience classes shall be calculated on the basis that each block of ten (10) students supervised shall equal 0.0666 FTE (10 students = 0.0666 FTE). A work experience instructor employed on an hourly or an overtime basis shall be paid solely on a per student basis as set forth in Appendix F.
- b. An instructor may receive no more than 0.2000 FTE for Work Experience Supervision. Exceptions to be determined by the area Dean and the College Vice President of Academic Affairs, and the exception with rationale is filed with the Vice Chancellor of Educational Services and Strategic Planning.

- c. Work Experience classes for full time faculty members should be included as an overload assignment on the associate faculty hourly pay scale due to: (1) the inconsistency of the number of work experience students enrolled in the course; and (2) due to the variety and flexibility of hours the student will be completing.
- d. Based on program and student need, full-time faculty members may carry as a portion of their contract load whatever FTE is agreed to by the area Dean and approved by the College Vice President of Academic Affairs, if sufficient enrollment is expected for the full-time faculty member to make contractual load.

## 9. Reassigned Time

Coordinator and Special Assignments requiring reassigned time will have job descriptions including responsibilities and representative duties. See Appendix F for listing of reassigned time allocated per position.

#### 10. Weekly Student Contact Hours

- a. The district-wide goal shall be 595 Weekly Student Contact Hours (WSCH) per full-time equivalent faculty (FTEF) calculated as of the first census date of the respective semester. Department or program WSCH/FTEF goals will be established by the District after meaningful consultation with the appropriate department, discipline, and Dean of Instruction. These goals shall be consistent with the nature of instruction and with the specific mix of offerings for the department or program. If the-WSCH/FTEF is below 595, as the case may be, after meaningful consultation with the appropriate Department Chairs and faculty members, the District will accomplish the WSCH/FTEF goals as it is practicable to do so by adjusting course section offerings, by adjusting teaching assignments, or by engaging in the Course Cap change process as outlined in Article X.J.6.
- b. Implementation of the District weekly student contact hour/ faculty full-time equivalent goals shall be accomplished through meaningful consultation within the respective departmental structure. Consultation will involve, among others, the respective college Presidents, Deans of Instruction, appropriate Department Chairs, and faculty members.
- c. It is recognized that the establishment or achievement of any WSCH/FTEF goal must actively seek to promote good education. Hence, any changes in class size or scheduling of offerings will take into account the nature of instruction, the availability of student instructional stations in classroom and/or laboratory facilities, student demand for offerings, program or sequence requirements, and the overall instructional integrity of the District. It is the intent of the District in attempting to reach the WSCH/ FTEF objectives to keep to a minimum significant alterations in overall District policies.

## K. Multiple Campus/Center Teaching Assignments

The District and the Association agree that multiple college/center/facility teaching assignments for full-time faculty are not in the best interests of the District. Full-time faculty shall not be required to teach at multiple colleges/centers/facilities unless a significant staffing emergency exists or a full-time faculty member is not otherwise able to make load. The District will attempt to fill multiple college/center/facility assignments with volunteers and/or associate faculty. If no volunteers or associate faculty exist, the District shall then select the least senior member from the discipline involved. For inter-facility responsibilities required by the District, faculty will be reimbursed for mileage based on IRS regulations.

#### L. Prison Education

In consideration of the fact that faculty teaching in local prisons must commute to and from multiple locations and endure other requirements as determined by the local prisons in order to teach in their sites, said faculty shall be compensated an additional one hour at the lab rate for each class taught as part of their assignment in the local prisons. This applies to full and associate faculty teaching RCCD courses in local prisons where they are not employed.

## M. Professional Development (FLEX)

As stated in Article IX.D, unless otherwise agreed upon, faculty will complete 24 hours per academic year of professional development (FLEX). The staff development days may be taken at any time during the year (July 1 through June 30) when not in conflict with contractual obligations. Eight (8) hours of these 24 hours shall be dedicated to equity-related training and education for the improvement of instruction. Faculty will submit documentation of completion of annual FLEX hours. Guidance and definitions of training/education in equity and social justice issues shall be recommended through collaboration among Faculty Development Committees, as standing committees of the Academic Senate, and the District Compliance Officer and Title IX Coordinator.

## N. Sexual Harassment Training

Full-time faculty may use up to two (2) FLEX hours to complete sexual harassment training. Newly hired faculty shall complete this training within six (6) months of their official start date with the District in said capacity and every two years, thereafter.

#### O. Institutional Service

Institutional service is both an essential part of faculty job requirements and is central to the functions of the colleges and the District. Fulfilling institutional service is necessary for full-time faculty to remain in good standing. In addition to teaching and service hours heretofore described all full-time faculty, counseling faculty, library faculty, and student activity coordinators shall complete the balance of their expected work week through

institutional service. The expectation is that full-time faculty perform five (5) hours of institutional service per week. Institutional service includes, but is not limited to, non-instructional professional responsibilities, such as updating and revising curriculum, participating in improvement of instruction committees, participating in career technical education (CTE) advisory committees, participating in program review and assessment projects and completing these documents, attending department meetings, and participating in discipline activities.

Full-time faculty will document their institutional service by providing an annual Institutional Service Plan, which is submitted by the end of the third week of the Fall term. The Plan is reviewed, approved, and maintained by the area Dean or designee. Faculty who do not fulfill their institutional service may lose good standing and may be subject to progressive disciplinary action by the area supervisor, which may occur in or outside of the Improvement of Instruction process. It is understood that participatory governance requires robust participation on committees and thus institutional service also includes substantive involvement on college or District committees and work groups (e.g., strategic planning committees, Academic Senate, accreditation, etc.), and/or serving as a club advisor for an active club. Attendance at graduation exercises is required.

#### P. Office Hours

Each full-time instructor shall maintain at least five (5) office hours per week spread over at least three (3) separate days at reasonable and appropriate times during the assigned academic calendar year to be devoted to student conferences. During the final examination week the faculty member may schedule the office hours in a manner other than on three (3) separate days. A schedule of office hours shall be posted on or adjacent to the faculty member's office door, and included on the Teaching Assignment form. During a compressed sixteen-week semester, contact and regular faculty shall hold one 60-minute office period for each .2000 FTE of their annual load. Those who teach part of their yearly assignment during the intersessions shall prorate their required office hours (.2000 = 1 hour).

Full-time instructors may conduct virtual office hours to provide reasonable access to students. There will be a maximum of three (3) virtual office hours.

Virtual office hours will be defined as the use of electronic (video conferencing or other real-time interaction) and/or other telecommunications technologies to communicate with students to address the needs of students who are enrolled in the course.

Schedule of virtual office hours must be submitted to the appropriate Dean for approval. Information regarding virtual office hours must be posted along with on-campus office hours within the designated area for posting such information, including all course syllabi.

## Q. Associate Faculty

 Associate faculty are employed on a semester-by-semester basis (with no contract implications), at the discretion of the District. Those associate faculty who have performed satisfactory service to the District may, in most instances, receive tentative assignments over new associate faculty applicants if associate faculty assignments are available in their area of qualification.

- 2. Associate faculty may not exceed 0.6700 FTE in any term (fall, winter, spring, summer) and may not exceed 1.34 FTE in an academic year (excluding winter and summer) subject to interpretation of the California Education Code and Title 5 Regulations. Under special circumstances exceptions can be provided on an individual case basis with Association and College President approval. Service as a substitute on a day-to-day basis and service in professional ancillary activities including, but not necessarily limited to, governance, institutional service, staff development, grant writing, special projects, and advising student organizations shall not be considered part of associate faculty load in accordance with Education Code 87482.5.
- 3. The District honors its commitment to associate faculty. After the start of a semester, if an associate faculty member has a class cancelled or reassigned to a full-time faculty member in the case of special circumstances as determined in consultation with the College president or designee, faculty member, and the Association, the associate faculty member shall be compensated for the hours that they provided instruction and/or for the first week of instruction, whichever is greater, and will receive compensation for one additional hour for each unit of the course at the lab rate for Group 1, Step 1 of the Faculty Hourly Salary Schedule (Appendix B).
- 4. The College Professional Development Committee in consultation with the College administration will identify orientation, training, and workshop or professional development opportunities that are available for associate faculty compensation. A total of three (3) hours compensation may be submitted for payment annually at Group 1, Step 1 of the Faculty Hourly Salary Schedule (Appendix B).
- 5. To facilitate associate faculty participation in discipline-directed assessment training, course level and/or program level assessment projects, the District will offer three (3) hours of compensation annually at Group 1, Step 1 of the Faculty Hourly Salary Schedule (Appendix B). Participating associate faculty will submit to their respective College Professional Development Committee a self-reflective narrative identifying the application of knowledge resulting from their participation in the three (3) hours of assessment related professional development activities. The results of an individual faculty member's assessment shall not be used as a criterion of evaluation.
- 6. To facilitate associate faculty participation in equitable student access and success, the District will compensate each participating associate faculty member up to three (3) hours of equity-related professional development.

## 7. Prison Education

In consideration of the fact that faculty teaching in local prisons must commute to and from multiple locations and endure other requirements as determined by the local prisons in order to teach in their sites, said faculty shall be compensated an additional one hour at the lab rate for each class taught as part of their assignment in the local prisons. This applies to full-time and associate faculty teaching RCCD courses in local prisons where they are not employed. This does not include associate faculty from prisons who are already stationed in those prisons.

#### 8. Dual Enrollment

In consideration of the fact that associate faculty must commute to and from multiple locations and endure other requirements as determined by the local high schools in order to teach in their sites, said associate faculty shall be compensated an additional one hour at the lab rate for each class taught as part of their assignment in Dual Enrollment. This applies only to associate faculty teaching in programs at high schools where they are not employed. This does not include associate or full-time faculty from local high schools who are already stationed in those high schools.

## 9. Sexual Harassment Training

In consideration of the additional time needed to complete sexual harassment training, associate faculty shall be compensated a total of two (2) hours to complete the training each time they are required to complete the training. Upon the completion of the sexual harassment training, the associate faculty member must submit a request for payment with proof of completion of the training via the appropriate tool or paperwork for claiming this benefit and other professional development/assessment hours. Newly hired associate faculty shall complete this training within six (6) months of their official start date with the District in said adjunct capacity and every two years, thereafter.

## R. Associate Faculty Reemployment Preference

#### 1. Reemployment Preference

- a. Reemployment Preference: Associate Faculty members who have reached certain thresholds as set forth below may apply for Reemployment Preference per course, "specific classes or take on specific assignments" from the District Office. The District Office will reply to the Associate Faculty member on the status of their application within 30 calendar days. A final determination will be made within 45 calendar days of submission.
- b. Minimum standards: Direct quotes of the minimum standards for reemployment preference, pursuant to section 87482.3 (B), include:
  - The length of time associate faculty member has served at the community college or district.
  - The number of courses associate faculty has taught at the community college or district.
  - 3) The evaluations [as delineated in Faculty Association agreement Article XI] of associate faculty conducted pursuant to Ed Code Section 87663 and other related methods of evaluation that can be reliably used to assess the educational impact of associate faculty as it relates to student success.
  - 4) The availability, willingness, and expertise of the associate faculty member to teach specific classes or take on specific assignments that are necessary for student instruction or service.
  - 5) Additional standards may be negotiated regarding the processes and procedures

for assigning associate faculty to teach courses or staff non-classroom assignments.

## 2. Assignment of Associate Faculty

- a. Right of assignment: The appropriate college administration maintains the right of assignment for all faculty assignments, both associate and full-time, and shall be established by college location at which the associate faculty have taught.
- b. To receive reemployment preference from Moreno Valley College, Norco College, or Riverside City College, the following criteria is used when making assignments for associate faculty:
  - Subject matter expertise of the associate faculty per course (e.g.) skills, abilities, or certificates possessed by faculty related to courses offered in a specific discipline (specialties).
  - 2) College-based associate faculty workload history teaching assignments at each of the individual colleges where Associate Faculty have:
    - i. taught at least 2.0 FTE per course (10 courses if 0.2) at the college the faculty are applying for preference. For counselors and librarians, the equivalent total number of hours is 1,215 (compressed calendar).
    - ii. Recency (within in past two years) of teaching or other relevant experience for assignment.
  - iii. [A semester shall be defined as either fall or spring semester.]
- c. Satisfactory evaluations: Associate faculty are assessed on a three-year Improvement of Instruction (IOI) cycle and must earn an overall satisfactory rating. Associate faculty satisfactory evaluations from the first, third and fifth terms of hire are on file and include both peer and student evaluations (or equivalent) from the college for which the associate faculty person is applying for reemployment preference.
- d. If an associate faculty has not been evaluated in accordance with the contractual standards, they may appeal to the dean to be evaluated in consecutive terms until they are eligible for reemployment preference.
- e. Availability/willingness of faculty to teach: Associate faculty shall indicate their availability to teach, as well as the classes that they prefer to teach, by completing Availability Forms that will be circulated at the appropriate times (See Appendix A). The forms must be submitted by the specified deadlines for consideration.
- f. Additional standards may be considered and established;
  Disciplines/Departments may outline "specialties" in Department
  Operations to determine "expertise" (see Appendix A).

- g. Upon satisfactory attainment of the above, an associate faculty shall be deemed to have Reemployment Preference.
- 3. Resolving concerns regarding teaching assignments: If associate faculty concerns regarding assignment cannot be resolved with the department chair; it shall be brought to the area dean. If the concerns are not resolved at the dean level, the issue shall be brought to the attention of the appropriate vice-president.
- 4. Applying for reemployment preference: Associate faculty may apply for reemployment preference per course in an academic discipline if they satisfy the criteria in paragraph 2, above, by submitting an application to their dean, which application must be verified by the District Office, where a list of associate faculty with reemployment preference each semester.
- 5. Effect of Reemployment preference:
  - Associate faculty certified with reemployment preference in an academic discipline will be offered an assignment in the discipline before an associate faculty without reemployment preference, provided that they are qualified for the assignment, using the criteria in section 2.b. above;
  - b. The college will attempt to maintain a course/assignment from semester-tosemester, as long as the factors in sections 1.b. and 2.b. above support that practice; and
  - All associate faculty, including those with reemployment preference, must indicate their availability to teach each semester, including summer/winter terms.
- 6. Losing Reemployment Preference: Associate faculty may lose reemployment preference if any of the following occur:
  - a. Associate faculty accepts and then rejects or fails to complete an assignment without a compelling reason for so doing. A faculty member who performs service only each fall, or each spring, or in the summer, will not be deemed to have rejected an assignment in the other semesters in which he or she does not normally work:
  - Associate faculty fails to adhere to District/College policies and procedures, violates or refuses to obey laws, regulations, or published practices of the District/College;
  - Associate faculty receives an overall rating of "Needs Improvement" in the IOI
    process for two consecutive semesters; or
  - d. Associate faculty receives an overall rating of "Unsatisfactory" in the IOI process for a single semester.
- 7. Unavailability of courses: In the event that there are more associate faculty

- instructors with reemployment preference than there are available teaching assignments, reemployment preference shall be determined by consideration of:
- a. The number of semesters the instructor has taught at RCCD.
- b. The number of times the instructor has taught the course to be assigned.
- c. If a tie remains, the class shall be assigned by the drawing of lots.
- 1) "Bumping." From time-to-time, an assignment may be canceled, for instance, due to low enrollment or a full-time faculty member is hired. In the event that an associate faculty with reemployment preference, who has been assigned a single course, is left with no assignment, the associate faculty with preference shall have the opportunity to bump an associate faculty without preference for a course. A cancellation shall not change the reemployment preference status of the affected associate faculty.
- 8. Full Time Faculty Retirees: Preference is given to full time faculty who retire for the first semester that they are eligible to teach. Retired faculty will be evaluated during the first semester serving as part time faculty and if they receive satisfactory, they will be eligible to apply for preference and be considered on the three-year cycle.
- 9. Evaluation Cycle: If an associate faculty member, on the three-year evaluation cycle, receives a 'needs improvement 'or 'unsatisfactory' evaluation, then two senior faculty members of the discipline (or closely related discipline) shall review the evaluation and, if the two senior faculty members find that the 'needs improvement' or 'unsatisfactory' was not warranted, they will write a written report to be included in the final evaluation. It is understood that a "needs improvement" or 'unsatisfactory' evaluation does not in any way guarantee an assignment in the next term.
- 10. Temporary employment: Pursuant to section 87482.3(d) of the Education Code, "In all cases, part-time faculty assignments shall be temporary in nature, contingent on enrollment and funding, and subject to program changes, and no part-time faculty member shall have reasonable assurance of continued employment at any point, irrespective of the status, length of service, or reemployment preference of that part-time faculty members."
- 11. Policies for Associate Faculty Termination:
  - a. Unavailability of courses for more than two years.
  - Failure to adhere to District/College policies and procedures, violates or refuses to obey laws, regulations, or published practices of the District/College.
  - Overall "Needs Improvement" rating in the IOI process for two consecutive semesters.

d. Overall "Unsatisfactory" rating in the IOI process for a single semester.

### S. Contact Hour

For purposes of this Agreement and calculations of workload measures, a "contact hour" is fifty (50) minutes in an 18-week semester; however, in a compressed 16-week semester, a "contact hour" is sixty (60) minutes.

# T. Notification of Teaching Assignment

The colleges shall make reasonable efforts to notify faculty members of their tentative teaching assignments no later than the time at which the initial schedule is submitted for publication. It is understood that such tentative assignments are subject to change. To the extent possible, associate faculty shall be notified of assignments at least six (6) weeks in advance.

# U. Consecutive Class Hours

Faculty members shall not be assigned, in a given workday, more than three (3) consecutive (uninterrupted) lecture or class hours, or more than two (2) lecture or class hours preceded or followed by one (1) laboratory period, or more than two (2) consecutive laboratory periods. Exceptions may be permitted in cases where a faculty member agrees. Excluded from this provision are non-teaching assignments and teaching assignments in activity classes.

# V. Preparations

No more than three (3) preparations (different courses) per academic semester, or five (5) per academic year, shall be assigned to a faculty member, except where a faculty member agrees to a different type of teaching assignment, or where program structure dictates otherwise (e.g., Dental Technology, Nursing, Kinesiology).

### W. Overload Assignments

1. Full-time faculty members in good standing, as defined in Article I, shall be limited to a maximum overload of 0.6700 FTE per term. Classes suitable for overload assignment shall be made available to qualified full-time faculty before being offered to associate faculty. Overload begins to accrue when primary term contract load is exceeded (as defined in Article X.D). A full-time faculty member may only replace an associate faculty member for an overload assignment prior to the first day of class. All instructional and/or faculty duties (including counseling, consortium/educational partnerships, adult education, contract education, special

projects, special assignments, and/or other work) done under the direction of or in the name of the District (whether credit or non-credit) for which faculty receive compensation from District resources or from monies paid to the District whether from general or restricted funds shall be calculated as part of faculty load (Article X, Section F) and compensated from the certificated salary schedules, except as articulated in Article XX, Sections G and H. Substitute teaching during any term, special projects work for institutional service in the winter and summer terms, and stipends are excluded from this calculation.

- Where associate faculty assignments are available, preference will be given to full-time faculty members who request an overload assignment and meet the minimum qualifications. An associate faculty assignment (or overload) to a full-time faculty member or the reassignment from an associate faculty member to a full-time faculty for overload purposes shall be from the college/campus/center where the regular, full-time faculty member has the majority of their assignment. If no associate faculty assignment is available in the faculty member's discipline at the college/campus/center where the majority of their assignment is, then the full-time faculty member may choose an assignment from available courses or a reassignment from an associate faculty from another location. However, no full-time member will be required to accept an overload assignment.
- 3. If a class that is part of a full-time faculty member's contract load is canceled due to insufficient enrollment, the overload assignment of that faculty member shall be counted as the necessary part of the contract assignment.
- 4. If a portion of a full-time faculty member's contract load is canceled due to insufficient enrollment, and they have no overload assignment to be applied toward the completion of a contract assignment, a similar course(s) shall be "bumped" from an associate faculty on the campus/ center where the regular, full-time faculty member has the majority of their assignment, unless they elect to take the bumped assignment at another location. Where a reassignment from an associate faculty member is unavailable, similar course or courses shall be reassigned from the overload(s) of full-time faculty members at the campus/center where the regular full-time faculty member has the majority of their assignment unless they elect to take the reassignment at another location.
- 5. With the approval of the Vice President of Academic Affairs or designee, faculty members may work an overload before 2:00 p.m. if one is available, if it is in the best interests of the College, and if it does not interfere with other professional obligations listed in Article X, Section O.
- 6. When it appears that a faculty member has exceeded the limitation, the exception will be referred to a committee of two (2) Association and two (2) Administrative designees who will make a recommendation for stopping the exception prospectively, including reduction of overload to compensate for past excess.

#### X. Negotiating Reassigned Time

1. All Reassigned time, whether contractual or non-contractual, must be negotiated for or agreed upon in consultation with the Association. Reassigned time is equivalent to hours spent both for contact and for preparation. For example, a .2 would be 6.5 hours as it replaces 3.25 hours of contact and 3.25 hours of preparation.

### Definitions:

- a. Reassigned Time is a deliberate agreement that reassigns full-time faculty from teaching duties to tasks not included in normal contractual duties.
- b. Contractual Reassigned Time is an assignment that has been negotiated and included in the faculty contract in Appendices D, E, F.
- c. Categorical Reassigned Time is a grant or one-time funded assignment to develop or implement a project or initiative.
- d. Temporary Reassigned Time is a multi-term assignment to develop a new program or initiative that does not exceed one (1) consecutive 16-week term.

# 3. Reassigned Time Principles for Implementation

- a. A list of performance expectations and duties relevant to the reassignment will be developed prior to an offer of reassigned time.
- Offers of reassigned time shall be made public and available to all qualified faculty in good standing.
- c. Faculty members may elect to accept a reassigned time opportunity.
- d. The reassigned time may be used in the fall and spring semesters with a schedule approved by the appropriate academic supervisor.
- e. Once the appropriate dean or vice president of academic affairs approves the reassigned time, the affected areas will be notified.
- f. All categorical reassigned time, though part of load, is excluded from negotiations even if it exceeds the two (2) semester timeframe.
- g. The District has the right to grant and remove reassigned time to faculty that is not contained in the Collective Bargaining Agreement or "contractual" as set forth above.
- h. Any non-contractual reassigned time that extends beyond one (1) consecutive semester will be brought to the Association for possible contractual status.
- Once reassign time becomes contractual, it shall be available at all three colleges unless it is negotiated as college specific.
- 4. Guidelines for development of reassigned time activities:

- a. These expectations will include, but are not limited to, the purpose of the assignment, specific objectives, expected outcomes, planned timelines, a periodic schedule of activities, and percentage of a full load reassignment and its equivalent of a 42.5-hour work week
- b. These expectations will provide the basis for evaluations of the faculty member's performance by the appropriate administrator and recommendation for continuation in the reassignment.
- c. This evaluation is to occur annually and may occur each semester.
- d. Faculty who are not recommended for continuation in the reassigned time assignment shall not be eligible for continuation in the assignment the following year.

# Y. Special Projects

- Definition: Special Projects are short-term assignments conducted outside regular contractual load and duties to accomplish specific outcomes.
- Any special project that extends beyond two (2) consecutive semesters will be brought to the Association for possible contractual status.
- 3. Special Projects funded by grant, categorical, or other one-time funding may extend beyond two (2) consecutive semesters and do not require Association approval.
- Offers of special projects shall be made public and available to all qualified faculty in good standing.
- 5. Faculty who receive special projects may be subject to evaluation of performed activities and duties by the approving administrator. If faculty do not fulfill their professional duties or meet the outlined outcomes, then they may not be eligible for future special projects for the minimum of an academic year.
- 6. Once the appropriate dean or vice president of academic affairs approves the special project, the affected areas will be notified.
- Special projects load must be applied to the teaching assignment for the term in which it is designated.

# Z. Department Chairperson Selection, Compensation, and Duties

- 1. All Department Chairpersons shall receive an annual flat stipend per the appropriate salary schedule for fulfilling duties as Department Chairperson.
- 2. In those instances where faculty head counts (full and associate) exceed 100, chairs will receive an additional flat stipend per the appropriate salary schedule.

- 3. Department Chairs and other elected positions shall be selected and compensated as set forth below:
  - a. Eligibility. A Department Chair shall be selected from regular members in good standing as defined in Article I, Section D, who are assigned to the affected department. A contract faculty member in good standing shall be eligible only where the department (by majority vote) provides compelling reasons in writing to the President. Assistant Department Chairs or other positions designated by the department shall have the same eligibility requirements, except that contract faculty may serve after completing two (2) full years of service in the District if no regular faculty member chooses to serve. (Such vote or selection shall not have any effect or bearing on any tenure decisions by the District with respect to such faculty members.) Where no qualified candidate for the Chair position is available within the department, the department may recommend to the District to hire from the outside. When such hiring is authorized by the District, the District will follow normal search and hiring policies.
  - b. Procedure for Selection. The initial recommendation for appointment as Department Chair and other positions designated by the department shall be based upon an election within the affected academic department. Departments shall elect a Chair and designate how any reassigned time that exceeds the .6 semester FTE maximum for the Chair shall be allocated within the department. Every contract and regular faculty member as defined in Article I, Sections D (1) and (2) shall be assigned to an academic department and shall be eligible to vote in such department. Voting privileges are not extended to temporary (one-year) faculty. No faculty member shall be eligible to vote in more than one department. All elections shall be by secret ballot and the person who receives a majority of votes from those eligible to vote (whether or not actually voting) shall constitute the departmental recommendation for either the Chair, Assistant Chair, or other positions designated by the department. Separate elections for Chair (or Co-Chair) position(s), the Assistant Chair(s), or other positions designated by the department shall take place. In departments with Co- Chairs or more than one additional elected position, the two (2) individuals who receive a majority of votes shall be the departmental recommendation. In the event three (3) or more persons receive a majority of votes, the two (2) with the greatest number of votes shall be the departmental recommendations. If a tie occurs between two (2) candidates, a run-off election shall take place, and the individual receiving the majority of votes shall be the recommendation from the department.

The existing Department Chair shall report the results and the recommendation(s) to the President. The President may either accept or reject the recommendation(s). If the President rejects the recommendation(s), the President will state his or her reasons in writing for such rejection. Upon such rejection, the affected department shall conduct another secret ballot election to recommend an acting Department Chair or Assistant Chair (for a maximum

of one (1) semester). During such semester the department shall conduct another election for a faculty member to serve as Department Chair or Assistant Chair for a normal term.

If no person receives a majority vote for Department Chair or other elected position after three (3) secret ballots, a run-off election shall be held between the two (2) candidates receiving the most votes in the third secret ballot. If the department is electing two (2) or more positions, and neither of the candidates has received a clear majority, a run-off election shall be conducted, and the individuals receiving the greatest number of votes shall be the departmental recommendations.

If a department cannot elect a Department Chair, the President shall appoint an administrator as a temporary Chair.

c. Term of Department Chair. The term for a Department Chair, Co-Chairs, Assistant Chair(s) or other positions designated by the department shall be three (3) years commencing after the last contractual working day of the spring semester of the year in which the selection is made. (The terms of the Department Chair, Co-Chairs, Assistant Chair(s), or other positions designated by the department shall run concurrently.) Elections shall be held in April. Since it is desirable to maintain a staggered election system to avoid a complete turnover of Department Chair in anyone (1) year, terms of the current Department Chairs shall be continued through their full term and the elections will be held on the existing cycle.

The selection process provided above shall be followed with respect to selecting an acting Department Chair in the event of an extended leave period for an existing Department Chair.

d. Removal of the Department Chair. The President may remove a Department Chair for incompetent service and neglect of duties and in such event shall provide notice to the person and the department at least ten (10) days prior to such removal. The Department Chair shall be provided written reasons for such action. The President shall consult with members of the department before taking final action. After such removal, the department shall hold a new election pursuant to the above specified procedures to fill the unexpired portion of such Department Chair's position.

At the written request of two-thirds of the eligible faculty members of an affected department, the President shall establish a formal hearing to determine whether or not a Department Chair should be recalled. All voting members of the department shall be consulted. If after consultation the President determines to recall the Department Chair, the department shall hold a new election pursuant to the above specified procedures to fill the unexpired portion of such Department Chair's term.

Removal of faculty members serving in other position(s) designated by the

department shall be determined by the written rules and regulations of the department.

e. Compensation of Department Chair. A Department Chair shall receive a stipend for fulfilling his or her duties as Department Chair from the first full service day through commencement of the academic year. The stipend will be added to the Chair's base salary by annotation of Appendix A. (Two Co-Chairs shall share the stipend in proportions as determined by the department.) Other positions designated by the department do not receive additional compensation.

Departments shall also be allocated reassigned time from a normal teaching load as follows:

<u>Headcount</u>	Semester FTE Reassignment
<u>0-24</u>	<u>.30</u>
<u>25-29</u>	<u>.4</u>
<u>30-34</u>	<u>.5</u>
<u>35-39</u>	<u>.6</u>
<u>40-47</u>	<u>.7</u>
<u>48-55</u>	<u>.8</u>
<u>56-64</u>	<u>.9</u>
<u>65+</u>	<u>1.0</u>

At the discretion of the Department, Chair(s) may be allowed to go to .6 reassigned within the allocation.

Chairs of departments where faculty headcounts exceed 100 will receive a stipend per the appropriate department faculty salary schedule.

NOTE: THIS CALCULATION WILL BE IMPLEMENTED ONLY IF IT PRODUCES A LOGICAL AND REASONABLE PRODUCT. THIS DECISION WILL BE JOINTLY MADE BY THE DISTRICT AND THE ASSOCIATION. A count of all full-time and associate faculty will be taken as of the census date of the fall semester, the winter intersession, and the spring semester. The department count totals will be divided by two (2). The resulting number of headcount full-time and associate faculty will become the basis for the calculation of departmental reassigned time for the following academic year. The departmental reassigned time per semester will be allocated based on the chart above.

The figures in the chart above represent minimum reassigned FTE. The District will consider additional reassigned FTE for special or changing

conditions, including consideration where there are multiple small disciplines.

In consideration of the stipend and the reassigned time, a Department Chair is expected to devote the time necessary to fulfill the responsibilities of such a position. At a minimum, a Department Chair will schedule regular weekly Chair office hours equal to 1.5 hours per .100 semester FTE reassigned. Each semester they will notify, in writing, all of the department's full- and associate faculty, classified staff, and the appropriate dean of instruction of these regularly scheduled Chair office hours. It is understood that some of these contact hours will involve meetings and/or other District related activities at various college/District sites. Appropriate notice will be posted when the Department Chair is out of their office on related District business. These hours will be included on the Chair's Teaching Assignment form. When the Vice President of Academic Affairs/Educational Services or designee determines that the duties of the Department Chair or other faculty elected to positions designated by the department to be on the premises of the College after commencement to the first service day, the faculty will be compensated at the activity/laboratory rate (Column 1, step 3 of the Hourly Salary Schedule, Appendix B). to a maximum of \$1,000 for departments with 51 or more headcount and a maximum of \$450 for departments with fewer than 50 headcount. If the Department Chair is not available to perform such duties, he or she will first name a faculty member elected to a position designated by the department or, if such a faculty position does not exist, a faculty member approved by the department to act in his or her stead. If no such designee is named or if such designee is not available, the appropriate Dean of Instruction will carry out the District's responsibilities for the educational program under the terms of Article III. Section A.

#### f. Miscellaneous Provisions

- a) No faculty member shall be required to serve as a Department Chair.
- b) A Department Chair who elects to resign their position shall provide at least 30-day notice in writing of such intention to both the President and the members of the department.

# 4. Department Chair Duties

The Department Chair is a faculty leadership position with responsibility for an instructional department as designated by the District. While the Department Chair is a faculty member and does not have the authority to discipline other faculty, the Department Chair does have the responsibility to carry out policies formulated by the District and the Department, and the responsibility to report unresolved problems or violations of District policy to the appropriate administrator, and the responsibility to coordinate the activities of the department. The Department Chair receives compensation as provided for in Appendix G of this contract and performs

the duties set below. Chairs are first and foremost faculty. To do their jobs effectively, they shall be provided by the Administration with appropriate data in already usable form and given sufficient windows of time in which to complete scheduling and other essential functions.

- a. Provides opportunity for faculty participation in decision-making, maintains appropriate office hours, convenes and chairs regular meetings of the department, and communicates actions and information concerning District policies and procedures. Attends campus chair meetings.
- b. Oversees the integrity of programs and courses within the department by ensuring that individual courses are taught according to the approved course outlines through coordinating and participating in the faculty evaluation processes for full- and associate faculty as outlined in the negotiated contract Article XI.
- c. Within parameters established by the District/College, develops class schedules—offerings, locations, times, rooms—and prepares teaching assignments to recommend to the College, which maintains right of assignment.
- d. Provides leadership for program and curriculum planning and development as well as leadership in developing, advocating, and accomplishing departmental objectives through overseeing assessment efforts, coordinating the program review process and the formulation of reports for the Office of Academic Affairs/Services, and providing guidance on grading and performance standards.
- e. Recruits, interviews, and recommends for employment appropriate associate faculty and substitutes to meet the needs of the department in accordance with District policies, and provides leadership for associate faculty through coordinating orientation, mentoring, and providing instructional materials.
- f. Monitors procedures—such as credit by examination, course substitutions, grade changes, incomplete contracts—and student petitions regarding adds, drops, and complaints.
- Mediates student complaints in accordance with College and District policies.
- In accordance with departmental policy, monitors book orders and instructional materials, and orders and promotes appropriate library resource development.
- i. Monitors area facilities and equipment and communicates maintenance needs to the appropriate resource.
- j. Develops and recommends the department budget, oversees expenditures

including travel requests, and maintains fiscal controls.

- k. Depending on the needs of the department, coordinates the activities of the allocated classified staff of the department and participates in the evaluation process of classified personnel.
- Serves as an ex officio member of subcommittees if the department has these and maintains records of their actions.
- m. Represents the department with community, governmental agencies, and advisory groups.
- n. Encourages continued study and participation in professional organizations to maintain an understanding of current ideas, research, and practices related to the discipline, by passing on to faculty members in the department notices that come to the chair regarding professional development opportunities, conferences, etc.

# 5. Departmental Operations

The Department is an academic unit of the College and has the responsibility for the academic disciplines under its jurisdiction. Under the convening and representative authority of the Chair, each department functions as a community of teachers and scholars working collegially. To ensure consistency, all departments will follow the operational guidelines listed below:

- a. By majority vote, all departments will develop a written list of decision-making responsibilities delegated to the Chair by the department such as articulation appeals, the hiring of associate faculty in accordance with District policy, schedule development, student complaints, general office supply purchases, etc. A copy will be sent to the appropriate Dean of Instruction.
- b. By majority vote, all departments will establish written criteria for developing teaching assignments - such as seniority, rotation, special preparation/training, etc. that are not explicitly guaranteed in the Agreement. A copy will be sent to the appropriate Dean of Instruction.
- c. All major decisions not explicitly delegated by the department to the Chair(s) shall be by majority vote of the regular and contract faculty of the department. Major decisions include, but are not limited to, budget recommendations, remodeling requests, major equipment purchases, changes in curriculum, and program review of documents and plans. These decisions will be recorded in the department minutes and sent to the appropriate Dean of Instruction.
- d. All departments must have a general faculty meeting at least once a month.

All faculty must be afforded the opportunity to contribute items for the agenda, which must be given to all members of the department three (3) business days before the meeting. Copies of the meeting minutes and agendas - including the names of the faculty members present or not present - will be forwarded to the appropriate Dean of Instruction.

- e. All regular and contract faculty, as part of their general responsibilities as full-time members of the College faculty, are expected to participate equally in the business of the department. The responsibilities include, but are not limited to, participating in the program review process and the formulation of program review documents, representing the department on college-wide committees, assessment projects, developing and revising curriculum, serving on departmental subcommittees, etc.
- f. Contract and regular faculty members of the department will assist the Chair and/or the Assistant Chair(s) in hiring and evaluating associate faculty. Each department will develop a regular rotation to ensure that contract and regular faculty share the responsibility equally. Associate faculty may be hired only after an interview that includes, at a minimum, two full-time members of the department, one of whom must be a member of the discipline or related discipline of the applicant.
- g. Departments may develop other rules and regulations not explicitly addressed in the Agreement. A copy will be sent to the appropriate Dean of Instruction.

# ARTICLE XI – IMPROVEMENT OF INSTRUCTION AND TENURE REVIEW

# A. Purpose of Evaluation

1. Given that the primary mission of each college and the District is to cultivate a supportive, equitable, and inclusive environment for students that promotes the access and success of a diverse student body, strengthening the instructional skills and professional contributions of all faculty members is vital to fulfill our responsibilities to the community, the State, and the relevant accrediting body. As faculty play an essential role in the delivery of instruction and the academic integrity of the institution, making continuous improvement the goal of evaluation is foundational to teaching and learning.

In this article, full-time faculty is described as contract faculty (non-tenure track and tenure-track) and regular (tenured).

- The purpose of the evaluation procedure set forth in this article is to assess the
  performance of the College faculty, with emphasis on the strengthening of
  instruction and pedagogy to make recommendations toward continued employment.
- 3. For contract faculty, the purpose of evaluation is to monitor and to assist the contract faculty member in meeting the responsibilities for the position under which they were hired (as specified in the job announcement), to assess and advise the contract faculty member of their professional strengths and areas needing improvement, and to make reasonable efforts to encourage and aid them to overcome any deficiencies. The purpose of this process is to determine if the contract faculty member continues to exhibit the professional competencies and qualifications consistent with the job description, or assignment made by the College in the intervening time, and to contribute such information to the process of decision making for the retention of contract faculty.
- 4. For regular faculty, the purpose of evaluation is to assess professional performance and contributions, to identify strengths and areas in need of improvement, and to provide support for improvement of instruction in order to advance the mission of the College and District.
- 5. For associate faculty, the purpose of evaluation is to assess the professional performance of the associate faculty, to advise the faculty member of their professional strengths and areas in need of improvement, and to provide support in the improvement of their instruction.

# B. Faculty Expectations

- 1. Full-time faculty expectations include all of the following but are not limited to:
  - Will be thorough in carrying out the assigned duties as outlined in the job description, including librarians, counselors, student activities coordinators, and athletic coaches.
  - b. Will be regularly involved in professional development activities in order to increase expertise in both subject matter, teaching techniques, or other duties as outlined in the job description.
  - c. Will cooperate with the department chair and colleagues in planning and implementing curricular and other educational projects.
  - d. Will participate in program development, program review, and assessment of program and student learning outcomes.
  - e. Will develop and utilize effective pedagogical techniques in order to enhance the communication of ideas and promote optimal student learning, critical thinking, and performance skills.
  - f. Will teach information that reflects current scholarship in their respective field and is in compliance with the current course outline of record.
  - Will adhere to ethical principles governing interactions with students and colleagues.
  - Will be prompt and regular in attendance at all class meetings and adhere to scheduled dismissal times.
  - Will be prompt and regular in attendance at all department, committee, and College-wide meetings.
  - j. Will prepare all records and reports accurately and completely within established deadlines. Reports include but are not limited to census reports, positive attendance, and grade rosters.
  - k. Will be involved in the total program of the College to fulfill their institutional service (See Article X. O).
  - 1. Will keep scheduled office hours and fulfill obligations as to presence on campus.
  - m. Will maintain current knowledge of department goals, planning agenda, assessment activities, and curriculum development.
  - will use their subject matter expertise to cultivate a supportive and inclusive environment that promotes equitable access and success for a diverse student body.

- 2. Associate Faculty expectations include all of the following but are not limited to:
  - Will cooperate and communicate with their department chair or dean, as appropriate.
  - b. Will develop and utilize effective pedagogical techniques in order to enhance the communication of ideas and promote optimal student learning, critical thinking, and performance skills.
  - c. Will teach information that reflects current scholarship in their respective field and is in compliance with the current course outline of record.
  - d. Will adhere to ethical principles governing interactions with students and colleagues.
  - e. Will be prompt and regular in attendance at all class meetings and adhere to scheduled dismissal times.
  - f. Will prepare all records and reports accurately and completely within established deadlines. Reports include but are not limited to census reports, positive attendance, and grade rosters.
  - g. Will use their subject matter expertise to cultivate a supportive and inclusive environment that promotes equitable access and success for a diverse student body.

# C. Frequency of Evaluation

- 1. Every contract faculty member shall be evaluated formally during the first semester of employment and in the fall semester of each of the following three (3) years.
- 2. Every regular faculty member shall be evaluated once every three (3) years, usually in the spring semester.
- 3. Every associate faculty member shall be evaluated during the first term of hire (winter and summer included), once each year for the next two (2) years, and at least once every three (3) years thereafter. However, if an associate faculty member is assigned a class at a second college in the District within this cycle, that college shall have the right to evaluate the associate faculty member in the first semester at that college. The evaluation at the second college shall reset the cycle. When an associate faculty member teaches at two (2) or more colleges within the District when the regular evaluation is due, then the department chairs or their designees at each college should confer to determine which college will perform the evaluation. Associate faculty reemployment preference is addressed in Article X, Section R.

- 4. If an associate faculty member does not have an assignment for a year, upon return the evaluation cycle will begin as in the first term of hire and thereafter, following a satisfactory evaluation, the three-year cycle will resume. If the break in service in the District is more than a year, the associate faculty member shall be evaluated consistent with the process for a newly hired associate faculty member.
- 5. Full-time categorically funded faculty will be evaluated formally during the first semester of employment and in the Fall semester of each of the following three (3) years. Once these four (4) formal evaluations are completed satisfactorily, full-time categorical faculty will be evaluated once every three (3) years thereafter, usually in the Spring semester in a manner consistent with the evaluation process for regular faculty.

Participation in the evaluation cycle does not obligate the District to rehire or grant tenure to faculty who are categorically funded. However, if a full-time categorically funded faculty member is hired into a tenure-track position, a maximum of three (3) previous full-time categorical evaluations will be credited toward the tenure track process as long as there was never a break in service to the District of more than two (2) consecutive years, the full-time position constituted at least 75%, of a full-time load, and the minimum qualifications for the categorical position(s) were the same (or higher level) than the minimum qualifications for the tenure-track position. If a full-time categorical faculty member does have a break in service of two (2) consecutive years, upon return the evaluation cycle will begin in the first term of hire and thereafter, following a satisfactory evaluation, the three (3) year cycle will resume.

Full-time categorical faculty evaluations anywhere in the District can be credited toward a future tenure-track faculty position in the same manner that tenure-track evaluations anywhere in the District can be credited toward the tenure process. However, if a full-time categorical faculty member is assigned a categorical position at another college at any time within the evaluation cycle, that college shall have the right to evaluate the categorical faculty member in the first semester at that college. Furthermore, if the District fails to initiate the evaluation process when necessary, that will not constitute a break in service or negatively impact the faculty member.

# D. Evaluation Procedures

The three distinct evaluation review processes for contract, regular, and associate faculty are outlined below.

# 1. For Contract Faculty

a. A tenure review and evaluation committee shall be formed and meet during the first six (6) weeks of employment. This committee shall serve as a standing committee until the contract faculty member is granted tenure or has their contract non-renewed. The committee shall consist of three (3) tenured faculty in the contract faculty member's discipline (or closely related discipline if tenured faculty are not

available in the District), the Department Chair or designee, and an academic administrator, or in the case of faculty coaches, the Athletic Director, who will chair the committee. Department Chairs shall appoint the tenured faculty members to the committee. At least one tenured faculty member who served on the contract member's initial hiring committee shall be appointed. If a vacancy on the committee occurs before the committee has completed its responsibilities, a replacement tenured faculty member shall be selected by the Department Chair or, if an administrator, by the President or their designee. All tenured faculty have a professional obligation to serve on one or more tenure review committees as part of their professional responsibilities. They may serve but are not required to serve on more than two (2) committees. The contract faculty member undergoing review shall be present at all meetings of the review committee.

- b. Scope and Process: The scope and process meeting is a crucial component of the faculty evaluation that ensures a professional and collegial process while also determining the latitude and extent of discussion. All committee members are expected to attend the scope and process meeting. During the evaluation process, the committee cannot discuss or consider anything not agreed upon by the entire committee during the original scope and process meeting. The committee's primary duty is to make a recommendation regarding the contract faculty member's continued service to the District. The committee should assist the contract faculty member in meeting and fulfilling the job-responsibility criteria set forth in the job announcement under which the contract faculty member was appointed, including but not limited to the basic function, duties, and responsibilities. Using the criteria in the advertised job announcement, the committee, in consultation with the contract faculty member, shall establish:
  - 1) the scope, and process will follow in evaluating the performance and professional competencies of the contract faculty member; and
  - the manner by which the contract faculty member can receive assistance during the evaluation process.
    - The committee chair will send a written record of the scope and process determined to all committee members and to the contract faculty member within five (5) working days of the committee's initial meeting. At the request of the faculty member undergoing review or member(s) of the tenure and evaluation committee, the committee may convene during spring as a follow up to the formal review completed during the fall semester.
- c. As mandatory components during the faculty evaluation process, the review committee's yearly report shall include written administrative and peer reviews based on:

- 1) Classroom visitations from each member of the committee. For instructors teaching online, one of the classroom visitations must be an online section;
- Student surveys of all classes (or alternative instruments for non-teaching faculty);
- 3) Establishment of tentative professional growth goals;
- 4) Annual institutional service plan;
- 5) Annual flex obligation;
- 6) Evidence of subject-matter proficiency;
- 7) Faculty syllabi; and
- 8) Faculty Expectations listed in Article XI.B.1.

The review by the committee will include evaluation of distance education (online and hybrid) instruction if such instruction is part of the teaching assignment.

If agreed upon by the committee, the faculty member undergoing evaluation may be asked to provide examples of teaching and assignment materials to ensure that they adhere to the course outline of record. The review committee may also evaluate professional traits such as time-management, dependability, and respectful collegiality.

Each member of the committee shall write a narrative statement supporting their initial overall evaluation of the contract faculty member's fulfillment of the job responsibilities as outlined in Article X. After completion of the formal report, the committee may review, for informational purposes only, the contract faculty member's grade distribution, equitable access and success data, and retention statistics. This information shall not be part of the formal review process or report.

- d. The faculty under evaluation shall provide a self-reflective narrative statement that addresses how the faculty member fulfills institutional service obligations, including support of equitable student access and success. The narrative should also address other non-instructional duties for which the faculty receives reassigned time.
- e. Follow-up Meeting: All committee members are expected to attend the follow-up meeting to present their evaluations and written summaries in person. Committee conversation regarding all materials presented in the follow-up meeting is a crucial part of the evaluation process and allows for careful consideration of all observations and assessments in each member's evaluation. Any other discussion of the report is limited by the scope of the evaluation. Elective and representative duties can only be discussed for non-evaluative purposes. Discussion of duties associated with other reassigned time cannot form the basis for a needs improvement determination. The committee shall not include documents other than those produced or requested by the review committee in the tenure record, except by agreement of the members of the committee.
- f. Contract faculty members have the right to respond in writing to any documents placed in the tenure review and evaluation record.

g. Continuation of Contract: By the end of the first semester of employment and by the end of the fall semester of each year thereafter, by majority vote, the committee shall make a recommendation for renewal or non-renewal of contract to the College President for action as specified under the law. The final vote can only be cast by those present at the follow up meeting after careful deliberation of all agreed upon reports and materials.

In the event that a majority of the committee determines that there is a "Need for Improvement," the committee will write a plan for improvement for the faculty member within 10 working days and provide specific and measurable goals that they deem are attainable in the time period set for improvement. Faculty members with a "Need for Improvement" are not considered in good standing. Upon agreement by the review committee and faculty member under review, a regular full-time faculty member will be assigned as a faculty mentor who will provide overall support and guidance in the remediation process as outlined in the measurable goals. Based on the areas needing improvement, the faculty mentor may be a member of the review committee, the discipline, or a faculty member on a professional development committee. The faculty mentor will provide to the review committee an overall written assessment and evaluation of the success of the faculty under review in attaining the needed improvement.

This "Need for Improvement Plan" shall begin in the Spring semester following the semester in which the "Need for Improvement" rating is received, and the plan shall become part of the tenure review and evaluation record. The committee shall meet in the Spring semester following the semester in which the "Need for Improvement" is received to discuss if improvement was achieved based on the remediation plan provided to the faculty member under review. The review committee will provide feedback on the progress attained thus far. To determine improvement according to the "Need for Improvement Plan," the committee may conduct any type of administrative, peer, and/or student evaluation it deems necessary in assessing the Contract Faculty member's performance and in providing further guidance for improving instruction and/or professional performance set out in the Plan's specific and measurable goals. The Contract Faculty member shall write a narrative addressing the specific ways the faculty member has improved related to the "Need for Improvement Plan."

In the Spring Semester follow-up meeting, the committee will not make a recommendation on the "Committee Report" form. Rather, they will provide a written evaluation of whether the faculty member has improved on the specific goals as set out by the "Need for Improvement Plan." The committee will meet the following fall according to timelines outlined in the Contract for Improvement of Instruction Process for Contract Faculty. During the subsequent Fall Semester Improvement of Instruction cycle, there should be no second consecutive "Need for Improvement;" in other words, there shall be only "Satisfactory" or "Non-Renewal" in the subsequent year after a "Need for Improvement" had been given to a contract faculty member.

If a decision is made for non-renewal of a contract faculty member's employment by either the review committee or the College President, the faculty member should be notified no later than December 10th. The faculty member may file an appeal no later than the first workday in January. A written rationale for the appeal must be included, which will be included in the tenure-review record. Such appeal committee shall consist of the Chancellor's designee, the Association President or designee, and the most senior tenured, available member of the faculty member's discipline or closely related discipline not on the evaluation committee.

The appeal committee will determine the scope of the review, which should include, but is not limited to, a review of the complete tenure review record and the written rationale for the appeal. The appeal committee must forward its written recommendation along with any dissenting opinions to the Chancellor no later than February 10th. The Chancellor's recommendation to the Board of Trustees shall include the complete written tenure-review record, the appeal committee's findings, and any dissenting opinions.

- h. Tenure: By the end of the fall semester of the fourth year, by majority vote, the committee shall make a recommendation for tenure to the administration for action as specified under the law. Committee dissenting opinions or differing opinions must be included with the recommendation of the majority. The entire record of tenure review shall be forwarded to the College President. If a recommendation for non-tenure is going to be forwarded to the Chancellor, the faculty member must be notified by December 10th. The faculty member may file an appeal no later than the first work day in January. A written rationale for the appeal must be included, which will be included in the tenure-review record. Such appeal committee shall consist of the Chancellor's designee, the Association President or designee, and the most senior available, tenured member of the faculty member's discipline or closely related discipline not on the tenure review committee.
- i. The appeal committee will determine the scope of the review, which should include, but is not limited to, a review of the complete tenure review record and the written rationale for the appeal. The appeal committee must forward its written recommendation along with any dissenting opinions to the Chancellor no later than February 10th. The Chancellor's recommendation to the Board of Trustees shall include the complete written tenure-review record, the appeal panel's findings, and any dissenting opinions.

# 2. For Regular Faculty

a. The area dean shall establish a peer review committee during the spring semester for each regular faculty member undergoing review. The committee shall consist of two (2) faculty members from the regular faculty member's discipline or a closely related discipline and one (1) academic administrator, or in the case of faculty coaches, the Athletic Director, in consultation with the faculty member undergoing review. If the Department Chair is undergoing review, the second member of the committee shall be selected by the Assistant Chair or in the absence of an Assistant Chair by the most senior member of the faculty member's discipline or department at the College. In most instances, the person undergoing review should not be asked to serve on another improvement of instruction committee. One (1) member shall be selected by the Department Chair and one (1) by the faculty member undergoing review. At least one of the selected members shall be a tenured member of the faculty. The senior faculty member shall chair the committee. Any faculty member who has concerns regarding the administrator designated for the faculty member's evaluation committee may submit a written objection to the President. The President will select a new administrator in consultation with the Academic Senate President and notification to the Association. The faculty member may object only one time and must do so within seven (7) calendar days of notice of the committee composition.

- b. The scope and process of the review shall be determined by the committee in consultation with the faculty member under review. The area dean may request that the committee consider factors identified by the administration that affect the faculty member's performance as a tenured member of the faculty. The review should focus on strengthening the faculty member's instructional skills and professional contributions to the College. Within five (5) working days, the chair will submit a written record of the scope and process to the area dean, the regular faculty member and the other members of the committee.
- c. As mandatory components of the faculty evaluation process, the review committee shall address each of the following:
  - 1) Two classroom visitations by at least two of the peer reviewers. For instructors teaching online, one of the classroom visitations must be an online section;
  - 2) Student surveys of all classes (or alternative instruments for non-teaching faculty);
  - 3) Professional growth goals;
  - 4) Annual institutional service plan;
  - 5) Annual flex obligation;
  - 6) Evidence of subject-matter proficiency and currency;
  - 7) Faculty syllabi; and
  - 8) Faculty Expectations listed in Article XI.B.1.

If agreed upon by the committee, the faculty member undergoing evaluation may be asked to provide examples of teaching and assignment materials to ensure that they adhere to the course outline of record. The review committee may also evaluate professional traits such as time-management, dependability, and respectful collegiality.

While the administrative reviewer does not participate in classroom observations, they may write evaluative reports addressing adherence to deadlines for submission of reports, grades, and assessment; and other areas of institutional service, including

FLEX activities, reassigned time, special assignment, special projects, and coordinator duties.

The faculty under evaluation shall provide a self-reflective narrative statement that addresses how the faculty member fulfills institutional service obligations, including support of equitable student access and success. The narrative should also address other non-instructional duties for which the faculty receives reassigned time. Elective and representative duties can only be discussed for non-evaluative purposes. Discussion of duties associated with other reassigned time cannot form the basis for a needs improvement determination. Any other discussion of the report is limited by the scope of the evaluation.

After completion of the formal review process, the committee may review, for informational purposes only, the faculty member's grade distribution, equitable access and success data, and retention statistics. This information shall not be part of the formal review process or report.

- d. At the conclusion of each review, the committee shall prepare a written report that includes a cover sheet where each reviewer shall state whether the faculty member's performance is "satisfactory" or if there is a "need for improvement." The faculty member shall be given a copy of the report and shall sign the report to indicate that they have received it. If the majority of the reviewers determine that the regular faculty member needs improvement, the committee will indicate, as part of the formal report, the specific instructional and/or non-instructional areas to be improved. If the administration or the regular faculty member disagrees with the recommendation, either the College administration or the regular faculty member may request that the matter be reviewed by a three (3) person appeal committee. Such committee shall consist of the College President, the College Academic Senate President, and the Association President, or their designees. If the majority of the appeal committee determines that the faculty member's performance is satisfactory, the appeal committee shall provide a written rationale for its determination. The faculty member shall then be returned to good standing, the results of the appeal shall be included in the formal report, and the faculty member shall return to their original evaluation cycle. If the majority of this appeal committee determines that further review is needed, the matter shall be referred to a second review committee as hereafter set forth. The faculty member being evaluated may file a written disagreement within 15 working days to be included in the formal report.
- e. The second review committee shall be established by the department chair and area dean within 15 working days of the appeal committee's determination. The second review committee shall consist of three (3) tenured faculty members from the evaluatee's discipline (or closely related discipline if no faculty are available in the District) in order of seniority; the Department Chair/ Assistant Chair; and an academic administrator, who will chair the committee. The second review committee shall establish the scope of the review, which shall be reduced to writing

within five (5) working days of the committee meeting. The second review committee may conduct any type of administrative, peer, and/or student evaluation it deems necessary in assessing the faculty member's performance and providing guidance for improving instruction and/or professional performance that was identified as needing improvement by the original Improvement of Instruction review committee. Unless the faculty member requests and the second review committee agrees, the review shall begin in the semester following the semester in which the "need for improvement" rating is received. Faculty members with a "need for improvement" are not considered in good standing.

- f. The second review committee shall prepare a written report which shall provide a determination of "satisfactory" or "unsatisfactory." The overall rating shall be by majority vote, but each member of the second review committee shall designate the rating they believe is appropriate. Within 15 working days of the receipt of the written report, the faculty member may file a written disagreement. If a majority of the second review committee determines that the faculty member's performance is "satisfactory," the faculty member shall then be returned to good standing, the results of the review shall be included in the final report, and the faculty member shall return to their original evaluation cycle. If a majority of the second review committee determines that the faculty member's performance is "unsatisfactory," the second review committee has two options:
  - 1) The second review committee may recommend one (1) final review, which shall begin in the following semester. Within fifteen (15) working days, the second review committee, in consultation with the faculty member, shall determine specific objectives and goals for a remediation plan. The purpose of the remediation plan is to help the faculty member remediate and eliminate the areas of deficiency or area(s) in need of improvement specified by the peer reviewers; or
  - 2) Provided the second review committee determines that a final review is not warranted, a written report shall be sent to the President of the College for an administrative determination, and a copy shall be forwarded to the faculty member.
- g. After the final review, if the majority of the second review committee determines that the faculty member's performance is "satisfactory," the faculty member shall then be returned to good standing, the results of the review shall be included in the final report, and the faculty member shall return to their original evaluation cycle.

If the majority of the second review committee determines the objectives and remediation plan have not been met, there shall be no further review. A written report shall be sent to the President of the College for an administrative determination, and a copy shall be forwarded to the faculty member.

# 3. For Associate Faculty

- a. Prior to initiating the associate faculty improvement of instruction process,
   Department Chairs shall notify associate faculty members that they are undergoing review.
- b. The scope and process for the associate faculty review shall include classroom observation (or observation of counseling, librarian, student activities coordinator sessions), student surveys of all classes, review of faculty syllabi as a mandatory component during the faculty evaluation, review of counseling and librarian services (as appropriate), and a Department Chair's report. The associate faculty review shall be directly related to the associate faculty member's performance and may include subject matter expertise, communication skills both written and oral, adherence to course outlines of record, and timeliness and accuracy of required census reports, positive attendance, grade rosters and other reports for which the faculty have responsibility. The associate faculty member under evaluation may be asked to provide examples of teaching and assignment materials to ensure that they adhere to the course outline of record.
- c. The Department Chair or designee shall conduct a classroom observation (or observation of counseling, librarian, student activities coordinator sessions) and complete a written report, which will include a review of the student surveys.
- d. The Department Chair shall prepare the final report that may include appropriate comments and recommendations to be discussed with the associate faculty member.
- e. After completion of the evaluation process, the Department Chair may review, for informational purposes only, the grade distribution and retention statistics of the associate faculty member under evaluation. This review shall not be part of the formal process or report.
- f. A copy of the evaluation review report shall be provided to the associate faculty member, who will sign it to indicate that they have received the report. The associate faculty member may submit a written disagreement to the Department Chair within fifteen (15) working days of receiving the report.
- g. The signed report (and written disagreement if submitted) shall be sent to the appropriate College Dean of Instruction and Vice President of Academic Affairs who will then forward to the Office of Human Resources and Employee Relations to be included in the associate faculty member's permanent file.
- h. If an associate faculty member, with at least four (4) fall and spring terms of service, receives a "needs improvement" evaluation, then the two (2) senior faculty members of the discipline within the Department shall review the evaluation and, if the two (2) senior faculty members find that the "needs improvement" was not

warranted, they will write a written report to be included in the final evaluation. If the "needs improvement" is warranted, the discipline/department may conduct an additional evaluation of the associate faculty member in the next term an assignment is provided. It is understood that a "needs improvement" evaluation does not in any way guarantee an assignment in the next term.

i. Terms and processes for reemployment are delineated in Article X, Section R.

#### E. Miscellaneous Matters

- A faculty member undergoing a second-level review as a result of a Needs
   Improvement or Unsatisfactory determination is not in good standing and is not
   eligible to be on an improvement of instruction committee and cannot be required to
   serve on any other college faculty review committee. Nor is a faculty member
   undergoing a second-level review eligible to receive overload assignments.
- When possible, regular faculty members shall not be required to serve on more than one (1) improvement of instruction committee per semester in addition to the tenure review committees, except in those cases where voluntary participation is not sufficient to carry out the required evaluations. No faculty member shall be required to serve on an improvement of instruction committee during their semester of evaluation.
- The Vice President of Academic Affairs or their designee in consultation with the disciplines will develop appropriate student surveys to be used during the faculty evaluation for courses using alternative delivery modes.
- 4. Only the process, and not the content, of the evaluation shall be subject to the full grievance arbitration process. In the event there is a "non-renewal" decision for a third or fourth year contract faculty member, the content of the evaluation may be grieved by the affected contract faculty member but such grievance shall not be subject to arbitration. In the event there is a decision of "unsatisfactory" for a regular faculty member, the content of the evaluation may be grieved by the affected regular faculty member but such grievance shall not be subject to arbitration.
- 5. Faculty shall submit syllabi for each course they teach during each term-(semester and intersession). Syllabi may not be used for evaluative purposes outside the established process detailed by the contract. Syllabi will be retained for a period of time and may be used for annual state audit purposes or in the event of a faculty member's illness, death, or absence to ensure the course agreement with the student is maintained. To protect intellectual property rights, syllabi may not be given to other faculty without the written consent of the faculty member.

6. Information obtained by the access control card system or campus surveillance cameras will not be used for evaluative purposes but may be released in accordance with safety and security concerns. Release of any information will be authorized solely by the College President.

Faculty members are responsible for the control cards that they have been issued. Any individuals who have reason to believe that the cards issued to them have been lost or stolen must report this information to the proper campus authority immediately. Failure to report lost or stolen cards may cause faculty members to be liable for any fraudulent use of their cards, dependent upon a proper investigation of said use.

#### ARTICLE XII - PERSONNEL FILES

- A. One personnel file for each faculty member shall be maintained in the District Human Resources Office and shall only contain materials necessary for the District's fulfillment of its personnel management responsibilities or related to the faculty member's assigned duties or professional responsibilities.
- B. Any item to be placed in the file must adhere to Ed. Code Section 87031, Labor Code Section 1198.5, and Administrative Procedure 6145 *Personnel Files*.
- C. The official personnel file of an academic employee shall be maintained at the District's Office of Human Resources and Employee Relations. Said file shall be available for inspection as set forth hereafter and shall be the file upon which any disciplinary action against the employee may be based.
- D. Every academic employee shall have the right to inspect their personnel file upon request, provided that the request is made at a time when there would be minimal interruption of such person's services to the District and when the personnel clerk/administrator responsible for files is available to be in attendance. Personnel files, which may be inspected, shall not include such materials as ratings, reports, or records which were obtained prior to the employment of the person involved or were prepared by identifiable examination committee members or were obtained in connection with a promotional examination.
- E. Information of a derogatory nature, except materials mentioned in Section B of this Article, shall not be entered or filed unless and until the employee is given notice and the opportunity to review and comment thereon. An employee shall have the right to enter, and have permanently attached to any such derogatory statement, their own comments thereon. Such review shall take place during business hours, and the employee shall be released from duty (but not during such employee's teaching hours) for this purpose without any salary reduction. Derogatory information placed in the personnel file shall identify the source(s) of such information or, alternatively, where the source is a current student and where confidentiality of such source is appropriate, the information shall not be placed in the file unless the supervisor placing the material in the file has conducted an appropriate investigation of the circumstances. In such cases, the supervisor shall set forth the nature of the investigation conducted.
- F. Personnel files shall be available for inspection during regular office hours each day the Office of Human Resources and Employee Relations is open for business. At least two (2) days each week the office shall be open during the noon hour.

- G. All material of an evaluative nature subsequent to employment placed in the personnel file shall indicate the date it was prepared or placed in the file and who was responsible for its preparation.
- H. Within thirty (30) calendar days from the date a College/District official, with evaluation responsibility over an employee, is notified of a complaint by a student or member of the public against such employee, the employee shall also be notified of the complaint, or such complaint may not be entered into the personnel file.
- Written statements of a positive nature received by the College/District pertaining to the
  employment performance of a faculty member shall be placed in the faculty member's
  personnel file upon the faculty member's request.
- J. If subsequent to the entry of derogatory information into the personnel file the College/District determines that the information is inaccurate in some respect, a statement setting forth the correct information shall be permanently attached to the statement containing derogatory information, and the employee shall be provided a copy.
- K. A faculty member may place materials relevant to their assigned duties or professional responsibilities in their personnel file at the District's Human Resources Office.

#### ARTICLE XIII - LEAVES

The benefits that are expressly provided by Article XIII are the sole leave benefits which are part of this collective bargaining agreement.

#### A. Definitions

- "Paid Leave of Absence" means that an academic employee is entitled to receive
  wage and fringe benefits to which the employee is normally entitled except as
  otherwise noted in this Agreement. Full-time faculty members on paid leave will
  receive credit for annual salary increments provided during leave.
- 2. "Unpaid Leave of Absence" means that an academic employee shall not receive wages and fringe benefits during the period of leave. Full-time faculty members who begin an unpaid leave during any pay period shall receive fringe benefits provided for in this Agreement for the balance of that pay period. After that pay period, payments for fringe benefits by the District will cease. After such cessation, employees, while on unpaid leave status, shall be allowed to continue such coverage at their own expense, where such is permitted by the terms of the insurance plan, provided they make advance payment of the premium in the manner established by the District. Where an employee is on unpaid leave during a school year for the equivalent of one (1) semester or more, they shall not receive a step increase for such year.

#### B. Sick Leave (Paid Leave)

1. All full-time faculty members employed on a ten-month basis shall be entitled to ten (10) days of sick leave per College year. Sick leave accrual and use shall be calculated and posted to the employee's record on the basis of one-half (1/2) or fullday increments and not in any other portion, calculated as follows for contract load: if the total full term FTEF for the sections taught on the leave day is 0.505 or higher (rounded to 0.51), a full day of leave is used. If the FTEF is 0.5049 or lower (rounded to 0.50), a half-day of leave is used. For example, if an instructor teaches three, 3-unit sections on Tuesday/Thursday (.2+.2+.2=.6) and two, 3-unit sections on Monday/Wednesday (.2+.2=.4) and the instructor is absent for all three sections on a Tuesday or Thursday, the instructor is charged a full day of leave. If the instructor is absent for two of the three sections (.2+.2=.4), they are charged a half day of leave. If the instructor is absent for any or all sections on a Monday or Wednesday, they are charged a half day of leave. Sick leave is cumulative indefinitely and shall be transferable, upon request by the employee, between school and community college districts pursuant to the Education Code 87779.

- 2. On the first day of every college year, each full-time faculty member shall be credited with a sick leave allotment equal to that employee's sick leave entitlement for the College year. An employee may use such credited sick leave at any time during the College year, in accordance with the provisions of this Agreement.
- Full-time faculty whose assignment is less than full-time shall be entitled to sick leave on a basis proportional to that of a full-time employee.
- 4. Sick leave is allowed for part-time hourly academic employees on an earned, accumulative basis of one (1) hour of sick leave, with pay, for each eighteen (18) hours of teaching. In the event a class is not taught due to a scheduled holiday, the hour or hours normally taught on such day shall count in such computation. Accumulated sick leave is lost if the teacher has a break in service with the District of two (2) years or more. Sick leave earned by part-time hourly academic employees may not be added to sick leave earned by regular and contract faculty.
- 5. For full-time faculty the usage of sick leave earned while teaching an overload assignment or teaching during an intersession will be reported in hourly increments, except when a full-time faculty member is using the Intersession Salary Schedule (summer pay) usage of sick leave is reported in half (1/2) day increments. For associate faculty, usage of sick leave will be reported in hourly increments.
- 6. Accrued sick leave shall be reduced only for time lost wherein the employee would otherwise be required to render service to the District. An employee may use sick leave for disabilities caused or contributed to by pregnancy and recovery therefrom, for absence due to an appointment with a physician or dentist, and when quarantined by the County or City Health Department because of another's illness.
- 7. A statement from a physician verifying the employee's illness may be required by the Vice Chancellor, Human Resources and Employee Relations. In those cases where an employee is aware that they will be absent for twenty (20) days or more, the employee shall notify the immediate supervisor of the situation and shall be required to provide the District with a statement from the employee's physician confirming the disability and prognosis, and an estimate of the anticipated term of absence. When that term is indefinite, a subsequent statement may be required by the District. In such cases and prior to the employee's return to such employee's assignment, a statement from the physician verifying the employee can return to the employee's assignment without detriment to the employee or others must be submitted to the Office of Human Resources by the employee.
- 8. When an employee has used all or a portion of the sick leave allowable and subsequently fails to serve the District for the balance of the College year, an appropriate dollar amount shall be deducted from the employee's final salary warrant. The appropriate amount shall equal the employee's daily rate of pay, times the number of sick days used, but not covered by earned sick leave. This section shall not be construed to affect amounts an employee may be entitled to receive under Section C and D of this Article.

# C. Extended Illness Leave (Paid Leave)

When a full-time faculty member has been sick for an extended period of time, and accumulated sick leave is not available, or the employee makes the election provided below, the employee shall be paid 50% of the employee's regular salary, whether or not a substitute is employed. Associate faculty members will receive 50% of their salary earned in the semester during which the leave commences. Associate faculty members will not lose their assignment due to taking Extended Illness leave; assignments will be distributed as outlined in the Reemployment Section of Article X, Section T.

This benefit shall apply for up to five (5) calendar months for any illness in any College year. The five (5) months begins for the first illness in any College year on the day of absence following the last day of sick leave earned during that year, except that if the employee has more than twenty (20) days of earned sick leave accumulated, the five (5) month period shall not begin until the twenty-first day of absence. An employee with more than twenty (20) days of accumulated sick leave may elect as of the twenty-first day of absence or thereafter to receive this extended illness benefit and not to use up their remaining accumulated sick leave account while receiving this benefit. Any such election must be in writing. If the election is made after the twentieth day, the period of this extended illness leave benefit shall be reduced by the same number of days as there are between the twentieth day and the day written election is received.

# D. Industrial Illness and Accident Leave (Paid Leave)

Employees covered by this Agreement who are absent from duty because of industrial illness or injury qualifying for worker's compensation and who have been continually employed by the District for at least one (1) year may be granted up to sixty (60) working days of Industrial Illness and Accident Leave. Such leave shall not be accumulative from year-to-year.

- An employee shall be deemed to have recovered from an industrial illness or accident and thereby able to return to work at such time as the employee's physician verifies that there has been such a recovery. The District, at its own expense, may require the opinion of another physician.
- When an employee is absent from duties because of industrial illness or accident, the employee shall be paid such portion of the salary due such employee for any month in which the absence occurs as when added to the employee's temporary disability indemnity will result in a payment to the employee of not more than such employee's full salary.

- 3. The employee shall endorse to the District the temporary disability indemnity checks received because of industrial illness or accident.
  - The District, in turn, shall issue the employee appropriate salary warrants for payment of the employee's salary and shall deduct normal retirement and other authorized contributions.
- Any employee receiving benefits under this section shall, during the period of illness or injury, remain in the State of California unless otherwise authorized by the District.
- Reporting industrial illnesses and accidents shall be the responsibility of the
  employee so afflicted. Such report shall be made to the District Office of Human
  Resources within twenty-four (24) hours of the time of the accident or the start of
  the illness, unless exceptional circumstances preclude such notification.
- 6. Upon termination of the sixty (60) days of leave authorized by this section and if the absence continues, the employee may use that portion of accumulated sick leave to maintain income equal to the regular salary paid by the District. However, an employee may not receive income in an amount which exceeds that employee's regular salary.

# E. Bereavement Leave (Paid Leave)

- 1. A full-time faculty member shall be eligible for a temporary leave of absence for the death of any member of their immediate family, without loss of salary. This leave will not exceed three (3) scheduled workdays. In the event of the death of an employee's parent, spouse, or child, said leave shall be up to five (5) scheduled workdays. If out-of-state travel or travel of more than three hundred (300) miles one way is required, two (2) additional days will be authorized. The additional days must be requested prior to or during the authorized bereavement leave.
- Days of leave, whether paid or unpaid, beyond those described above may be
  provided under the terms of Personal Necessity Leave as defined in this article.
  Additional days of leave for bereavement purposes may be granted by the District.
  Days used shall be taken consecutively unless prior written authorization is
  obtained from the District.
- 3. "Immediate Family" for the purposes of this Agreement, means those relatives or step-relatives bearing the following relationships to the employee or the employee's spouse: son, daughter, spouse, mother, father, sister, brother, grandchild, guardian, foster child, foster parent, grandparent, father-in-law, mother-in-law, daughter-in-

law, son-in-law, stepchild, uncle, aunt, niece, nephew, or any other person living in the employee's household. At the discretion of the District, other relatives of the employee or employee's spouse may be considered as immediate family for purposes of bereavement leave.

- 4. To receive bereavement benefits, an employee must notify their Department Chair prior to the start of the next scheduled workday. If such notification is not feasible, then notification must be made as soon as possible. Upon an employee's return from bereavement leave, the District may require necessary proof that they met eligibility requirements for bereavement leave.
- 5. An associate faculty member shall be eligible for a temporary leave of absence for death of any member of their immediate family, without loss of pay. The leave under this section shall not exceed three (3) scheduled workdays' absence, or five (5) scheduled workdays if out-of-state travel is necessary.

# F. Personal Necessity Leave (Paid Leave)

Personal necessity leave accrual and use shall be calculated and posted to the employee's record on the basis of one-half (1/2) or full-day increments, and not in any other portion, calculated as follows for contract load: if the total full term FTEF for the sections taught on the leave day is 0.505 or higher (rounded to 0.51), a full day of leave is used. If the FTEF is 0.5049 or lower (rounded to 0.50), a half-day of leave is used. See Article XIII.B.1. for an example.

- 1. An employee may use sick leave in case of personal necessity.
- For full-time faculty the total number of days used shall not exceed seven (7) for
  one academic year. For associate faculty the number is up to a maximum of seven
  (7) hours per term, including summer and winter intersession not to exceed accrued
  sick leave.
- 3. Personal necessity does not require a stated reason.
- The following limits and conditions are placed upon the use of sick leave for personal necessity:
  - a. The days allowed shall be deducted from the number of sick leave days per academic year (10 days).
  - b. Personal necessity shall not be granted to employees during leave of absence.
  - c. Under no circumstances shall personal necessity leave be available for:

- personal convenience
- seeking other employment
- matters that can be taken care of outside of work hours
- recreational activities or vacation.

# G. Military Leave

Full-time faculty, including faculty teaching overload assignments, and associate faculty whose District service and recent military service total one (1) full year may be granted a temporary leave for the period of ordered duty providing it does not exceed 180 calendar days (including time involved in going to and from such duty) in one (1) fiscal year.

Eligible faculty members, when temporarily called to active duty or for the purpose of attending training exercises, shall be entitled to be paid their regular salary for the first thirty (30) calendar days of absence for the workdays they are absent from the District. The duty must occur during a paid status month of the employee's work year.

To qualify for the benefits provided, the unit member must forward a written request for leave, accompanied by a copy of the field order, to the appropriate college administrator prior to reporting for training or duty unless ordered to report immediately. Full-time faculty members working on overload assignments are eligible for the paid leave benefit if their eligible request for assignment was submitted prior to the date of the field order. Associate faculty must have received an assignment to be eligible for the paid benefit.

A full-time faculty member meeting the requirements prescribed by law may also request and be granted an unpaid military leave under Education Code Section 87700.

For information on health benefits and sick leave during military leave, as well as information on reinstatement upon return from military leave, please refer to Administrative Procedure 6346, Employees Called to Military Duty.

# H. Jury Duty (Paid Leave)

1. Full-time faculty members called to jury duty shall be granted up to thirty (30) days of paid leave of absence when required hours of jury service conflict with required hours of service in the District. The District may grant additional jury duty leave days beyond the thirty (30) provided above. Notice of call to jury duty shall be reported to the Office of Human Resources. Juror's fees, exclusive of mileage

allowance, received by the faculty member shall be deposited in the Business Office to the credit of the District.

Associate faculty members called to jury duty shall be granted jury duty leave
without loss of pay, provided that payment for jury duty leave shall not extend
beyond the end of the semester or term in which the leave commences or the end of
an associate faculty member's assignment during the term, whichever occurs first.

# I. Court Appearance Leave (Paid/Unpaid)

- Upon request, employees will be granted unpaid leave or personal necessity leave (up to the maximum allowed) at the employee's discretion, to appear as a party in court in actions in which the District is not involved or as a witness in a court action pursuant to subpoena. Such request shall be submitted at least three (3) days in advance of said appearance when receipt of court notice so permits.
- Employees who appear as litigants/complainants against the District in any court action will be granted unpaid leave.
- Employees appearing in court on behalf of and/or at the request of the District shall be granted paid leave for whatever time such appearances in court cause the employees to be absent from work.

# J. Legislative Leave (Unpaid)

- A tenured employee who is elected to the State Legislature or Congress shall be granted, upon request, an unpaid leave of absence for the length of the term or terms in office.
- 2. Employees on such leave shall notify the District of intended return at least six (6) weeks prior to the expiration date of the leave.

# K. Health Leave (Unpaid)

1. The District may grant an employee a leave of absence without pay for reasons of health. Such leave will be for a period neither less than one (1) semester nor more than one (1) year. A Statement of Need by a physician is required with the

application. The District may obtain, at District expense, the opinion of a physician chosen by the District. Probationary or tenure status of an employee requesting health leave will not be affected if such leave is granted.

- 2. The employee shall notify the District of the employee's intended return date at least two (2) weeks in advance of the expiration date of the leave.
- 3. The request to return from a health leave shall be accompanied by a statement from the employee's physician, indicating that the employee can return to full-time employment without detriment to the employee's health. The District may request, at District expense, the opinion of a physician chosen by the District.
- Employees on health leave may accept a position in another district only upon prior approval by the District.

### L. Maternity Leave (Unpaid)

The District shall provide for leave of absence from duty for any full-time faculty member of the District who is required to be absent from duties because of pregnancy, miscarriage, or childbirth, and recovery therefrom. The length of the leave of absence, including the date on which the leave shall commence and the date on which the employee shall resume duties, shall be determined by the employee's physician and be subject to the District's approval based upon an evaluation of a physician retained by it. (Disabilities caused or contributed to by pregnancy, miscarriage, childbirth, and recovery therefrom are, for all job-related purposes, temporary disabilities and shall be treated as such under any health or temporary disability insurance or sick leave plan available in connection with employment by the District.)

# M. Family Medical Leave (Unpaid)

Subject to the provisions of the Family Medical Leave Act.

# N. Birth or Adoption of a Child (Unpaid)

In accordance with Education Code section 87784.5 a full-time or associate faculty member may take up to 30 days of accumulated sick leave per school year, less any time taken for personal necessity, to care for a new child. The leave shall be within the first year of an infant's birth or within the first year of legally adopting a child.

### O. Parental/Child Bonding Leave

In accordance with Education Code 87780.1, a unit member may use their sick leave for purposes of parental/child bonding leave for a period of up to 12 workweeks. This leave is for reason of the birth of a child of the unit member, or the placement of a child with a unit member in connection with the adoption or foster care of the child by the unit member.

When a unit member has exhausted all available sick leave and continues to be absent from their duties on account of such parental leave, the unit member is paid 50% of their salary, whether or not a substitute is employed, for the remaining portion of the 12-workweek period. Such salary rate will be set using the unit member's current salary.

Parental/Child Bonding leave must be taken within 12 months of the date of birth/placement of the child. The 12 work weeks do not have to be taken consecutively. The 12 weeks are workweeks, so if a unit member is scheduled to work four days a week, they are entitled to 12 four-day weeks off. This leave is proportional, based on a unit member's most-recent workload at the most-current pay rate in effect.

To be eligible, unit members must have been employed by the district for a period of 12 months prior to taking the leave, which does not include summer/winter intersession. As academic employees, the requirement of working at least 12 months is satisfied by completing two consecutive semesters.

Unit members are only entitled to one 12-workweek period of Parental/Child Bonding leave in any 12-month period. If both parents are employees of the District, both shall be entitled to take this leave.

# P. Catastrophic Leave Program

The District has established a Catastrophic Leave Bank for full-time and associate faculty in accordance with Board Policy and applicable state law.

#### O. Sabbatical Leave

Sabbatical Leave, a leave of absence granted by the District not to exceed one (1) academic year to provide the opportunity to prepare for improved services to the District. Sabbatical leave is part of the total professional growth program and should consist of study and/or research or return to industry or business for the purpose of improvement of the individual's contribution to the District.

# 1. Eligibility

- a. Status Employee must have a status as a regular faculty member.
- b. Service Employee must have rendered service in the District in a position or positions requiring certification qualifications for at least seven (7) consecutive

years immediately preceding the beginning of the leave. Upon the completion of a sabbatical leave, at least six (6) years of additional service shall precede a subsequent sabbatical leave. Absence from service on a sabbatical leave granted by the Board of Trustees shall not be counted as a break in service. Upon the completion of a one (1) semester leave at least five (5) years of additional service shall precede a subsequent sabbatical leave.

- 2. A sabbatical leave will fulfill one (1) or a combination of the following purposes:
  - a. Coursework and instructional programs (see Administrative Procedure 6160a for definition)
  - b. Professional publications (see Administrative Procedure 6160a for definition)
  - c. Independent study (see Administrative Procedure 6160a for definition)
  - d. Return to industry (see Administrative Procedure 6160a for definition)

# 3. Requirements and Procedures

- a. Criteria to be used in the granting of sabbatical leaves are delineated in Administrative Procedure 6160a and 6340a
- b. The President's recommendation for approval of sabbatical leave to the Board of Trustees via the Chancellor will be contingent upon the availability of qualified personnel to assume the applicant's duties.
- c. Applications for sabbatical leave must be filed with the Professional Growth and Sabbatical Leave Committee through the Office of the Vice President of Academic Affairs/Educational Services, for their recommendation to the President. The President shall give notice to the applicant whether the request is granted or rejected. In case of rejection, the specific reason(s) shall be provided, in writing, to the applicant upon request.
- d. The application must be accompanied by a Certificate of Health signed by a physician, indicating that the applicant is in satisfactory physical condition to undertake the study or research proposed.

- e. A sabbatical leave once granted may not be terminated before the date of expiration, except as otherwise provided herein or as otherwise agreed upon by the District.
- f. A faculty member on sabbatical leave is ineligible for overload assignments during the period of the leave.

#### 4. Compensation for Sabbatical Leave

- a. Salary Status Absence on sabbatical leave shall count as a regular period of service and shall not interrupt the employee's progress on the salary schedule.
- b. Rate of Compensation The regular faculty member who has been granted sabbatical leave and who has complied with the provisions under which such leave was granted will receive 70% of their regular faculty salary placement for a full academic year's leave, or their full faculty salary for a semester's leave. Academic employees on such leaves may be granted leave for the academic year at full faculty salary, provided they perform 30% of their duties during the year.

If it is determined that it is in the best interest of the District and at the sole discretion of the Board, a sabbatical leave at 100% pay may be granted for reasons to include, but not limited to, pursuing study for a terminal degree or to train in a field other than the one of hire so the individual can continue service to the District.

- c. A regular faculty member on sabbatical leave may work outside the District if that employment will enhance the employee's contribution to the District. A regular faculty member on sabbatical may be employed as a summer session or extended day staff member in accordance with regular Board policy; however, the employee shall not engage in any other paid employment related to the sabbatical during the term of the sabbatical leave. The foregoing shall not preclude a research grant or a return to industry or business which is part of an approved sabbatical leave. A faculty member on a 70% leave may accept, with the Professional Growth and Sabbatical Leave Committee's approval, another position which does not constitute more than one-third of their average load over the last three (3) years. A faculty member on a 100% leave may only earn salary which directly offsets verifiable expenses of the sabbatical. The District may request copies of the employee's W2 statements at the end of the sabbatical period.
- d. Any educational or research grant such as might be provided through government or foundation sources, which when added to the sabbatical compensation paid by the District exceeds 100% of the normal salary, shall cause the reduction of the

District payment so that the combined grant and the District payment will not be more than 100% of contract salary.

- e. Compensation for Return to Industry Leave Financial renumeration from the business or industry sponsoring a Return to Industry Leave may be accepted by the faculty member instead of the District salary if it is greater. If the District salary is greater than that offered by the business or industry, the actual amount of the sponsoring agency's salary will be paid to the District to offset the District salary payment to the faculty member. IRS forms will be provided to the District to verify salary payments by the sponsoring agency.
- f. Method of Compensation The salary for sabbatical leave shall be received in the same manner as if the employee were teaching in the District. The employee and the District shall share equally in the cost of providing a suitable bond indemnifying the District against loss in the event that the employee fails to render at least two (2) academic years' service in the Riverside Community College District immediately following such leave.

## Method of Compensation/Bond:

- The Vice Chancellor of Educational Services and Strategic Planning will issue notices of approval and bond information to sabbatical leave applicants. Bonds for a full semester or academic year must be received by August 30. Bonds for Spring semester sabbaticals must be received by January 30.
- 2) No later than sixty (60) calendar days before the beginning date of the sabbatical leave, the employee will provide the Vice Chancellor of Educational Services and Strategic Planning with a bond (including receipt for cost of the bond) guaranteeing that they will return to the District to render a period of service which is equal to twice the period of the leave.
- The Vice Chancellor of Educational Services and Strategic Planning will forward the receipt for bond to the Vice Chancellor of Business and Financial Services.
- g. Accident or Illness Interruption of the program of study or research caused by serious accident or illness during a sabbatical leave shall not affect the amount of compensation to be paid the employee under the terms of the sabbatical leave. However, the President must be notified by registered mail within ten (10) days after the occurrence of the accident or illness, and a doctor's statement verifying the accident or illness must be submitted.

#### Retirement

Sabbatical leave shall count toward retirement, and the retirement and annuity contributions of the employee shall be collected.

# 6. Status Upon Returning From Sabbatical Leave

- a. At the expiration of a sabbatical leave, the faculty member who has been granted such leave shall be reinstated, unless otherwise agreed, in the position held at the time the leave was granted.
- b. Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement, the faculty member shall remain in the service of the District for a minimum of two (2) academic years following completion of the sabbatical leave.

#### Reports on Sabbatical Leave

- a. Interim reports may be required by the President.
- b. Each employee returning from sabbatical leave shall file a final written report with the President not later than one (1) month after the day on which the employee resumes active service. A final report shall include, but not be limited to, the name of the institutions attended, courses pursued, credits received, or experience gained, together with the employee's appraisal of the professional value of the activities while on leave and the manner in which the knowledge and experience gained may be applied to the benefit of the Riverside Community College District.

## R. Professional Improvement Leave

- The College/District may grant a short-term leave of absence, with or without pay, for purposes of conference attendance or for other purposes which provide a benefit to the College/District.
- 2. If the College/District proposes to eliminate an instructional program/ area, tenured faculty may apply for a paid leave to retrain in another and/or related instructional area. An instructional plan shall be developed jointly by the tenured faculty member, the Professional Growth and Sabbatical Leave Committee, and an Equivalency Committee appropriate for the area. If it is then determined to be in the best interest of the College/District and at the sole discretion of the Board of Trustees, a leave of

up to one (1) year and up to 100% pay may be granted by the Board so the tenured faculty member can continue service to the District.

#### S. Substitutes

A College President may request, but shall not require, a faculty member to substitute for another faculty member who takes leave pursuant to this Article.

#### T. Other Leaves

- The College/District may grant leaves for reasons not otherwise set forth in this Article.
- If it is determined that it is in the best interest of the College/District and at the sole
  discretion of the Board of Trustees, a leave of up to one (1) year and up to 100%
  pay may be granted to a regular faculty member for reasons to include, but not be
  limited to, pursuing study for a terminal degree or to train in a field other than one
  of hire.
- 3. When a faculty member returns from an extended leave, the appropriate College Dean of Instruction in consultation with the Department Chair will determine the effect the return to the classroom will have on the educational progress of students. If it is determined that a return to the classroom is not in the best interest of students, then the employee, Department Chair, and College Dean of Instruction shall mutually agree upon an appropriate non-teaching assignment for the remainder of the semester. The assignment will be designed to require not less than thirty (30) hours per week of on-campus activity, including those hours required for the employee to fulfill other duties as described in Article X, Section J. Assigned activities may include, but not limited to, curriculum review and development, program planning, materials preparation, classroom research, and other such activities singly or in combination thereof. Returning employees may be assigned suitable activities in appropriate administrative offices relating to academic affairs, student services, planning and development, and administrative services.

## ARTICLE XIV - SAFETY CONDITIONS OF EMPLOYMENT

# A. Safety and Health

- The District shall provide a work place which is safe for its employees in compliance with federal and state law. In addition to compliance to such laws, the District shall also base safety provisions in federal, state, county, and city guidelines and mandates. It shall maintain an open administrative office during all times when classes are in session at all colleges (the District will retain its management right to determine staffing at these offices) to address "safety" and all public health concerns. The purpose of this office will be to deal with emergencies from the staff, public, and students for which other resources are not available. The District and the Association shall collaborate toward the objective of eliminating accidents and health hazards under state and federal law. The Association recognizes their members' obligations and rights under existing federal and state laws with regard to safety and health matters.
- The District shall maintain a Safety Committee. The Association shall have the right to appoint at least four representatives from the bargaining unit to this committee, one from each college and the Association President or designee.
- 3. The District shall provide appropriate safety guidelines for faculty members who handle hazardous materials in the course of their normal job duties.
- 4. The District will provide appropriate supplies and equipment needed by faculty to implement safe working conditions, including all personal protective wear needed by faculty in the course of their normal job duties.
- 5. The District is responsible for reporting to all county and state officials our adherence to health mandates and that all faculty members must strictly follow these guidelines to work on campus.
- 6. In consideration of the health and safety of all District constituent groups-faculty must observe all District health directives while conducting District business on site. Those refusing to observe such public health directives designed to safeguard all district constituents may be subject to disciplinary action. Faculty who cannot observe such directives for legitimate reasons under state or federal law may request an interactive process through Human Resources and Employee Relations to determine reasonable accommodations.

## B. Report of Incident

1. Should a faculty member be attacked, assaulted, menaced or abused by any person in the course of employment, after reporting the incident to the appropriate law enforcement agency, they shall report the incident to the College President or their

designee who shall promptly report the incident to the College Office of Campus Safety and Police and the Vice President of Academic Affairs. The appropriate Department Chair also should be notified along with the appropriate Dean, if it is a student-involved incident. The District shall comply with any reasonable request for information in its possession relating to the incident and the persons involved.

Should a member of the bargaining unit encounter a safety or health violation, they
are encouraged to report alleged violations of such state and federal law to Risk
Management, Occupational Safety and Health Administration (OSHA), or
Cal/OSHA and are protected from retaliation for reporting such concerns.

## C. Report of Threat

Any citizen, parent, or student threat of physical harm against a faculty member shall be reported as soon as possible to the faculty member by the supervisor receiving the threat. RCCD Safety and Police shall work with the faculty member to provide suitable safety measures that immediately address said threat.

## ARTICLE XV - REDUCED TEACHING SERVICE PROGRAM

In accordance with Education Code provisions, the District herewith establishes a Reduced Teaching Service Program, and the same shall be implemented by regulations set forth in the following sections:

- A. An academic employee must be 55 years of age or older to participate in the Reduction of Workload Program.
- B. The employee must have been employed full time in a position requiring State of California minimum qualifications for at least ten (10) years, of which the immediately preceding five (5) years were full-time employment.
- C. An academic employee of the District may apply for reduced employment in one-year segments for a maximum of five (5) years from date of first year of reduced employment. One-year contracts for reduced employment are renewable on a yearly basis, subject to the approval of the employee and the District.
- D. The option of reduced employment is initiated at the request of the employee. The contract for any given year can be revoked only with the mutual consent of the District and the employee.
- E. The employee shall be paid a salary that is the pro rata share of the salary such employee would be earning had they not elected to exercise the option of reduced employment. The employee shall retain all other rights and benefits for which they make the payments that would be required if they remained in full-time employment.
- F. An employee participating in this program shall receive the credit under the State Teachers' Retirement System (STRS) and the Public Employee's Retirement System (PERS) the employee would receive if employed on a full-time basis with a retirement allowance, as well as any other benefits to which the employee is entitled under the applicable laws and regulations of the State of California, based upon the salary that the employee would have received if employed on a full-time basis, and both said employee and the District shall contribute to the Teachers Retirement Fund the amount required by STRS regulations.
- G. The employee shall receive health benefits as provided in Section 53201 of the Government Code in the same manner as a full-time employee. The employee is eligible for the District's fringe benefits in the same manner as other academic bargaining unit employees serving full time. The employee must initiate coverage under the same rules and regulations as apply to the certificated bargaining unit employees.

- H. The minimum reduced employment shall be at least the equivalent of one- half of the annual full-time equivalent load (as defined in Article X. Section D.) required by the employee's contract of employment during their last previous full-time year of service (subject to STRS regulations).
- I. A general outline of the procedure for application follows:
  - A Reduced Teaching Program Proposal is submitted to the Vice President of Academic Affairs (generally by February 28) but no fewer than 120 calendar days prior to the beginning of the school year in which the requested reduction will take place. (Final date of submission is May 1.)
  - 2. The Vice President of Academic Affairs, under normal conditions, will respond to applications within thirty (30) calendar days.
  - Upon approval, a contract will be drawn, specifying terms and conditions of employment for the reduced employment year.
  - A reduced employment application may be withdrawn prior to completion of the contract document.
  - As the reduced teaching contract year is being completed, the employee will again indicate their plan for the following year, using the dates in item 1 of this section.
- J. Applications are available in the office of the Vice Chancellor, Human Resources and Employee Relations.

## ARTICLE XVI - TRANSFERS

- A. Each full-time faculty member will have an assignment at a specific college location(s) or site(s) and location(s) or site(s) in a department. A transfer involves a change in a full-time faculty member's full-time college location(s) or site(s) assignment, department, and/or discipline. No full-time faculty member will be required to teach part of their full-time teaching load at more than one college location(s) or site(s) to transfer involuntarily from one campus to another, except as provided in Article X, Section G. This provision does not apply to overload assignments.
- B. Job Posting and Transfer Rights: If a position becomes available at any college location(s) or site(s), the District will announce the position internally for five (5) business days before it initiates an outside search. A qualified full-time faculty member, as defined in Article I, (one meeting the minimum qualifications of the position) shall be granted the transfer using the following process: if the receiving department agrees to accept the full-time faculty member and the sending department does not object to the loss of the faculty member.
  - Such qualified full-time faculty members may request a transfer by writing a letter of interest to the department advertising the position.
  - 2. Departments affected by a transfer request shall submit to their appropriate area dean a written rationale recommending denial or approval of the transfer.
  - 3. Departments receiving the request for transfer may interview the faculty member requesting the transfer.
  - The department shall submit to the appropriate area dean a written rationale to recommend approving or denying the request to the respective Vice President of their college.
  - 5. The respective Vice President of the college shall send their recommendation of denial or approval within five (5) business days to the College President.
  - 6. The College President shall approve or deny the requested transfer within five (5) business days to the Vice Chancellor, Educational Services and Strategic Planning.
  - 7. The Vice Chancellor, Educational Services and Strategic Planning will send within five (5) business day the determination to the faculty member and the affected departments.

Reasonable effort shall be made to expedite this process. If more than one (1) faculty member wishes to transfer to an available position at another college location(s) or site(s), the receiving department shall evaluate the rationale provided by each faculty member requesting a transfer. Departments shall not approve or deny transfer for reasons of a personal nature. Depending on the needs of the

sending and receiving college location(s) or site(s), the College Presidents may grant the transfer if it does not have a significant impact on the integrity of the colleges' instructional programs. Any full-time faculty member denied a transfer opportunity may appeal the decision to the Vice Chancellor, Educational Services and Strategic Planning, who will provide the faculty member with their decision in writing.

- C. Notification of Transfer: The decisions of the respective departments will be communicated in writing to the faculty requesting a transfer and to the deans of instruction or program administrators at the affected college locations or sites.
- D. Program Transfers: If an instructional program is moved from one college location or site to another college location or site, the faculty in that program must transfer to the new college location or site.
- E. Other Transfer Requests: If no positions are available at a different college location or site, full-time faculty members may request a transfer in writing to the President. The request should state the reasons for the transfer. Depending on the needs of the colleges, the College President may grant the request if the transfer does not have a significant impact on the integrity of the instructional program and if the sending and receiving departments agree to the transfer. If such a transfer is denied, the College President will provide the faculty member with their decision in writing.

# ARTICLE XVII – CONTRACTUAL AND NON-CONTRACTUAL GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE

#### A. Contractual Grievance Procedure

- 1. The purpose of this grievance procedure is to provide a means by which certain disputes alleging a violation of the terms of this agreement may be resolved in an equitable and efficient manner. A grievance is a claim by an employee covered hereby that an express term of this Agreement has been violated by the District, and that because of such violation their rights have been affected. A grievance shall not include any claims or requests to challenge, change, amend, or add to existing policy, rules or regulations, or to adopt or negotiate new policies, rules, or regulations. A grievance also shall not include any employer-employee or employee-employee relations matters for which a different method of review is specifically provided by law.
- 2. Should a grievance arise, it shall be handled in the following manner:
  - a. An employee's grievance must be submitted in writing to the employee's immediate supervisor within fifteen (15) working days (faculty working days excluding winter and summer session) after the date of the act or omission giving rise to the grievance, or within fifteen (15) working days after the date on which the grievant should have known of the act or omission giving rise to the grievance.
  - b. Any written grievance shall be signed by the grievant and shall state the circumstance on which the grievance is based, the date of occurrence, the identity of the employee or employees who claim to be aggrieved, the specific sections and terms of this Agreement allegedly violated, and the remedy sought. A grievance may include more than one (1) employee, provided both that the issue is identical for each and that all employees affected thereby sign the grievance form.
  - c. The immediate supervisor shall answer the grievance in writing within seven (7) working days after receipt except where the supervisor notifies the Association in writing of a need for an extension in which case the written answer shall be due within ten (10) working days (faculty working days excluding winter and summer session). There shall be one (1) such extension unless the parties mutually agree otherwise.
  - d. In the event the grievant is not satisfied with the answer given, the grievant may appeal the decision in writing to the Vice President of Academic Affairs, or designee, within five (5) working days after receipt of their supervisor's decision. The Vice President or their designee will communicate a decision in writing within five (5) working days of receipt.

- e. In the event the grievant is not satisfied with the decision of the Vice President of Academic Affairs, or designee, the grievant may appeal the decision in writing to the President or designee within five (5) working days after receipt of such decision. The President or designee shall answer the grievance in writing within five (5) working days after receipt.
- f. In the event the grievant is not satisfied with the decision of the President or designee, the grievant may appeal the decision in writing to the Chancellor, or designee, within five (5) working days after receipt of such decision. The Chancellor, or designee, shall answer the grievance in writing within five (5) working days after receipt.
- g. All investigations involving allegations of discrimination, harassment, retaliation, workplace violence, whistle-blower complaints, and other workplace misconduct are under the purview of Human Resources and Employee Relations or designee. Faculty members who engage in personal investigations may be subject to disciplinary action.
- h. Any faculty member who solicits student involvement in an investigation, other than as good faith witnesses in an official investigation or grievance, may be subject to disciplinary action.
- 3. Any grievance not processed by an employee in accordance with the time limits set forth herein shall be considered settled on the basis of the decision last made by the District. If at any step the District fails to respond within the time limits specified above, the grievant may proceed to the next step.
- 4. A grievant shall be entitled, upon request, to representation by the Association at any grievance meetings. Where the Association has not been requested to represent the grievant and the District is prepared to agree to a resolution of the grievance, the District shall not make any final resolution until the Association has received a copy of the grievance and the proposed resolution and has been given an opportunity to file a response.
- 5. A reasonable amount of release time will be granted to one (1) Association representative to process any grievances. Such release time shall not take place during teaching hours or office hours except where the District and the Association mutually agree in advance that release time during such hours is necessary.
- After a grievance has been submitted in writing by a faculty member, the Association
  has the authority to process, abandon, or settle grievances on behalf of all faculty
  members.
- 7. Binding Arbitration

- a. Grievances which are not concluded pursuant to the procedures set forth in Section B and which the Association desires to appeal, shall be submitted to binding arbitration as set forth in this section, provided that written notice is given to the District by the Association within five (5) working days after the answer of the Chancellor, or designee, is rendered.
- b. Upon receipt of the Association appeal, the parties shall endeavor to agree upon an arbitrator. If no agreement is reached within the ten (10) working days, they shall request the California State Conciliation Service to supply a panel of seven (7) names of arbitrators. Each party shall alternately strike a name until only one (1) name remains who shall be the arbitrator. The party who strikes the first name shall be determined by lot.
- c. The fees of the arbitrator shall be shared equally by the parties. Either party may order a transcript. The cost of such transcript shall be shared equally if both parties have the use of the transcript, but if only one (1) party has the use of the transcript, the non-using party shall not bear any expense pertaining to the transcript. Where both parties wish to have a transcript the parties agree to cooperate in the selection of a qualified reporter. Each party shall bear the expense of the presentation of its own case except that release time shall be granted to one (1) Association representative, the grievant, and any necessary Association witness who is an employee of the District to attend the arbitration.
- d. The arbitrator shall have no power to alter, amend, change, modify, add to, or subtract from any of the terms of the Agreement, and shall have no jurisdiction to hear any grievance which is excluded from the grievance-arbitration procedure by the terms of this Agreement; or which is not filed or appealed within the time limits of this article. The decision of the arbitrator shall be based solely upon the evidence presented to them by the respective parties in the presence of each other. No decision shall be retroactive beyond the beginning of the ten (10) day period specified in Section A.7.a. of this Article, and the arbitrator shall have no authority to hear and issue a decision upon more than one (1) grievance at a time, unless the District and the Association expressly agree otherwise. The arbitrator shall render their decision within thirty (30) calendar days after the close of hearing or, where either party desires to submit a brief, within thirty (30) calendar days of such submission. The decision of the arbitrator shall be final and binding on both parties.

#### B. Non-Contractual Grievance Procedure

- Grievances regarding grades shall follow the procedures and expectations outlined in the current, relevant Student Handbook. Grievances regarding allegations of harassment, discrimination or other unlawful behavior shall follow the relevant Board policy and any applicable statute or regulation (hereinafter "statute").
- 2. The District shall notify the Association President, or any designee, of any investigations

of faculty at the faculty member's discretion who is the subject of the investigation.

- 3. Informal consultations shall take place prior to the formal grievance process. The District and/or the College administration shall make its best effort to resolve potential grievances without utilizing the formal grievance process.
- 4. Once a complaint goes to the formal hearing stage, if it is withdrawn, such withdrawal is a concession that the complaint had no merit.
- 5. District employees who, by training, are competent to carry out these procedures shall conduct grievance processes and investigations. Under special circumstances, the District may utilize an outside party to oversee or conduct grievance processes and investigations at the Chancellor's discretion. All investigation firms hired by the District to conduct faculty investigations shall be mutually agreed upon by the District and the Association.
- 6. Faculty members shall be notified by the District of their right to representation in all investigatory meetings and interviews when the faculty member reasonably believes that disciplinary action might result from the meeting or interview and hearings per their Weingarten rights. The faculty member shall also be advised of their right to representation for any scheduled hearing. The District will provide a written notice of complaint to the accused faculty member including the following: the basis of the alleged misconduct, the timeframe within which the alleged misconduct occurred, and the name of the complaining party(ies).
- 7. Any faculty member identified as a complainant, respondent, or witness shall be given the list of all questions to be asked at hearings and interviews at least 48 hours in advance, excluding weekends and holidays, unless the faculty member being interviewed requests in writing to waive this provision. The assigned investigator may ask reasonable follow-up questions.
- 8. Any faculty member involved in a grievance or investigation may recommend any witness they believe will assist in resolving the issue in question. The District will make its best effort to interview witnesses suggested by a faculty member.
- 9. A reasonable time limit shall be agreed upon for the hearing process by all parties involved. Every effort should be made to limit proceedings to a reasonable time. Investigations of alleged unlawful behavior shall be concluded under time parameters set by the relevant statute.
- 10. Copies of all tapes and transcripts of any hearings and of interviews if the person being interviewed agrees shall be provided to the faculty member grieved. All transcripts shall be confidential, except as otherwise required by law.
- 11. The faculty member shall receive written findings relevant to the grievances made against them within seven (7) working days of the administrator's final decision in the matter.

- 12. All investigations involving allegations of discrimination, harassment, retaliation, workplace violence, whistle-blower complaints, and other workplace misconduct are under the purview of Human Resources and Employee Relations or designee. Faculty members who engage in personal investigations may be subject to disciplinary action.
- 13. Any faculty member who solicits student involvement in an investigation, other than as good faith witnesses in an official investigation or grievance, may be subject to disciplinary action.

## C. Faculty Dispute Resolution Process

1. Objective: It is the objective of the District and the Association to encourage the prompt resolution at the lowest possible administrative level of all complaints, misunderstandings or other difficulties which relate to disputes. Accordingly, the following Dispute Resolution process has been established.

#### a. Definitions:

<u>Dispute</u>: A dispute is a claim by a unit member that there is a conflict between a unit member and the District, or a unit member vs. another unit member that does not constitute a grievance or Human Resources complaint. Such conflicts may include alleged violations of policies and practices not contained in the negotiated Collective Bargaining Agreement (CBA). These policies and practices would include, but are not limited to, Board Policy, Administrative Procedures, District practices and procedures and other State law to the extent permitted by law. Allegations of unlawful discrimination, harassment, and retaliation shall not be governed by this faculty dispute resolution process but rather by District Administrative Procedures 6430, 6433, 6434, 6435.

<u>Professional Behavior</u>: Professional behavior includes common courtesy, respect for one another, honesty, and the use of appropriate language.

Working Days: For the purpose of this dispute procedure, a "working day" is any Monday through Friday on which faculty are required or expected to be on campus during the terms in which both parties to the dispute have an assignment.

<u>Timelines</u>: Timelines shall commence with the receipt of a written communication and shall be considered met if a document arrives on or before the last day of an established timeline. Extensions of timelines must be requested in writing and signed by all parties to the dispute and by the Vice Chancellor, Human Resources and Employee Relations. The extension shall not exceed an additional thirty (30) working days.

- b. Documentation Status: All documentation regarding the dispute shall not be a part of the unit member or District employee's personnel file.
- c. Procedural Protections: During each of the steps outlined in Section B (Dispute Procedure) herein, the following procedural protections shall apply:
  - i. Non-discrimination (as stated in Article VI).
  - ii. Rights concerning use of annotations within the faculty member's personnel file (as stated in Article XII).

- iii. Privacy rights regarding e-mail, voicemail, and computers designated for faculty use. (as stated in Article XX.L.).
- Weingarten Right to Representation (See NLRB v. Weingarten (1975) 420 U.S. 251).
- v. Uniform Application: Similarly-situated faculty members must be treated in a like manner (See, e.g., Novato School District (1982) PERB Dec. No. 210.)

## 2. Dispute Procedure:

a. <u>Step One – Informal</u> (Both parties and academic dean over one or both areas involved or, when one party is a District manager, both parties and objective third party as mutually agreed to by both individuals):

The disputant shall submit in writing to the area dean a description of the nature of the dispute. The area dean will meet with the parties to complete an initial inquiry. If there is an allegation of a violation, misapplication or misinterpretation of a rule, regulation or law, the disputant shall specifically cite the rule, regulation or law alleged to be involved. The remedy sought shall be clearly identified in the original written statement. The written statement of the dispute shall be filed with the disputant's immediate supervisor and must be filed within thirty (30) working days of an alleged act, incident or omission that is the subject of the dispute. A copy of the original written statement of the dispute shall be forwarded to the Association and the college president or Chancellor if the dispute involves a District employee.

The area dean (or objective third party) and an Association representative shall meet with parties and objective third party as mutually agreed to by both individuals:

The area dean (or objective third party) and an Association representative shall meet with the parties to the dispute within fifteen (15) working days and shall facilitate a discussion with the goal of resolving the dispute. The dean shall provide both parties and the Association with written documentation of the results of the informal meeting within seven (7) working days from the conclusion of the meeting. No other person shall be present.

If the disputant is not satisfied with the results from Step One, they shall have ten (10) working days from the receipt of the Step One result to file a request with Human Resources and Employee Relations for a Step Two meeting.

# b. <u>Step Two - Conciliation Meeting</u> (Immediate Manager and Association Representative):

The area dean or third-party representative and the Association representative shall meet within ten (10) working days to clarify the issues in the dispute. Both the District and the Association representatives shall be provided with copies of the original written statement of the dispute.

Within ten (10) working days following this Step Two meeting, the District and the Association representative shall submit a proposed resolution in writing to both parties and

the college president. Both parties shall have five (5) working days to either accept or reject the proposed resolution. The decision of both parties shall be submitted in writing to Human Resources and Employee Relations with copies forwarded to the Association.

If the disputant is not satisfied with the results from Step Two, they shall have ten (10) working days from the receipt of Step Two result to file a request with the area dean or college president or Chancellor for a Step Three appeal review.

## c. Step Three - Final Appeal Review:

The college president (or designee) or the Chancellor shall meet with the parties to hear the dispute. Each party shall be provided with copies of the original written statement of the dispute, the results of the Step One informal meeting, and the proposed conciliation resolution five (5) working days prior to the appeal review meeting. Both parties may have a representative present.

The college president (or designee) or the Chancellor shall determine whether to uphold, amend, or reject the conciliation recommendation or alternatively to impose a cooling off period of up to thirty (30) working days. Following any cooling off period, the Step Three process shall resume. The determination shall not conflict with the remainder of the Agreement, Administrative Procedures, Board Policies, or applicable laws.

The appeal review shall be scheduled within ten (10) working days from the request following the conclusion of Step Two. The college president or the Chancellor shall communicate a written decision within ten (10) working days following this Step Three meeting with copies transmitted to the disputant and the Association. The decision of the college president (or designee) or the Chancellor is not subject to appeal.

An alleged violation, misapplication or misinterpretation of a provision of this Agreement which has been filed under the Grievance Procedure of this Agreement is not subject to the provisions of this Article.

A final determination may also be filed with District Human Resources and Employee Relations.

- Abandonment of Dispute: At any time during the dispute process, the disputant may
  decide to terminate the dispute by written notification to the College President or the
  Chancellor who shall then notify the other party and the Association that the dispute has
  been abandoned.
- D. It is further agreed that nothing in the sections of this article shall neither supersede Federal or State laws, statutes, and regulations nor policies and procedures of the Riverside Community College District Board of Trustees.

## ARTICLE XVIII - EFFECT OF AGREEMENT

- A. The parties acknowledge that during the negotiations which resulted in this Agreement, each had an unlimited right and the opportunity to make demands and proposals with respect to any subject or matter which was or could have been the subject of negotiation, that the understanding and agreement arrived at by the parties after the exercise of that right and opportunity are set forth in this Agreement, and, therefore, each waives the right to further negotiations on any subject or matter covered or not covered under this Agreement during the term hereof, except as to items referred to as re-opener items in Article XXIII. The parties also may mutually agree to conduct negotiations on any issue.
- B. No privileges, compensation, or benefits of any kind in excess of those specifically set forth in this Agreement, or not specifically provided for in this Agreement, are required to be granted to employees. However, the District may, at its discretion, voluntarily grant such bereafter.
- C. The waiver by the District of any breach or condition of this Agreement does not constitute a precedent for any further waiver of such breach or condition.
- D. It is the intent of the parties that where there is any inconsistency between the terms of this Agreement and any State or Federal status or regulation, the terms of this Agreement shall control, unless the statute or regulation requires that its provisions supersede any agreement between the parties, or where the provision in this Agreement specifically provides for the incorporation of the statute or regulation and any changes thereto.
- E. Article and section titles in this Agreement are provided for convenience only and in no way are to be used to define, limit, or affect the construction and interpretation thereof.

#### ARTICLE XIX - NO STRIKE / NO LOCKOUT

- A. During the term of this Agreement, neither the Association, its officers, agents, members, nor any employee will authorize, instigate, encourage, aid, condone, participate in, or engage in a strike or work stoppage of any kind, regardless of whether there is a claim by the Association of breach of this Agreement or a Federal or State law by the District.
- B. In the event of a strike or work stoppage of any kind, the Association shall immediately notify the employees that such action is unauthorized and promptly order its members to return to work and to take every reasonable effort to terminate the unauthorized action.
- C. Failing to cross any picket line established by any person or organization for any reason at any facility of the District by the Association or any employee in concert or alone, during the term of this Agreement, shall constitute a violation of this Article.
- D. The District specifically has the right to proceed directly to court for an injunction and all other legal relief for any breach of this Article.
- E. The obligations of this Article shall not be affected or limited by the subject matter involved in the dispute giving rise to the work stoppage or by whether such subject matter is or is not subject to the grievance and arbitration provisions of this Agreement.
- F. In the event of any strike or related activity prohibited by this Article, the District may revoke or suspend any rights or benefits provided for in the Agreement with respect to any employee who engages in such activity and/or the Association.
- G. The Board of Trustees agrees that during the terms of this Agreement it will not engage in any lockout of its employees.

## ARTICLE XX - MISCELLANEOUS

## A. Subcontracting

Educational courses in existence as of the execution date of this Agreement which are not now being contracted out, may not be contracted out to private organizations during the term of this Agreement without the concurrence of the Association.

## B. Office Space

- 1. The District shall plan for and provide private office space for faculty.
- Each office space will be equipped with a desk, desk chair, filing cabinet, bookshelves
  and side chair, computer, access to printers, and a phone. Subject to reasonable
  regulations full-time instructors shall normally have access to such office space during
  the entire year. Adequate workspace shall be available for associate faculty.
- In the case of an instructor with an assignment split between two (2) or more colleges, private office space will be provided at the college where the majority of the load is taught.
- C. Supervisory and management employees shall not be restricted from performing bargaining unit duties, so long as such performance does not cause any regular faculty member to be deprived of a full-time load or overload assignment.
- D. The resignation of any unit member shall not be effective until five (5) working days before the date upon which the Board is to take action accepting such resignation.
- E. The District and the Association agree that no administrator shall have his or her name listed on a grade record sheet for classes for which they are not the instructor of record.

#### F. Child Development Center Positions

- 1. With respect to the position of Child Development Site Supervisor, Early Childhood Master Teacher and Child Development Program Director, the following provisions of this Agreement do not apply: Article IX, Article XI, Article XIII.Q, Article XV, Article XX.B, Article XXI, and Article XXII.
- 2. Notwithstanding the provisions of Article XIII.B, Child Development Site Supervisors, Early Childhood Master Teachers, and Child Development Program Directors assigned to a full-time position shall accrue twelve (12) days of sick leave per College year.

- 3. Notwithstanding Article X, the hours at work for Child Development Site Supervisors, Early Childhood Master Teachers, and Child Development Program Directors shall be as follows: The length of the normal workday for employees who have their time assigned to full-time positions shall be eight (8) hours per day, exclusive of a lunch break. The length of the normal work week to employees assigned a full-time position shall be forty (40) hours. Such employees shall be allowed two (2) 15-minute rest periods during each day to be set by their supervisor, one (1) such rest period to be taken during the first half of the workday and one to be taken during the second half of the workday.
- 4. Child Development Site Supervisors, Early Childhood Master Teachers, and Child Development Program Directors shall accrue vacation on the basis of one (1) day of vacation for each full month of paid status.
- Child Development Site Supervisor, Early Childhood Master Teacher, and Child Development Program Director will be evaluated in accordance with the faculty evaluation process described in Article XI for the frequency of evaluation only.

## G. Community Activities/Service Programs

- 1. Community services classes provide instruction for and/or contribute to the physical, mental, moral, economic, or civic development of the general public. They are open for the admission of adults and of those minors as in the judgment of the Board of Trustees may profit therefrom. These classes provide an opportunity for participating community members and college faculty to present information/ instruction and to share their hobbies and/or avocations with members of the community.
- For purposes of review and comment relative to impact on regular departmental
  programs, the District will furnish all Department Chairs and the Association with a list
  of proposed offerings prior to publication and distribution of announcements of
  programs.
- Program publications in these areas will clearly indicate that the offerings are noncredit or not-for-credit.
- 4. Where applicable, program publications will carry information about related programs and courses offered in the credit curriculum.
- 5. Program publications will carry information about the qualifications of presenters. This information will be in a box by itself and it will say: "Presenters may have qualifications that differ from those required to teach college classes. These courses do not carry college credit."

- 6. If any department determines that a Community Activities class may duplicate all or a substantial part of a regular course offering, the Department Chair and the Dean of Instruction will confer to resolve the issue, with a final decision, if needed, by the Vice Chancellor, Educational Services and Strategic Planning.
- 7. Compensation for not-for-credit community service classes will be negotiated between the presenter and the Vice President of Academic Affairs (or designee). This current practice will continue in order to provide incentives for presenters to develop and to maintain the community service offerings. Compensation for noncredit offerings will be paid according to the faculty salary schedule.

# H. Contract Education/Economic Development and Workforce Preparation Programs

- For purposes of this section, contract education is defined as those situations in which the District contracts with other entities or individuals for the purpose of providing instruction or services or both, and which are designated for not-forcredit (CEC 78020). Unless otherwise stipulated below, contract education, economic development, and workforce preparation programs are subject to the collective bargaining agreement.
- All qualified District faculty in good standing shall have first right of refusal for contract education, economic development, and workforce preparation offerings.
   Faculty will be compensated according to the Faculty Salary Schedule for work that is comparable to and requires the necessary qualifications to teach in the regular credit and noncredit instructional programs.
- 3. The Association will be notified of program development in the areas of contract education/economic development, and workforce preparation.
- 4. All instructors teaching in contract education/economic development and workforce development programs need to demonstrate industry-specific expertise or hold appropriate license or credentials. All qualified faculty, both full-time and associate faculty are encouraged to participate in contract education/economic development and workforce preparation programs, and should make their interest known to the appropriate director or dean. Depending on the nature of the not-for-credit program, the times, venues, duration of the presentation, and the express wishes of the client, interested faculty may be offered forthcoming assignments subject to the conditions in item 5 below.
- 5. If two (2) or more full-time faculty members request to teach a not-for-credit contract education/economic development course, the senior faculty member shall be given preference unless the other has played a role in the development or marketing of the program, is requested by the client, and/or has specific training, skills, or qualifications to present the program, as determined by the District. If a full-time faculty member is not selected to teach a not-for-credit course, the faculty member may appeal the decision to the area Vice Chancellor or designee, who shall

make a determination in writing, specifying the reasons for the decision.

- The District may waive the 2:00 p.m. day-time overload restriction (Article X, Section W, 5) for all contract education/economic development, and workforce preparation courses or assign appropriate FTE's (Article X, Section J) for faculty selected to teach credit or noncredit contract education courses.
- 7. If any department determines that a contract education/economic development or a workforce preparation class duplicates a regular course offering, the Department Chair and the appropriate Dean/ Director will confer to resolve the issue, with a final decision, if needed, by the Vice President of Academic Affairs.
- 8. The District will present an annual RCCD Workforce and Economic Development report of all contract education/ economic development and workforce preparation activities for the past year. The financial statement of expenditures and revenues are made available via the RCCD Budget Report.
- No full-time faculty member will be laid off as a result of implementation of contract education/economic development, and workforce preparation programs.
   No full-time faculty member will be required to teach courses in this area as part of their annual teaching assignment.
- 10. Any for-credit contract education must provide for the following provisions: Any for-credit program or course offered through contract education must have been approved by appropriate college curriculum committee; Attendance of students in contract education programs shall not be included for purposes of calculating the FTES for apportionment to the District; Faculty teaching for-credit classes shall be compensated in the same manner as comparable faculty in the regular, noncontract education program; All instructions and assignments in a for-credit contract education program are in accordance with RCCD's collective bargaining agreement with its faculty.

## I. Intellectual Property Rights

The District encourages employees to pursue development of materials and/or inventions. If the employee has developed materials and/or inventions without recourse to any District resources, all rights and title in any copyrightable materials and/or inventions made by the employee shall belong to the employee. If the materials and/or inventions have been produced within the scope of the employee's employment or if the employee has agreed in writing that the materials and/or inventions are "work for hire," then, in an agreement reached prior to or in the course of development of such materials and/or inventions, the District and the employee shall mutually agree on the dissemination and share of royalties from the marketing of any materials and/or inventions. The Association shall be notified of and approve any such agreements. Materials and/or inventions developed while the employee is on a sabbatical leave shall not be considered "work for hire." The District and the Association shall make every effort to develop uniform intellectual property rights contracts for faculty. To protect

intellectual property rights, syllabi may not be given to other faculty without the express consent of the faculty member.

#### J. Academic Freedom

In alignment with Board Policy 2030, the District and the Association (the Parties) are committed to free and open inquiry in all matters in the classroom; they agree that all District faculty members shall have the broadest possible latitude to speak, write, listen, challenge, and learn. Except insofar as limitations on that freedom are necessary to the functioning of the District or to the adherence to law, the Parties fully respect and support the freedom of all District faculty members to discuss any matters of academic or public concern.

## K. Privacy

District owned computers, computer networks, and telephone systems, including e-mail, voicemail, and Internet connections are subject to the regulations of law and Board of Trustees' Policy. Within its obligations under those regulations, the District will respect the privacy of e-mail, voicemail, and computers designated for faculty members' use and will not monitor faculty use of District owned computers, e-mail, voicemail, and Internet connections without substantial justification.

Information obtained by the access control card system or campus surveillance cameras will not be used for evaluative purposes, but may be released in accordance with safety and security concerns. Release of any information will be authorized solely by the College President. Faculty members are responsible for the control cards that they have been issued. Any individuals who have reason to believe that the cards issued to them have been lost or stolen must report this information to the proper campus authority immediately. Failure to report lost or stolen cards may cause faculty members to be liable for any fraudulent use of their cards, dependent upon a proper investigation of said use.

#### ARTICLE XXI – INTERSESSIONS

#### A. Definitions

- For the purposes of all language in this Agreement which applies to intersessions, a fulltime faculty member is defined as an employee appointed to an academic position requiring more than 67% of a full-time load during the regular academic year, and who is employed for the summer and/or winter intersession.
- 2. For the purposes of all language in this Agreement which applies to intersessions, a associate faculty member is defined as an academic position requiring 67% or less of a full-time load during the regular academic year, or who was not employed during the regular academic year, and who is employed for the summer and/or winter intersession.

## B. Applicable Provisions from Existing Agreement

Where the Board determines to hold summer intersession, the District and the Association agree to apply the following provisions of the existing Agreement between the Riverside Community College District and the Riverside Community College District Faculty Association CCA/CTA/ NEA.

- Article I
- Article II
- 3. Article III
- 4. Article IV
- Article VI
- 6. Article IX
- 7. Article X
- Article XII
- 9. Article XIII
- 10. Article XIV
- 11. Article XV
- 12. Article XVII
- 13. Article XVIII
- 14. Article XIX
- 15. Article XX
- Article XXI
- 17. Article XXII

## C. Limitation of Agreement

Except as specifically set forth or referenced above, no other provision of this Agreement shall apply to summer intersession.

## D. Salary

Salary schedule in effect during the intersessions for all full-time faculty members in the bargaining unit shall be five-eighths (5/8) of the faculty salary schedule as pro-rated. Full-time faculty members may choose either the summer or the winter intersession for compensation at the 5/8 rate, if such intersession is not part of their annual teaching loads. However, only one (1) intersession will be paid based on the 5/8 rate. Full-time faculty, who are teaching a second intersession shall be compensated at the pay-per-course rate. Associate faculty shall be compensated at the pay- per-course rate for intersession teaching. For the winter and/or summer intersessions, Appendix I shall be applicable for work experience.

Full-time faculty members who are specifically required by the President (or designee) to be on the college premises during periods that are not part of their annual teaching assignment will be compensated at their hourly rate of pay based upon the Faculty Hourly Salary Schedule (Appendix B).

## E. Hours of Work and Faculty Load

- 1. In extending offers of employment, full-time faculty in good standing shall be given priority over associate faculty in summer and/or winter intersession assignments in those subject matter areas in which they are qualified. Assignments of classes and teaching schedules shall be determined through coordination between the faculty members concerned and the Department Chair/Director, subject to the approval of the appropriate Dean of Instruction. The Vice Chancellor of Educational Service and Strategic Planning and the Vice Presidents of Academic Affairs will establish and enforce a District-wide set of guidelines with additional college specific information for deans to follow for consistency across the District. Actual employment in the summer and/or winter intersession shall be contingent upon sufficient class enrollment.
- 2. Departments must submit yearly tentative teaching assignments for each full-time faculty member during the spring semester for the following summer, fall, winter, and spring terms. No full-time faculty member who satisfies their annual teaching assignment during the fall and spring semesters shall be required to teach during the winter intersession unless reasonable circumstances require the Vice President of Academic Affairs to adjust their teaching assignment.

- 3. Full-time faculty who choose to use the winter or summer intersession in order to complete their annual teaching load will be given first choice for the intersession teaching assignments. If the District offers a summer intersession, full-time faculty members may complete part of their annual teaching assignment during the summer intersession. This does not obligate the Board to offer a summer intersession; therefore, unfulfilled load will be assigned during the next term.
- 4. Where feasible, initial offers of tentative employment to associate faculty for anticipated intersession assignments shall be made after the full-time faculty annual assignments have been made. Associate faculty members shall either accept or reject such initial offer within fourteen (14) calendar days of the time at which the offer was made. Associate faculty members who receive an offer of tentative employment after the initial offers have been made shall accept or reject the offer within a reasonable time which will be established by the District. In the summer and/or winter intersession published schedules, the District shall make every reasonable effort to include the names of the assigned instructors.
- 5. Any provisions in the Agreement applicable to class size in overload assignments during the regular school year shall also be applicable to the intersessions.
- The Full Time Equivalent (FTE) for all intersession courses shall be maintained at the level of the regular academic year.
- 7. The compressed time blocks used during the 16-week fall and spring semesters do not apply to the intersessions.

#### F. Leaves

The provisions of Article XIII are applicable.

- 1. Sick Leave Sick leave during intersessions is allowed for full-time faculty who receive intersession assignments, on an earned, accumulative basis of 0.2500 of one day for each 0.0666 FTE of service provided by that faculty member during the summer intersession.
  - Sick leave usage for full-time faculty paid from the intersession salary schedule shall be recorded on the basis of one-half (1/2) day increments and not in any other portion.
  - Sick leave earned in the intersessions, as described in the preceding paragraph, will be cumulative with sick leave earned during the contract year. Intersession sick leave may be

used during the contract year and sick leave earned during the contract year may be used during the intersessions.

Sick leave for associate faculty in the intersessions is earned at the rate of one (1) hour for each eighteen (18) hours of intersession teaching and is cumulative. Part-time hourly sick leave earned in the intersessions may be used by associate faculty during the school year.

Sick leave for full-time faculty paid on the faculty hourly salary schedule for intersessions will earn sick leave at the rate of one (1) hour for each eighteen (18) hours of intersession teaching and is cumulative. Full-time faculty who have earned sick leave during an intersession, while being paid from the faculty hourly salary schedule, may only use that earned sick leave during an intersession or for overload sick leave.

2. Personal Necessity - The total number of days used by full-time faculty shall not exceed seven (7) for one academic year. If teaching an overload during fall or spring or teaching during the summer and winter intersessions and on the Hourly Salary Schedule, the total number of hours used for Personal Necessity shall not exceed seven (7) hours per term. For those who elect to use the Intersession Salary Schedule, Personal Necessity is reported in half-day increments, as stated in the provisions of Article XIII, Section F.

For associate faculty the prorated number of hours shall not exceed seven (7) hours per term, including summer and winter intersessions.

- 3. Jury Duty, Bereavement, and Military Leave Entitlement for Jury Duty, Bereavement, and Military Duty for full-time faculty teaching an overload assignment during an intersession shall be in accordance with Article XIII for each type of leave. However, when the Summer Salary Schedule is selected during intersession overload assignments, leave usage shall be reported in half-day increments. When the Hourly Salary Schedule is selected during an intersession overload assignment, leave usage shall be reported only in hourly increments.
- 4. A statement from a physician verifying the employee's illness may be required by the Vice Chancellor, Human Resources and Employee Relations. In those cases where an employee is aware that they will be absent for twenty (20) days or more, the employee shall notify the immediate supervisor of the situation and shall be required to provide the District with a statement from the employee's physician confirming the disability and prognosis, and an estimate of the anticipated term of absence. When that term is indefinite, a subsequent statement may be required by the District. In such cases and prior to the employee's return to such employee's assignment, a statement from the physician without verifying the employee can return to the employee's assignment without detriment to the employee or others must be submitted to the Office of Human Resources and Employee Relations by the employee.

5. When an employee has used all or a portion of the sick leave allowable and subsequently fails to serve the District for the balance of the College year, an appropriate dollar amount shall be deducted from the employee's final salary warrant. The appropriate amount shall equal the employee's final salary warrant. The appropriate amount shall equal the employee's daily rate of pay, times the number of sick days used, but not covered by earned sick leave. This section shall not be construed to affect amounts an employee may be entitled to receive under Section C and D of this Article.

## ARTICLE XXII - LOAD BANKING

- A. The District and the Association agree that it is desirable to take advantage of Education Code provisions permitting "load banking" based upon the following principles:
  - Faculty may bank partial courses in individual unit increments, full-course overloads or equivalent, or a lecture or lab component of a full course.
  - 2. No more than 0.4666 FTE of a faculty member's annual contract load may be banked in any one (1) academic year.
  - No more than the equivalent of one (1) semester's full-time contract load may be accumulated as banked load.
  - 4. At any one (1) time no more than 6 percent of full-time faculty members in any given college may utilize their banked hours for a full semester reduction of load and such reduction of load may not be taken more than once every five (5) years.
  - 5. A faculty member electing to bank hours must make an election (in writing) to do so by December 31 of the year prior to the calendar year when the banking will be done. In case of a substantive teaching assignment modification or personal necessity, the faculty member will be asked to complete an exception from which could be available for IRS inspection. In the first year that a faculty member becomes eligible to bank hours the election to bank hours must be made within 30 days of the faculty member becoming eligible to bank hours.
  - 6. Banked hours may be used by a faculty member to reduce a load during a semester. Faculty using banked hours have been granted a reduction of load, not a leave, as defined in Article XIII, Leaves, and are not excused from responsibilities enumerated in Article X, Section O. The faculty member must notify the Administration of their intent to utilize a full-semester reduction of load at the time of submission of a tentative annual teaching assignment.
  - Banked hours may be used for professional or personal reasons excluding full-time employment with another college district.
- B. A faculty member may "cash in" any portion of their load banked hours at any time. Where hours are "cashed in" instead of used for load banking, the faculty member shall be paid on the basis of the rate of pay in effect when the hours are cashed in, except that in no event can hours be accumulated beyond five (5) years after they were first earned. Only banked courses assigned at the 5/8 pro-rated intersession salary rate may be cashed in at the 5/8 rate (See Article XXI.D).
- C. Should a full-time faculty member die, the total value of their accumulated banked hours shall be paid to their beneficiary(ies) in a timely manner.

## ARTICLE XXIII - DURATION AND TERMINATION

This Agreement, when ratified and executed between each party hereto, shall constitute the sole Agreement between them. Any modification or amendment of this Agreement must be made by and between the parties hereto in writing and executed by each party hereto. This Agreement is effective as of the summer intersession 2021, which begins on June 21, 2021, and shall remain in effect through June 30, 2024, except as noted in Appendices A, B, C, and G.

Date: 07/21/21

Date: 07/21/21

FOR THE DISTRICT

Wolde-Ab Isaac Charcellor

FOR THE ASSOCIATION

Rhonda Taube, President RCCDFA/CCA/CTA/NFA

#### APPENDIX A

#### RIVERSIDE COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT

#### 2021-2022 FACULTY SALARY SCHEDULE

#### Effective July 1, 2021

	B AB	C MA	D MA+15	E MA+30	F MA+45	G MA+60	H Doctorate
		or BA+30	or	or	or	or	2000011110
Step		Incl MA	BA+45	BA+60	BA+75	BA+90	
эсер			Incl MA	Incl MA	Incl MA	Incl MA	
1	67,980	72,351	76,715	81,076	85,432	89,809	94,182
2	71,447	75,813	80,185	84,548	88,905	93,274	97,636
3	74,912	79,269	83,632	87,987	92,359	96,726	101,102
4	78,359	82,723	87,093	91,452	95,807	100,179	104,555
5	81,811	86,165	90,538	94,912	99,269	103,628	107,997
6	85,278	89,630	93,991	98,349	102,717	107,089	111,474
7	88,721	93,083	97,438	101,818	106,176	110,544	114,908
8	92,187	96,546	100,907	105,274	109,635	114,004	118,363
9	95,622	99,997	104,351	108,711	113,085	117,457	121,813
10	99,086	103,450	107,811	112,188	116,535	120,904	125,263
11	99,086	106,910	111,264	115,642	119,988	124,366	128,737
12	99,086	106,910	111,264	119,086	123,459	127,817	132,170
13	99,086	106,910	111,264	119,086	126,912	131,264	135,623
15	100,326	108,245	112,653	120,571	128,495	132,908	137,320
16	101,567	109,571	114,044	122,059	130,078	134,551	139,019
19	104,037	112,252	116,817	125,052	133,252	137,831	142,417
22	106,522	114,918	119,617	128,026	136,419	141,114	145,804

All AB degrees, MA degrees, and Doctorates must be earned from an institution accredited by a regional or specialized accrediting agency recognized by the Council on Postsecondary Accreditation.

Step advancement shall be awarded at the beginning of the semester following the completion of two (2) full semesters of employment as a full-time contract or regular faculty member in the District.

Employees shall be eligible for step 16, 19 and 22 after completing 15,18, and 21 years, respectively, of paid service in the District.

Approved June 15, 2021 by Board of Trustees Base Days - 176 Revised 06/2021

#### RIVERSIDE COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT

## 2021-2022 CULINARY FACULTY SALARY SCHEDULE

#### Effective July 1, 2021

	В	C	D	$\mathbf{E}$	F	G	Н
	AB	MA	MA+15	MA+30	MA+45	MA+60	Doctorate
		or BA+30	or BA+45	or BA+60	or BA+75	or BA+90	
Step		Incl MA	Incl MA	Incl MA	Incl MA	Incl MA	
1	101,970	108,527	115,073	121,614	128,148	134,714	141,273
2	107,171	113,720	120,278	126,822	133,358	139,911	146,454
3	112,368	118,904	125,448	131,981	138,539	145,089	151,653
4	117,539	124,085	130,640	137,178	143,711	150,269	156,833
5	122,717	129,248	135,807	142,368	148,904	155,442	161,996
6	127,917	134,445	140,987	147,524	154,076	160,634	167,211
7	133,082	139,625	146,157	152,727	159,264	165,816	172,362
8	138,281	144,819	151,361	157,911	164,453	171,006	177,545
9	143,433	149,996	156,527	163,067	169,628	176,186	182,720
10	148,629	155,175	161,717	168,282	174,803	181,356	187,895
11	148,629	160,365	166,896	173,463	179,982	186,549	193,106
12	148,629	160,365	166,896	178,629	185,189	191,726	198,255
13	148,629	160,365	166,896	178,629	190,368	196,896	203,435
15	150,489	162,368	168,980	180,857	192,743	199,362	205,980
16	152,351	164,357	171,066	183,089	195,117	201,827	208,529
19	156,056	168,378	175,226	187,578	199,878	206,747	213,626
22	159,783	172,377	179,426	192,039	204,629	211,671	218,706

All AB degrees, MA degrees, and Doctorates must be earned from an institution accredited by a regional or specialized accrediting agency recognized by the Council on Postsecondary Accreditation.

Step advancement shall be awarded at the beginning of the semester following the completion of two (2) full semesters of employment as a full-time contract or regular faculty member in the District.

Employees shall be eligible for step 16, 19 and 22 after completing 15,18, and 21 years, respectively, of paid service in the District.

Calculated from Faculty Salary Schedule at one and a half times the regular salary.

Approved June 15, 2021 by the Board of Trustees

Base Days - 216 Rev. 06/2021

#### RIVERSIDE COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT

#### OCCUPATIONAL FACULTY SALARY SCHEDULE

Purpose of the Schedule. The Occupational Faculty Salary Schedule is designed to equate occupational experience and college units with academic degrees in order to allow the District to offer a competitive salary to individuals for teaching positions in occupational subjects. This scheduleshall be used in the initial placement of faculty members employed to teach in an occupational subject area. It shall also be used for the subsequent upward mobility of faculty members initially placed on this schedule. AB and MA degrees used for initial placement and subsequent progression

on the salary schedule should be either directly related to the subject named on the credential or from the Occupational Education discipline. Recommendation of subject relationship of work completed for progression of this schedule shall be by an ad hoc committee of technical, professional peers appointed by the Professional Growth and Sabbatical Leave Committee.

Placement on the Schedule. The criteria for initial placement and subsequent upward mobility of faculty members initially placed on this schedule is determined by the type of credential required, theyears of occupational experience, and the degrees held and/or number of college units earned. One step will be granted for each two years of allowable occupational experience beyond that which is required for the credential. One step will be granted for each full year of appropriate teaching experience. Initial placement on the salary schedule shall be limited to a maximum of Step 6.

Credentials. The credential required may be a Class A Vocational, a full-time Standard DesignatedSubjects, or full-time Community College Instructor Credential authorizing the teaching of an occupational subject.

- Salary placement for occupational faculty employed with less than an AB Degree shall be as follows:
  - B. Temporary Credential or Permanent (5 year of lifetime clear) Credential
  - C. Permanent Credential including 60 college semester units
  - D. Permanent Credential including 90 college semester units
  - E. Permanent Credential plus AB Degree
  - F. Permanent Credential plus AB Degree plus MA Degree
  - G. Permanent Credential plus AB Degree plus MA Degree plus 15 units
  - H. Permanent Credential plus Earned Doctorate
- II. Salary Placement for occupational faculty employed with an AB Degree, or an MA Degree, shall be as follows:
  - B. Temporary Credential plus AB Degree
  - C. Permanent Credential plus AB Degree
  - D. Permanent Credential plus AB Degree plus 15 units
  - E. Permanent Credential plus AB Degree plus 30 units
  - F. Permanent Credential plus AB Degree plus 45 units, including MA Degree
  - G. Permanent Credential plus AB Degree plus 60 units, including MA Degree
  - H. Permanent Credential plus Earned Doctorate

#### APPENDIX B

#### RIVERSIDE COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT

# 2021-2022 FACULTY HOURLY SALARY SCHEDULE Effective June 21, 2021

	GROUP 1	GROUP 2	GROUP 3
STEP 1	\$66.23	\$72.96	\$85.98
STEP 2	\$72.96	\$79.32	\$92.72
STEP 3	\$79.32	\$85.98	\$99.31

#### Group 1

Those teachers whose education and experience are not sufficient to place them in Column B or higher of the Riverside Community College District Faculty Salary Schedule; those teachers whose teaching credentials limit them to teaching classes organized primarily for adults; and those teachers of laboratory classes, reading improvement and non-credit classes for adults.

#### Group 2

Those teachers, counselors, librarians, and school nurses, whose education and experience would place them in Column B of the Riverside Community College District Faculty Salary Schedule.

#### Group 3

Those teachers, counselors, librarians, and school nurses, whose education and experience would place them in Column C, D, E, F, G or H of the Riverside Community College District Faculty Salary Schedule.

Teachers in all groups shall be required to maintain a class for two semesters at Riverside Community College District before moving to Step 2, and for four semesters at Riverside Community College District before moving to Step 3.

Approved June 15, 2021 Revised 06/2021

#### APPENDIX C

#### RIVERSIDE COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT

#### 2021-2022 INTERSESSION SALARY SCHEDULE

Effective June 21, 2021

A Riverside Community College District Intersession faculty member who receives a regular intersession assignmentshall be placed on this salary schedule in accordance with established District practice used in the college year. Step and column placement will be made in accordance with verified education and experience as of the opening day of intersession.

The figure below represents the salary for one (1.0) Full-Time Equivalent Teaching Assignment. In order to calculate intersession salary, multiply intersession F.T.E. assigned by the District, times the dollar amount for

Example: Column E, Step 6 \$30,734 X .4000 FTE = \$12,174

	В	C	D	E	F	G	Н
	AB	MA or	MA+15 or	MA+30 or	MA+45 or	MA+60 or	Doctorate
		BA+30	BA+45	BA+60	BA+75	BA+90	
Step		Incl MA	Incl MA	Incl MA	Incl MA	Incl MA	
1	21,244	22,610	23,973	25,336	26,698	28,065	29,432
2	22,327	23,692	25,058	26,421	27,783	29,148	30,511
3	23,410	24,772	26,135	27,496	28,862	30,227	31,594
4	24,487	25,851	27,217	28,579	29,940	31,306	32,673
5	25,566	26,927	28,293	29,660	31,022	32,384	33,749
6	26,649	28,009	29,372	30,734	32,099	33,465	34,836
7	27,725	29,088	30,449	31,818	33,180	34,545	35,909
8	28,808	30,171	31,533	32,898	34,261	35,626	36,988
9	29,882	31,249	32,610	33,972	35,339	36,705	38,067
10	30,964	32,328	33,691	35,059	36,417	37,783	39,145
11	30,964	33,409	34,770	36,138	37,496	38,864	40,230
12	30,964	33,409	34,770	37,214	38,581	39,943	41,303
13	30,964	33,409	34,770	37,214	39,660	41,020	42,382
15	31,352	33,827	35,204	37,678	40,155	41,534	42,913

The conversion formula used to develop this schedule is as follows:Base (Faculty) Salary divided by 2 x 5/8

Approved June 15, 2021 by Board of Trustees Revised 06/2021

#### APPENDIX D

### RIVERSIDE COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT

### EXTRA PAY FOR EXTRA-CURRICULAR ACTIVITIES

### Effective July 1, 2021

ATHLETIC COACHES	Reassigned Time Stipend	
Head Baseball Coach		7,425
Assistant Baseball Coach		5,192
Head Basketball Coach (Men's & Women's)	0.15	7,784
Assistant Basketball Coach (Men's & Women's)		5,192
Head Cross Country Coach (Men's & Women's)		6,012
Assistant Cross Country Coach (Men's & Women's)		4,861
Head Football Coach	0.3	9,720
Assistant Football Coach		5,192
Head Golf Coach		6,012
Assistant Golf Coach		4,861
Head Soccer Coach (Men's & Women's)		6,012
Assistant Soccer Coach (Men's & Women's)		4,861
Head Softball Coach		7,425
Assistant Softball Coach		5,192
Head Swim Coach (Men's & Women's)		6,012
Assistant Swim Coach (Men's & Women's)		4,861
Strength Coach		6,488
Head Tennis Coach (Men's & Women's)		6,012
Assistant Tennis Coach (Men's & Women's)		4,861
Head Track Coach (Men's & Women's)		6,488
Assistant Track Coach (Men's & Women's)		4,861
Head Volleyball Coach		6,012
Assistant Volleyball Coach		4,861
Head Water Polo Coach (Men's & Women's)		5,901
Assistant Water Polo Coach (Men's & Women's)		4,766
Asst. to Director, Athletics	0.3	7,425
DEPARTMENT CHAIRS (MVC/NC/RCC)		7,102
Department Chairs where faculty headcounts (full time		2,017
andassociate faculty) exceed 100		
OTHER ACTIVITIES	Reassigned Time	Stipend
Advisor to College Newspaper (Stipend for RCC only)	0.3	4,861
Advisor to Muse		4,861
Auxiliary Unit		4,861
Director of Marching Band	0.2	6,488
Director of Jazz Band	0.2	6,488
Director of Choir	0.2	6,488
		*

Director of Dance	0.2	7,001
Director of Performing Arts (Orchestra, Winds, Guitar,	0.2	6,488
Jazz)		
Director, Art Gallery (for each college with a gallery)	0.4	3,893
OTHER ACTIVITIES (Continued)	Reassigned Time	Stipend
Director Automotive Programs (T-Ten, Ford Asset, GM)	0.15	
Director, Pep Squad		4,861
Director, Production Printing	0.3	3,893
Director, Physical Science Stock Room		3,893
Director, Planetarium		5,771
Director, Forensics		5,192
Director, Theatre	0.2	4,861
Model United Nations Coach		5,192
Articulation Officer (MVC/NC/RCC)	0.8	
Director, Cosmetology	0.2	
Director, Lighting Design	0.1	
Director, Dental Assisting	0.4	
Director, Dental Hygiene	0.4	
Director, Emergency Medical Services	0.4	
English and Math Liaison (RCC only)	0.2 for Fall & Spring	with a 20 hour
	stipend in the Winter & an 80 h	our
	stipend in the Summer	
Faculty Lecturer (Spring only)	0.2	
Instructor (Counseling) Puente Program	0.5	
Instructor (English) Puente Program	0.2 or 54 hrs	@ lecture rate
Instructor, Study Abroad	0.2	
Umoja Type Program/T3P Instructor (English)	0.2 (Spring & Fall)	
Umoja Type Program/T3P Instructor (Counseling)	0.2 (Spring & Fall)	

0.2

4,861

#### ADDITIONAL CONSIDERATIONS

Director of Dance

As other activities are introduced into the District extra-curricular activities program, proposed salary will be recommended to the Board of Trustees at that time. The listing of the foregoing activities shall not be construed to mean that the District cannot eliminate or modify any such activity.

The specific stipends and reassigned time listed in Appendix D, E, and F of the Agreement will be annually reviewed by the District and the Association. All reassigned time, whether contractual or non-contractual, must be negotiated or agreed upon in consultation with the Association. Administration has the right to assign temporary one-semester reassigned time without consulting the Association.

Unless otherwise stated, each reassigned time position is for one (1) faculty member. If two or more facultymembers are sharing the position, the reassigned time and stipend must be split according to workload responsibilities.

Base Days - 176

Approved June 15, 2021 by the Board of Trustees

Rev. 06/2021

#### APPENDIX E

#### PARTICIPATORY GOVERNANCE AND PLANNING

#### A. Academic Senate

Academic Senate Reassigned Time and Intersession Compensation

The District shall provide 3.3 Full-Time Equivalent FTE reassigned time for the Academic Senate. The recommended distribution of this time each semester is as follows: .6 FTE to the College Presidents, .1 FTE to the College Vice Presidents, .2 FTE to the District Senate President, .2 FTE to the District Curriculum Committee Chair, and .4 FTE to each of the College Curriculum Committee Chairs in the fall and .2 in the spring. The Tech Review District Chair receives. 2 FTE. It is also recognized that each of the Senates may decide to redistribute this time periodically to address specific situations with the caveat that no one person may receive more than .6 of this allotment during any period, except for whomever serves as the District Senate President. In addition, the District shall provide an annual total of 70 hours at the faculty hourly rate (Appendix B) for the Academic Senates during the winter and summer intersessions. These 70 hours will be distributed at the discretion of the District Senate, with a maximum of 50 hours for use by any one of the Academic Senate Presidents. This compensation is provided for necessary, legitimate, or agreed upon college and District business. The Academic Senate President and others selected by the Academic Senate Presidents will provide a timesheet specifying the hours worked and duties performed by the last day of the appropriate intersession.

#### B. Accreditation

Accreditation is now an ongoing process. The lead faculty member heading the institutional self-evaluation and writing the report shall receive between a .4 and a .8 depending on the workload at any given point in the accreditation cycle and on the individual needs of the colleges. During off periods when no reports are due, the faculty lead may receive a .2.

#### C. Strategic Planning

Faculty Chair, Strategic Planning .2 fall and spring.

#### ADDITIONAL CONSIDERATIONS

The specific stipends and reassigned time listed in Appendix D, E, and F of the Agreement will be annually reviewed by the District and the Association. All reassigned time, whether contractual or non-contractual, must be negotiated for or agreed upon in consultation with the Association. Administration has the right to assign temporary one-semester reassigned time without consulting the Association.

Unless otherwise stated, each reassigned time position is for one (1) faculty member. If two or more faculty members are sharing the position, the reassigned time and stipend must be split according to workload responsibilities.

#### APPENDIX F

#### RIVERSIDE COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT 2021-2022 COORDINATOR SALARY SCHEDULE

#### Effective July 1, 2021

COORDINATORS	REASSIGNED TIME	<b>STIPEND</b>	
Coordinator, Assessment	.30	6,488	
Coordinator, Program Review	.20	6,488	
District Program Review Chair	.10		
Distance Education Chair	.2 (MVC/NC/RCC)		
Coordinator, Faculty/Professional Development (Riverside)	.20 (Fall & Spring)	6,488	
Coordinator, Faculty/Professional Development (MoVal)	.20	4,754	
Coordinator, Faculty/Professional Development (Norco)	.20	4,754	
Coordinator, Honors	.20 (MV/NOR) .40 (RIV)	6,488	
Coordinator, International Education	1.0	6,488	
Coordinator, Math Lab	.20 (MV/NOR) .40 (RIV)	6,488	
Coordinator, CIS Lab	.20	6,488	
Coordinator, Media Services		6,488	
Coordinator, Performing and Fine Arts		6,488	
Coordinator, Student Activities		6,904	
Coordinator, Vocational Outreach		6,488	
Coordinator, Writing and Reading Center	.30 (MV/NOR) .60 (RIV)	6,488	
Coordinator, Foreign Language Lab	.20		
Coordinator, STEM	.20	6,488	
Coordinator, Center for Communication Excellence	.20		

The stipend paid to Faculty Development Coordinators is for work completed in both winter and summer intersessions.

Cooperative Work Experience: It is assumed that the instructor/ coordinator will spend an average of 3-1/2 hours per work experience student per semester for supervising, locating work experience stations, and completing the necessary paperwork. The factor of "3-1/2" issued to multiply the lab rate (Group 1, Step 1, Hourly Salary Schedule) for each work experience student assigned to the instructor/coordinator on an overload basis.

#### ADDITIONAL CONSIDERATIONS

The specific stipends and reassigned time listed in Appendix D, E, and F of the Agreement will be annually reviewed by the District and the Association. All reassigned time, whether contractual or non-contractual, must be negotiated for or agreed upon in consultation with the Association. Administration has the right to assign temporary one-semester reassigned time without consulting the Association.

Unless otherwise stated, each reassigned time position is for one (1) faculty member. If two or more faculty members are sharing the position, the reassigned time and stipend must be split according to workload responsibilities.

Approved June 15, 2021 by Board of Trustees Base Days – 176 Rev 06/2021

#### APPENDIX G

# RIVERSIDE COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT SALARY SCHEDULE FOR EARLY CHILDHOOD DEVELOPMENT CENTER

#### **Employees Effective July 1, 2021**

#### ANNUAL SALARY

POSITION	RANGE	STEP 1	STEP 2	STEP 3	STEP 4	STEP 5
Pre-School Assistant Teacher	1	29,648	31,130	32,696	34,328	36,044
Pre-School Associate Teacher	2	37,843	39,728	41,719	43,817	45,999
Pre-School Teacher	3	48,284	50,697	53,218	55,884	58,678
Early Childhood Master Teacher	4	58,957	61,899	65,012	68,276	71,703
Site Supervisor	5	74,120	77,825	81,724	85,795	90,092
Program Director	6	95,381	104,910	115,370	126,907	139,610

#### HOURLY RATE

POSITION	RANGE	STEP 1	STEP 2	STEP 3	STEP 4	STEP 5
Pre-School Assistant Teacher	1	15.00	15.75	16.55	17.37	18.24
Pre-School Associate Teacher	2	19.15	20.11	21.11	22.17	23.28
Pre-School Teacher	3	24.44	25.66	26.93	28.28	29.70
Early Childhood Master Teacher	4	29.84	31.33	32.90	34.55	36.29
Site Supervisor	5	37.51	39.39	41.36	43.42	45.59
Program Director	6	48.27	53.09	58.39	64.22	70.65

Persons employed in the positions listed on the Childhood Development salary schedule must meet the state required minimum qualifications as set forth herein, and any additional job related qualifications as prescribed by the District.

Initial Placement: New employees shall be placed on Step 1 of the salary schedule. Higher step placement up to a maximum of Step 3 may be granted upon the recommendation of the Director, Human Resources. Such exception must be based upon exemplary experience and training.

Advancement in Step: Advancement from Step 1 to Step 2 and advancement from Step 2 to Step 3 shall require 2 semesters of service to the District in the respective position.

Advancement from Step 3 to Step 4 shall require three years of service to the District. Advancement from Step 4 to Step 5 shall require four years of service to the District.

Approved June 15, 2021 by the Board of Trustees

Base days - 247 Rev. 06/2021

#### APPENDIX H

#### PAY-PER-COURSE PROGRAM FOR ASSOCIATE FACULTY

- A. Associate faculty will receive compensation for each course they teach, regardless of holidays or the number of weeks in the semester/intersession. Associate faculty will also be paid one (1) additional hour for each unit of the course(s) to compensate for non-regularly scheduled time in contact with students and other professional activities required. By way of example, an associate faculty member teaching a 3-unit course will be expected to assist students or engage in professional activities for 3 hours during the semester/intersession in addition to assigned instructional time. This requirement is not part of the associate faculty member's scheduled teaching assignment.
  - B. Associate faculty will sign a Semester/Intersession Tentative Assignment form and receive compensation in the following manner for each course taught:

Number of hours for the basic course (1 lecture unit = 18 hours; 1 laboratory /activity/performance unit = 54 hours) multiplied by the associate faculty member's hourly salary (Faculty Hourly Salary Schedule plus one (1) additional hour for each unit of the course for non-regularly scheduled professional time at the lab rate for Column 1, Step 1 of the Faculty Hourly Salary Schedule (Appendix B).

For those courses where the relationship of units and hours is not consistent with the standard formula (1 lecture units = 18 hours; 1 laboratory/ activity/performance unit = 54 hours), the associate faculty will receive compensation for any additional hours, worked at their hourly rate. An example of such a course is PHP-V25A Women's Varsity Soccer, 2.00 units with 180 activity hours.

- C. If any of the courses taught by the associate faculty member are cancelled or reassigned under provisions outlined in the Agreement between the District and the Association, the associate faculty member will receive their hourly salary pursuant to the Faculty Hourly Salary Schedule for time actually spent in classroom contact with the students enrolled in the course(s). Associate faculty will receive compensation for the additional hours of student contact and other professional time only if the faculty member has a semester/session teaching assignment.
- D. To be eligible for the pay-per-course program, the associate faculty member must be the instructor of record for a course carrying at least 1.0 unit or have a teaching assignment for a course equivalent to at least 1.0 unit. A course of less than 1.0 unit will be paid at the regular hourly rate.
- E. Full-time faculty, classified personnel with teaching assignments, and administrators with teaching assignments as overloads will receive the lecture unit compensation stated above, but are not eligible for the additional hours of student contact and other professional time. Deductions in pay for absences for which there is no leave entitlement will be based on the Faculty Hourly Salary Schedule. Substitutes will be paid from the Faculty Hourly Salary Schedule.

F. Full-Time Faculty teach 30 units as a full workload per academic year. Each unit is 18 hours of work.

Regarding the selection of salary schedule points for comparison, the parties agree that Step 1, Column 3, of the Associate Faculty salary schedule is equivalent to Step 1, Column 4 of the Full-Time Faculty salary schedule.

Therefore, the parties agree that the Associate Faculty Salary Parity Goal is defined as 75% of the Full-Time Faculty Salary hourly rate at Step 1, Column 4 as compared to Associate Faculty Salary rate at Step 1, Column 3.

Formula for Parity Goal Hourly Rate:

Full-Time Faculty Salary Step 1, Column 4 \* 75% = A

A/30 units/18 hours = Associate Faculty Parity Goal Hourly Rate

Formula for Achievement level of Parity Goal:

Goal Rate/Associate Hourly Rate at Step 1, Column 3 = % of Parity Goal

## 2021-2022 ACADEMIC CALENDAR



July 2021										
s	М	т	w	Th	F	s				
				1	2	3				
4	5	6	7	8	9	10				
11	12	13	14	15	16	17				
18	19	20	21	22	23	24				
25	26	27	28	29	30	31				

s	М	Т	W	Th	F	s
1	2	3	4	5	6	7
8	9	10	11	12	13	14
15	16	17	18	19	20	21
22	23	24	25	26	27	28
29	30	31				

#### September 2021 w Th s М s 2 1 3 4 9 10 11 6 8 12 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 29 26 27 28 30

October 2021											
s	М	т	w	Th	F	s					
					1	2					
3	4	5	6	7	8	9					
10	11	12	13	14	15	16					
17	18	19	20	21	22	23					
24	25	26	27	28	29	30					
31											
	3 10 17 24	S M  3 4 10 11 17 18 24 25	S M T  3 4 5 10 11 12 17 18 19 24 25 26	S M T W  3 4 5 6 10 11 12 13 17 18 19 20 24 25 26 27	S M T W Th  3 4 5 6 7 10 11 12 13 14 17 18 19 20 21 24 25 26 27 28	S M T W Th F  3 4 5 6 7 8 10 11 12 13 14 15 17 18 19 20 21 22 24 25 26 27 28 29					

November 2021									
	s	М	Т	w	Th	F	s		
		1	2	3	4	5	6		
	7	8	9	10	11	12	13		
•	14	15	16	17	18	19	20		
2	21	22	23	24	25	26	27		
2	28	29	30						

December 2021									
s	М	т	w	Th	F	s			
			1	2	3	4			
5	6	7	8	9	10	11			
12	13	14	15	16	17	18			
19	20	21	22	23	24	25			
26	27	28	29	30	31				

January 2022										
s	М	Т	W	Th	F	s				
						- 1				
2	3	4	5	6	7	8				
9		11	12	13	14	15				
16	17	18	19	20	21	22				
23	24	25	26	27	28	29				
30	31									

February 2022							
М	Т	w	Th	F	s		
	1	2	3	4	5		
7	8	9	10	11	12		
14	15	16	17	18	19		
21	22	23	24	25	26		
28							
	M 7 14 21	M T 1 1 7 8 14 15 21 22	M T W 1 2 7 8 9 14 15 16 21 22 23	M T W Th 1 2 3 7 8 9 10 14 15 16 17 21 22 23 24	M T W Th F 1 2 3 4 7 8 9 10 11 14 15 16 17 18 12 22 23 24 25		

March 2022								
S M T W Th F S								
		1	2	3	4	5		
6	7	8	9	10	11	12		
13	14	15	16	17	18	19		
20	21	22	23	24	25	26		
27	28	29	30	31				
					,			

April 2022							
s	М	F	s				
					1	2	
3	4	5	6	7	8	9	
10	11	12	13	14	15	16	
17	18	19	20	21	22	23	
24	25	26	27	28	29	30	

May 2022								
F S	h F	TI	W	Т	М	s		
6 7	5 (	į.	4	3	2	1		
3 14	2 1:	12	11	10	9	8		
20 21	9 20	- 19	18	17	16	15		
27 28	6 2	26	25	24	23	22		
				31	30	29		
3 20	2 13	12	11 18	10 17 24	9 16 23	15 22		

June 2022							
s	М	Т	w	Th	F	s	
			1	2	3*	4	
5	6	7	8	9	10**	11	
12	13	14	15	16	17	18	
19	20	21	22	23	24	25	
26	27	28	29	30			

- Required Day for New Faculty August 17
- FLEX Days Fall: August 18, 19 and 20 Spring: February 11
- Part-time Faculty Orientation to be arranged by college
- Legal Holiday/Day of Observance
- Commencement (June 10)
- Classes Not in Session

Summer Session 2021 June 21 - July 29 (6 weeks)
Weekend Classes: June 26 - July 25

- Fall 2021 August 23 - December 16 Weekend Classes: August 28 - December 12
- Winter Session 2022 January 3 - February 10 (6 weeks) Weekend Classes: January 8 - February 6
- Spring 2022 February 14 - June 10 Weekend Classes: February 26 - June 5
- Final Exams Fall: December 10 - 16 Spring: June 3 (evening) - June 10 (morning)

June 3 - Day Classes Meet as usual / Late Afternoon and Evening Classes Meet Friday for Final Exams
 June 10 - Morning and Early Afternoon Final Exams and Evening Commencement

## 2021-2022 DATES TO REMEMBER

### **Summer Session**

June 21 - July 29

June 21	Day and Evening Classes Begin
June 26	Weekend Classes Begin
July 5	
July 25 .	Weekend Classes End
July 29	Day and Evening Classes End

#### Winter Session

January 3 - February 10

January 3 Day	and Evening Classes Begin
January 8	Weekend Classes Begin
January 17	Holiday
February 6	Weekend Classes End
February 10 Da	ay and Evening Classes End

#### Fall Semester

August 23 - December 16

August 17 Required Day for New Faculty
August 18, 19, 20FLEX Days
August 23Classes Begin
August 28 Weekend Classes Begin
September 6
November 11
November 12 Classes Not in Session
November 22, 23, 24, 26, 27, 28 Classes Not in Session
November 25
December 10 - 16Final Exams
December 12 Weekend Classes End
December 16 Full-Term Classes End
December 24
December 31

## **Spring Semester**

February 14 - June 10

### 2022-2023 ACADEMIC CALENDAR



July 2022								
S M T W Th F S								
					1	2		
3	4	5	6	7	8	9		
10	11	12	13	14	15	16		
17	18	19	20	21	22	23		
24	25	26	27	28	29	30		
31								

August 2022							
s	М	Т	w	Th	F	s	
	1	2	3	4	5	6	
7	8	9	10	11	12	13	
14	15	16	17	18	19	20	
21	22	23	24	25	26	27	
28	29	30	31				
				_			

#### September 2022 М Т w Th F s 1 2 3 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 29 30 26 27 28

	O	cto	ber	· 20	22	
s	М	т	w	Th	F	s
						1
2	3	4	5	6	7	8
9	10	11	12	13	14	15
16	17	18	19	20	21	22
23	24	25	26	27	28	29
30	31					

November 2022						
s	М	Т	w	Th	F	s
		- 1	2	3	4	5
6	7	8	9	10	11	12
13	14	15	16	17	18	19
20	21	22	23	24	25	26
27	28	29	30			

I	Dec	cen	nbe	er 2	02	2
s	М	Т	w	Th	F	s
				1	2	3
4	5	6	7	8	9	10
11	12	13	14	15	16	17
18	19	20	21	22	23	24
25	26	27	28	29	30	31

	Ja	ınu	ary	20	23	
s	М	т	w	Th	F	s
1	2	3	4	5	6	7
8	9	10	11	12	13	14
15	16	17	18	19	20	21
22	23	24	25	26	27	28
29	30	31				

	Fe	brι	ıarı	y 20	<b>)2</b> 3	}
s	М	Т	w	Th	F	s
			1	2	3	4
5	6	7	8	9	10	11
12	13	14	15	16	17	18
19	20	21	22	23	24	25
26	27	28				

	N	lar	ch	202	23	
s	М	т	w	Th	F	s
			1	2	3	4
5	6	7	8	9	10	11
12	13	14	15	16	17	18
19	20	21	22	23	24	25
26	27	28	29	30	31	

		Apr	ʻil 2	02	3	
s	М	т	w	Th	F	s
						1
2	3	4	5	6	7	8
9	10	11	12	13	14	15
16	17	18	19	20	21	22
23	24	25	26	27	28	29
30						

Required Day for New Faculty - August 16

		Ma	y 2	023	3	
s	М	Т	w	Th	F	s
	1	2	3	4	5	6
7	8	9	10	11	12	13
14	15	16	17	18	19	20
21	22	23	24	25	26	27
28	29	30	31			

	,	Jun	ie 2	202	3	
s	М	Т	w	Th	F	s
				1	2*	3
4	5	6	7	8	9*	<b>1</b> 0
11	12	13	14	15	16	17
18	19	20	21	22	23	24
25	26	27	28	29	30	

- FLEX Days Fall: August 17, 18 and 19 Spring: February 10
  - Part-time Faculty Orientation to be arranged by college
  - Legal Holiday/Day of Observance
  - Commencement (June 9)
  - Classes Not in Session

- June 2 Day Classes Meet as usual / Late Afternoon and Evening Classes Meet Friday for Final Exams
   June 9 Morning and Early Afternoon Final Exams and Evening Commencement

June 20 - July 29 (6 weeks) Weekend Classes: June 25 - July 24 Fall 2022 August 22 - December 17 Weekend Classes: August 27 - December 10 Winter Session 2023

Summer Session 2022

- January 3 February 9 (6 weeks) Weekend Classes: January 7 February 5
- Spring 2023 February 13 - June 9 Weekend Classes: February 25 - June 4
- Final Exams Fall: December 11 - 17 Spring: June 2 (evening) - June 9 (morning)

## 2022-2023 DATES TO REMEMBER

### **Summer Session**

June 20 - July 29

June 20	Day and Evening Classes Begin
June 25	Weekend Classes Begin
July 4	Holiday
July 24	Weekend Classes End
July 29	.Day and Evening Classes End

#### Winter Session

January 3 - February 9

January 2	
January 3 Day	and Evening Classes Begin
January 7	Weekend Classes Begin
January 16	Holiday
February 5	Weekend Classes End
February 9 Da	y and Evening Classes End

#### **Fall Semester**

August 22 - December 17

August 16 Required Day for New Faculty
August 17, 18, 19FLEX Days
August 22Classes Begin
August 27 Weekend Classes Begin
September 5
November 11
November 24
November 21, 22, 23, 25, 26, 27 Classes Not in Session
December 11-17Final Exams
December 10 Weekend Classes End
December 17 Full-Term Classes End
December 26

## **Spring Semester**

February 13 - June 9

February 10FLEX Day
February 11, 12
February 13Classes Begin
February 17, 20Holiday
February 18, 19
February 25 Weekend Classes Begin
March 31Holiday
April 10-16 Spring Break (no classes)
May 29Holiday
June 2 - 9Final Exams
June 4 Weekend Classes End
June 9Full-Term Classes End
June 9 Commencement and Final Exams

## 2023-2024 ACADEMIC CALENDAR

June 2023										
s	М	Т	w	Th	F	s				
				1	2	3				
4	5	6	7	8	9	10				
11	12	13	14	15	16	17				
18	19	20	21	22	23	24				
25	26	27	28	29	30					

July 2023										
s	М	Т	W	Th	F	s				
						1				
2	3	4	5	6	7	8				
9	10		12	13	14	15				
16	17	18	19	20	21	22				
23	24	25	26	27	28	29				
30	31									

August 2023								
s	М	Т	w	Th	F	s		
		1	2	3	4	5		
6	7	8	9	10	11	12		
13	14	15	16	17	18	19		
20	21	22	23	24	25	26		
27	28	29	30	31				

#### September 2023 w М Th F s 1 2 5 6 8 9 12 13 14 15 16 10 11 18 19 20 21 22 23 17 25 26 28 29

October 2023										
s	М	т	w	Th	F	s				
1	2	3	4	5	6	7				
8	9	10	11	12	13	14				
15	16	17	18	19	20	21				
22	23	24	25	26	27	28				
29	30	31								

November 2023									
s	М	Т	W	Th	F	s			
			1	2	3	4			
5	6	7	8	9	10	11			
12	13	14	15	16	17	18			
19	20	21	22	23	24	25			
26	27	28	29	30					

	December 2023								
	s	М	Т	w	Th	F	s		
l						1	2		
	3	4	5	6	7	8	9		
	10	11	12	13	14	15	16		
	17	18	19	20	21	22	23		
	24	25	26	27	28	29	30		
	31								

January 2024									
s	М	Т	w	Th	F	s			
	1	2	3	4	5	6			
7	8	9	10	11	12	13			
14	15	16	17	18	19	20			
21	22	23	24	25	26	27			
28	29	30	31						

February 2024									
s	М	Т	W	Th	F	s			
				1	2	3			
4	5	6	7	8	9	10			
11	12	13	14	15	16	17			
18	19	20	21	22	23	24			
25	26	27	28	29					

March 2024									
s	М	т	w	Th	F	s			
					1	2			
3	4	5	6	7	8	9			
10	11	12	13	14	15	16			
17	18	19	20	21	22	23			
24	25	26	27	28	29	30			
31									

April 2024									
s									
	1	2	3	4	5	6			
7	8	9	10	11	12	13			
14	15	16	17	18	19	20			
21	22	23	24	25	26	27			
28	29	30							

April 2024

May 2024									
	s	М	Т	w	Th	F	s		
				1	2	3	4		
	5	6	7	8	9	10	11		
	12	13	14	15	16	17	18		
	19	20	21	22	23	24	25		
	26	27	28	29	30	31*			

June 2024									
s	М	Т	w	Th	F	S 1			
2	3*	4	5	6	7**	8			
9	10	11	12	13	14	15			
16	17	18	19	20	21	22			
23	24	25	26	27	28	29			
30									

- Required Day for New Faculty August 15
- FLEX Days Fall: August 16, 17 and 18 Spring: February 9
- Part-time Faculty Orientation to be arranged by college
- Legal Holiday/Day of Observance
- Commencement (June 7)
- Classes Not in Session

- August 21 December 16 Weekend Classes: August 26 December 9 Winter Session 2024
  January 2 - February 8 (6 weeks)
  Weekend Classes: January 6 - February 4

Summer Session 2023 June 19 - July 28 (6 weeks) Weekend Classes: June 24 - July 23

Fall 2023

- Spring 2024 February 12 June 7 Weekend Classes: February 24 June 2
- Final Exams Fall: December 10 - 16 Spring: May 31 (evening) - June 7 (morning)

May 31 - Day Classes Meet as usual / Late Afternoon and Evening Classes Meet Friday for Final Exams
 June 7 - Morning and Early Afternoon Final Exams and Evening Commencement

## 2023-2024 DATES TO REMEMBER

#### **Summer Session**

June 19 - July 28

June 19	Day and Evening Classes Begin
June 24	Weekend Classes Begin
July 4	Holiday
July 23 .	Weekend Classes End
July 28	Day and Evening Classes End

#### **Winter Session**

January 2 - February 8

January 1	Holiday
January 2 Day ar	d Evening Classes Begin
January 6	Weekend Classes Begin
January 15	Holiday
February 4	Weekend Classes End
February 8 Day	and Evening Classes End

#### Fall Semester

August 21 - December 16

August 15 Required Day for New Faculty
August 16, 17, 18FLEX Days
August 21 Classes Begin
August 26 Weekend Classes Begin
September 4
November 10
November 23
November 20, 21, 22, 24, 25, 26 Classes Not in Session
December 10-16 Final Exams
December 9 Weekend Classes End
December 16 Full-Term Classes End
December 25

## **Spring Semester**

February 12 - June 7

February 9FLEX Day
February 10, 11 No Saturday/ Sunday Classes
February 12Classes Begin
February 16, 19
February 17, 18 No Saturday/ Sunday Classes
February 24 Weekend Classes Begin
March 29Holiday
April 8-14 Spring Break (no classes)
May 27Holiday
May 31 - June 7 Final Exams
June 2 Weekend Classes End
June 7Full-Term Classes End
June 7 Commencement and Final Exams

2024-2025 ACADEMIC CALENDAR

June 2024									
s	М	Т	W	Th	F	S 1			
2	3	4	5	6	7	8			
9	10	11	12	13	14	15			
16	17	18	19	20	21	22			
23	24	25	26	27	28	29			
30									

July 2024									
S M T W Th F									
		1	2	3	4	5	6		
	7	8	9	10	11	12	13		
	14	15	16	17	18	19	20		
	21	22	23	24	25	26	27		
	28	29	30	31					

August 2024									
S M T W Th F S									
				1	2	3			
4	5	6	7	8	9	10			
11	12	13	14	15	16	17			
18	19	20	21	22	23	24			
25	26	27	28	29	30	31			

#### September 2024 s М Т W Th F s 2 3 4 5 9 8 10 11 12 13 14 19 15 16 17 18 20 21 22 23 24 25 27 28 26 30

October 2024									
s	Th	F	s						
		1	2	3	4	5			
6	7	8	9	10	11	12			
13	14	15	16	17	18	19			
20	21	22	23	24	25	26			
27	28	29	30	31					

November 2024								
М	Т	w	Th	F	s			
				1	2			
4	5	6	7	8	9			
11	12	13	14	15	16			
18	19	20	21	22	23			
25	26	27	28	29	30			
	M 4 11 18	M T 4 5 11 12 18 19	M T W 4 5 6 11 12 13 18 19 20	M T W Th 4 5 6 7 11 12 13 14 18 19 20 21	M T W Th F 1 4 5 6 7 8 11 12 13 14 15 18 19 20 21 22			

December 2024								
s	М	т	w	Th	F	s		
1	2	3	4	5	6	7		
8	9	10	11	12	13	14		
15	16	17	18	19	20	21		
22	23	24	25	26	27	28		
29	30	31						

January 2025									
s	М	Т	w	Th		s			
			1	2	3	4			
5	6	7	8	9	10	11			
12	13	14	15	16	17	18			
19	20	21	22	23	24	25			
26	27	28	29	30	31				

February 2025						
s	М	Т	w	Th	F	S
2	3	4	5	6	7	8
9	10 17	11 18	12 19	13 20	14 21	15 22
23	24	25	26	27	28	

	March 2025							
	s	М	т	w	Th	F	s	
l							1	
l	2	3	4	5	6	7	8	
l	9	10	11	12	13	14	15	
l	16	17	18	19	20	21	22	
	23	24	25	26	27	28	29	
	30	31						

April 2025								
М	Т	w	Th	F	s			
	1	2	3	4	5			
7	8	9	10	11	12			
14	15	16	17	18	19			
21	22	23	24	25	26			
28	29	30						
			•					
	M 7 14 21	M T 1 7 8 14 15 21 22	M T W 1 2 7 8 9 14 15 16 21 22 23	M T W Th 1 2 3 7 8 9 10 14 15 16 17 21 22 23 24	M T W Th F 1 2 3 4 7 8 9 10 11 14 15 16 17 18 21 22 23 24 25			

May 2025							
s	М	Т	W	Th	F	s	
				1	2	3	
4	5	6	7	8	9	10	
11	12	13	14	15	16	17	
18	19	20	21	22	23	24	
25	26	27	28	29	30	31	

June 2025								
s	М	Т	w	Th	F	s		
1	2	3	4	5	6*	7		
8	9	10	11	12	13*	14		
15	16	17	18	19	20	21		
22	23	24	25	26	27	28		
29	30							

- Required Day for New Faculty August 20
- FLEX Days Fall: August 21, 22 and 23 Spring: February 7
- Part-time Faculty Orientation to be arranged by college
- Legal Holiday/Day of Observance
- Commencement (June 13)
- Classes Not in Session

- June 17 July 26 (6 weeks) Weekend Classes: June 22 July 21
- Fall 2024 August 26 December 18 Weekend Classes: August 31 December 15
- Winter Session 2025
- January 6 February 13 (6 weeks) Weekend Classes: January 11 February 9
- Spring 2025 February 18 - June 13 Weekend Classes: February 22 - June 8
- Final Exams Fall: December 12 - 18 Spring: June 6 (evening) - June 13 (morning)

June 6 - Day Classes Meet as usual / Late Afternoon and Evening Classes Meet Friday for Final Exams
 June 13 - Morning and Early Afternoon Final Exams and Evening Commencement

## 2024-2025 DATES TO REMEMBER

#### **Summer Session**

June 17 - July 26

June 17	Day and Evening Classes Begin
June 22	Weekend Classes Begin
July 4	Holiday
July 21 .	Weekend Classes End
July 26 .	Day and Evening Classes End

#### **Winter Session**

January 6 - February 13

January 1	Holiday
January 6 Day a	nd Evening Classes Begin
January 11	. Weekend Classes Begin
January 20	Holiday
February 9	Weekend Classes End
February 13 Day	and Evening Classes End

#### Fall Semester

August 26 - December 18

August 20 Required Day for New Faculty
August 21, 22, 23FLEX Days
August 26 Classes Begin
August 31 Weekend Classes Begin
September 2
November 11
November 28
November 25, 26, 27, 29, 30 Classes Not in Session
December 12-18 Final Exams
December 15 Weekend Classes End
December 18 Full-Term Classes End
December 25

## **Spring Semester**

February 18 - June 13

February 7FLEX Day
February 14, 17Holiday
February 15, 16
February 18 Classes Begin
February 22 Weekend Classes Begin
March 31Holiday
April 14-20 Spring Break (no classes)
May 26Holiday
June 6-13 Final Exams
June 8 Weekend Classes End
June 13Full-Term Classes End
June 13 Commencement and Final Exams

